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Louis XlIl Holdings Limited is building a new destination on Macau's

Cotai Strip to house a unique collection of rare and exclusive luxury

experiences.
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Business Overview

Louis XlIl Holdings Limited is a hospitality, entertainment and construction group

that combines a unique extreme luxury hotel and entertainment development

on Macau’s Cotai Strip with the Hong Kong-based legacy business of Paul Y.

Engineering Group Limited (“PYE").
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The Market

The Macau gaming market is the single largest gaming destination
in the world. For the twelve months ended April 2015, Macau
generated gross gaming revenues of approximately US$38.7
billion, over six times greater than gaming revenues of the las
Vegos Striip over the same period. Currently there are over
28,000 hotel rooms in Macau. Macau receives approximately
31,000,000 visitors annually with approximately 67% of coming
from Mainland China.

The Property

When it opens in mid-2016 on the Cotai Strip, the Louis XIII hotel
and entertainment complex will house a unique collection of refined
and remarkable luxury experiences. Designed by infernationally
acclaimed luxury architect, Pefer Marino, it will include a hotel with
about 200 duplex suites, an invitation-only “Atelier” offering only
couture, bespoke and limited edition products from the major luxury
brands and the only branch of a legendary Paris insfitution of haute
cuisine.

The Hotel

The Company appointed infernationally acclaimed architect Pefer
Marino as the Executive Design Theme Architect and the Inferior
Design Theme Consuliant. Mr Marino is the principal of Pefer
Marino Architect PLLC, an architecture, planning and design firm
based in New York City, whose clients include some of the most
iconic names in the fashion and art worlds. He is responsible for
the flagship stores of many of the world’s leading luxury brands
including Chanel, louis Vuitton, Christian Dior, Ermenegildo
Zegna, Graff and Lloewe.

With a gross floor area of approximately 945,000 square feet,
the hotel is designed to ensure the highest level of luxury and
privacy, Louis XIII will offer approximately 200 duplex suites and
villas beginning af approximately 2,000 square feet ranging up
fo approximately 12,000 square feet and a royal villa of over
20,000 square feet. Guests will arrive in one of the hotel’s fleet
of signaturered RollsRoyce limousines with the option for private
check in. All guests will arrive in their rooms via lifts that open
directly info the suites.
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Louis XIIl Hotel Exterior Facade Concept
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Business Overview

Hotel Development of Louis XIII
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The "Atelier”

The complex will house the world’s first by-invitation-only “Atelier.”
For the first time under one roof, clients will have the rare
opportunity fo view and purchase in complete privacy couture,
bespoke and limited-edition products presented by the most
prestigious luxury brands in the world — products and services that
the top European Fashion and jewellery houses currently deliver
only to top VIP customers in their headquarter maisons and ateliers.

The Restaurant

The fabled L'Ambroisie in Paris, which has held three Michelin
stars since 1988, will open its only other property in the louis
Xl hotel complex. With only approximately 38 seafs, the
crifically acclaimed Paris restaurant is one of the most soughtafter
reservations in the world.

PYE

PYE is a 51% owned subsidiary of the Company. PYE fraces its
origins to Shanghai in 1946 and has played a major role in
shaping the skyline and world-class infrastructure of Hong Kong
over the past six decades.

Headquartered in Hong Kong, PYE is one of the leading
management confracting companies in Hong Kong and Macau,
offering a full range of engineering and property services,
with operations in Hong Kong, Beijing, Shanghai, Hangzhou,
Guangzhou, Chongging, Nantong, Shenzhen, Macau, Singapore
and Malaysia.

With more than six decades of experiences, PYE prides itself on
its ability to deliver infegrated property development solutions from
concept to completion as well as on-going management.

Atelier
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Financial Highlights

YRR S

Percentage
2015 2014 change
PYE segment revenue REREDBEETE

[HK$'million) (B8AT) 10,695.6 92439 16%
PYE segment profit REEZZ 2 8 A

[HK$'million) (B8%T) 197.8 221.0 (10%)
Earnings before interest and tax RETHE KRB AT & F

[HK$'million) (&%) 37.4 134 179%
Loss for the year attributable to R R FEAL F E 518

shareholders (HK$'million) (AE®BT) (29.9) (50.6) (41%)
Shares outstanding (million) BTG (BER) 921 450 105%
Net asset value per share (HK$) FREEFE (ST 6.4 8.9 (28%)
Loss per share (HK cents) FR%E 1B (B1L)

- Basic —HK (5.5) (12.9) (57%)
Total assets (HK$'million) BwEEB(EEST) 12,375.2 ?,003.5 37%
Net current assets (HK$'million) MEEEFE(BEET) 3,014.6 1,432.7 110%
Net cash (HK$'million) e Em(EEET) 1,226.3 1,371.7 (11%)
Equity attributable to shareholders PR A1

[HK$ million) (A8AT) 5,885.9 3,983.2 48%
Operating cash (outflow) inflow LEEKHS (RE)RA

(HK$ million) (B8BT) (363.5) 561.4 (165%)
Net cash inflow FIREBMA

[HK$ million) (A8AT) 239.0 683.3 (65%)
Current ratio T Eh b & 1.66 1.33 25%
Gearing ratio BEXRBELER 0.34 0.17 100%
long term debt/equity rafio RHEEEALR 0.26 0.06 333%
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Business Highlights
EBRE

LOUIS XIlI
April 2014

° Entered into a term loan facility of up to HK$3,045 million
with a Mainland China-based bank

June 2014

e Completed building foundation works

September 2014

e  Entered into a sales and purchase agreement with Rolls-
Royce Motor Cars limited for the acquisition of 30 Extended-
WheelBase RollsRoyce Phantoms, including the two most
expensive vehicles ever built by RollsRoyce

January 2015

e  Placing of shares and convertible bonds, raising
approximately HK$2,169 million

June 2015
e  Superstruciure fopped out and below ground excavation
completed

8 Louis Xl Holdings Limited 2015 Annual Report
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PAUL Y. ENGINEERING GROUP

Construction management contracting projects secured during the

year and up fo the date of this report:

Hong Kong

Construction of Home Ownership Scheme Developments at

Sha Tin, Hong Kong

Foundation works for residential development at 128 Pok Fu
Llam Road, Hong Kong

Main confract works for Hong Kong Disneyland resort H3
hotel, Hong Kong

Proposed hotel development at Sai Kung, Hong Kong

Re-provisioning of Kennedy Town swimming pool (Phase 2),

Hong Kong

Macau

Foundation works (Lot 8) for the Concordia Development at
Coloane, Macau*

Main contract works (lots 7 & 10) for the Concordia
Development at Coloane, Macau*

Singapore

*

Proposed Redevelopment to Commercial Building at 160
Changi Road, Singapore

Project being carried out through joint venture
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CHAIRMEN'S
STATEMENT
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Mr Peter Lee Coker Jr. and Mr Stephen Hung Peter Lee Coker Jr. 5t 4 B it K B 6 4
Joint Chairmen BEEE
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Dear Shareholders,

Development of our hotel project in Macau (the “Project”) has been
progressing smoothly due in large part to the complimentary nature
of our hotel and consfruction divisions. With the two businesses
operafing on a close parinering basis, we have achieved

significant gains in efficiency and value for money spent.

In January 2015, we completed fund placements of shares
and convertible bonds through which we raised approximately
HK$2,169 million. As defailed during the fund raising, these new
funds are being applied to primarily the contemplated design
upgrades related fo the interior fit out of the hotel. We believe
these upgrades will firmly establish Louis Xlll as a new benchmark
of extreme luxury for both Macau and the World.

UNIQUE HOTEL PROJECT IN MACAU

We have made substantial progress in development of the
Project since last financial yearend. Consfruction is proceeding
on schedule. We are happy to report that the superstructure was
topped out in early June 2015 and dll excavation works have
been complefed. Approximately 89% of all consfruction works
have been tendered.

On 16 September 2014, we entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with RollsRoyce Motor Cars  Limited ["Rolls-Royce”)
under which we acquired a fleet of 30 highly customized
Extended-Wheel-Base RollsRoyce Phantoms (the "Vehicles”). The
anticipated delivery date of the Vehicles is expected to be in the
first half of 2016. This fransaction was the single largest order
in RollsRoyce's history and two of the Vehicles will be the most
expensive vehicles ever built by RollsRoyce. Both we and Rolls-
Royce are quite proud of the uniqueness of the Vehicles, but global
media interest exceeded all our expectations. Over 900 media
outlets in 15 languages in over 30 countries published stories on
the transaction. We expect media inferest to remain high as the
first completed vehicles are unveiled.

We have substantially completed the hiring of our senior
management team. All have been intimately involved in the design
and development process to ensure that the Project is not only
unique but also supports the high level of service and functionality
our guests will expect.
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Chairmen’s Statement
TEHREE

CONSTRUCTION AND ENGINEERING
BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the segment revenue af
Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited ["PYE") increased approximately
16% 1o approximately HK$10,696 million from approximately
HK$9,244 million in 2014 due to strong order book on hand. At
the year ended 31 March 2015, the value of contracts on hand
was about HK$31,476 million, up by approximately 19% as
compared fo the corresponding amount as at 31 March 2014.
Subsequent fo the year end, PYE further secured new confracts with
total value of approximately HK$3,221 million.

PYE is a stable business that continues to benefit from its strong
market position as one of the leading management contractors in
Hong Kong and Macau. PYE is working closely in partnership with
the Company on our Project, allowing the Company to benefit
from PYE's expertise.

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

We recorded a basic loss per share of 5.5 HK cents in 2015
versus basic loss per share of 12.9 HK cents in 2014. This
improvement was primarily due to the absence of a oneoff
impairment loss recorded in 2014 at PYE, increased inferest
income and lower interest expense due to the Group's sfrong cash
position and the dilutive effects of the placement of new shares.
We expect consolidated losses fo continue unfil our Project is
operational and generating revenue. We encourage shareholders
fo review the segment information in Note 6 fo the consolidated
financial statements to obtain a clearer picture of how PYE is
performing independently from our hotel development activities.

] 2 Louis Xl Holdings Limited 2015 Annual Report
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MACAU MARKET

The Macau hotel and gaming market has been going through a
difficult phase since the middle of 2014. While we cannot predict
when and if this trend will be reversed, we do believe that our
niche strafegy targeting a global clientele of customers seeking a
unique luxury experience is well positioned to compete in a slow
market.

Again, as at yearend March 31, 2015, we will not pay a
dividend as profits will be refained to fund capital and pre-opening
expenses for our Project.

Finally, we thank our employees for their dedication and hard

work, and our shareholders, customers and business partners for
their continued support.

Stephen Hung and Peter Lee Coker Jr.
Joint Chairmen

Hong Kong, 19 June 2015
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER’S
REPORT

1T B4R = 5

Mr Walter Craig Power Walter Craig Power 5t 4
Chief Executive Officer (Executive Director] — 7TIRAE#E (B17TEE)
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Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased fo report the annual results of Louis XIll Holdings
Limited (the "Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the "Group”)
for the year ended 31 March 2015, together with comparative
figures for 2014. The consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, financial position, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Group, all of which are audited, together with explanatory notes,
are set out on pages 81 to 204 of this annual report, which have
been reviewed by the Company’s Audit Commitiee.

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
AND POSITIONS

Hotel Development

The Group is building an exclusive luxury hotel and entertainment
complex, expected to be completed in the middle of 2016, on
a site of some 65,000 square feet located on the Cotai Strip of
Macau (the "Hotel”). The directors believe that the complefion
of the Hotel followed by a fully operational Hotel in Macau
with provision of ancillary retail and entertainment facilities will,
in due course, generate strong cash flows for the benefit of all
shareholders.

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the hotel development
segment recorded assets of approximately HK$4,800 million and
liabilities of approximately HK$ 1,765 million, mainly the cost of
land, hotel under development in Macau, the liability portion of
convertible bonds issued for financing the hotel development and
bank borrowings for hotel development. Also included in segment
liabilities are amounts due fo Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited
["PYE") in respect of construction of the Macau project. There was
no segment profit from hotel development for the year ended 31

March 2015.

In January 2015, the Company raised approximately HK$2,169
million by way of placings of new shares and convertible bonds.
The Company intends to apply the proceeds of the placings fo
the contemplated design upgrades primarily related to the fit out
of the interiors of the hotel development, construction of the hotel
and other aspects of developing and opening the hotel project in
Macau.

On 11 April 2014, New Concordia Hotel Llimited (a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company and the developer of the
Hotel) entered into a term loan facility of HK$3,045 million with a
Mainland China-based bank for its construction project of the Hotel
(the “loan Facility”). The loan Facility is for a term of six years
commencing from the date of the first draw down, subject to the
terms and conditions of the relevant facility agreement. For the year
ended 31 March 2015, around HK$1,098 million was drawn

from the Loan Facility.
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Chief Executive Officer’s Report

THARSEE

Engineering Business — PYE (51% owned)

During the year under review, the Group maintained ifs strong
order book on hand and sustained steady growth in a competifive
environment. Our expansion in Macau market in the past few
years has been successful and has contributed significantly to our
margin for the year.

For the year ended 31 March 2015, segment revenue at PYE
increased approximately 16% to approximately HK$10,696
million from approximately HK$9,244 million in 2014 as a
result of the sfrong order book on hand. Segment operating profit
decreased approximately 10% to approximately HK$198 million
(2014: HK$221 million) as a result of increasing manpower and
construction cosfs.

The Group
For the year ended 31 March 2015

consolidated revenue including joint operations of approximately
HK$9,323 million (2014: HK$8,580 million), representing an

increase of approximately 9% from that of last year as a result of

, the Group recorded a

the strong order book on hand. Taking into account the Group's
share of revenue of associates and joint ventures, revenue would
be approximately HK$10,719 million (2014: HK$10,089

million), representing an increase of approximately 6%.

Gross profit decreased approximately 2% to approximately
HK$284 million (2014: HK$289 million) due primarily to
increasing manpower and other consfruction costs. Gross profit

margin decreased slightly to 3.0% (2014: 3.4%).

Loss affributable to owners of the Company for the year decreased
approximately 41% 1o approximately HK$30 million (2014
HK$51 million). This resulted mainly from: i) a decrease in a one-
off loss of approximately HK$27 million recognised in the last
fiscal year from a long outstanding receivable related to a PRC
construction project of our subsidiary, PYE and ii) an increase in
inferest income and reduction in inferest expense resulting from the
Group's strong cash position. Basic loss per share was 5.5 HK
cents.

The Group maintained a strong financial position with fofal assets
standing at approximately HK$12,375 million. Current assets
were approximately HK$7,594 million, or approximately 1.7
times the current liabilities. The equity atfributable to owners of the
Company increased to approximately HK$5,886 million or 48%
primarily due to the placing of shares and convertible bonds for
hotel development.

Net cash flow used in operating activities was about HK$363
million and net cash oufflow in respect of investing activities was
approximately HK$2,528 million. Net cash inflow in respect of
financing activities was approximately HK$3,130 million, resulting
in a net increase in cash and cash equivalents of about HK$239

million for the Group for the year ended 31 March 2015

] 6 Louis Xl Holdings Limited 2015 Annual Report
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Hotel Development

The Group has made substantial progress in development of its
hotel project during the year ended 31 March 2015

Construction is proceeding on schedule. The superstructure was
topped out in early June 2015 and excavation of the basement
has been completed. Approximately 89% of all construction works
have been tendered.

On 16 September 2014, the Company entered info a sale and
purchase agreement with RollsRoyce Motor Cars Limited (“Rolls-
Royce”) under which the Company agreed to purchase and Rolls-
Royce agreed to sell a fleet of 30 Extended\WheelBase Rolls-
Royce Phantoms that will be produced and customised to the
specifications of the Company (the “Vehicles”). The anficipated
delivery date of the Vehicles is expected fo be in the first half of
2016. This fransaction was the single largest order in RollsRoyce’s
history and two of the Vehicles will be the most expensive vehicles
ever built by RollsRoyce. The Company paid US$5 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$39 million) to RollsRoyce as deposit for
acquisition of the Vehicles for the year ended 31 March 2015

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group made new
senior hires specialized in Finance, legal and Surveillance for
its hotel development business and subsfantially expanded its
management team in Resort Operations, Food & Beverage, Retail
Operations, Information Technology, Finance, Engineering and
Faciliies Management, Guest Relations, Invesfor Relations, Human
Resources and Marketing.

Engineering Business — PYE (51% owned)

The Management Contracting division remained the core business
and the major contributor of revenue this year. Revenue of this
division amounted to approximately HK$10,665 million (2014
HK$9,238 million), including approximately HK$1,372 million
(2014: HK$663 million) for the Group's hotel project in Macau,
up by about 15%. As at 31 March 2015, the value of contracts
on hand was approximately HK$31,441 million, while the value
of works remaining stood at approximately HK$10,056 million.
It reported an operating profit of approximately HK$196 million
(2014: HK$218 million), including approximately HK$42 million
(2014: HK$36 million) for the Group's hotel project in Macau.
The slight decrease was due primarily to increased labor and other

construction costs.
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Chief Executive Officer’s Report

TTHREBBE

During the vyear under review, the Management Contracting
division secured new construction confracts with an aggregate
value of approximately HK$5,253 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 17% as compared fo the amount of
approximately HK$6,334 million for last year as a result of the
cautious tendering approach adopted by PYE. Subsequent fo
vear end, the division secured further confracts of approximately
HK$3,218 million. Set out below are some of the new contracts
secured during the year and up fo the date of this report:

e Construction of Home Ownership Scheme Developments at
Sha Tin, Hong Kong

e Foundation works for residential development at 128 Pok Fu
Lam Road, Hong Kong

° Foundation works (Lot 8) for the Concordia Development at
Coloane, Macau *

®*  Main contract works for Hong Kong Disneyland resort H3
hotel, Hong Kong

e Main contract works (lots 7 & 10) for the Concordia
Development at Coloane, Macau *

®  Proposed hotel development at Sai Kung, Hong Kong

®  Proposed redevelopment to commercial building at 160
Changi Road, Singapore

®  Reprovisioning of Kennedy Town swimming pool (Phase 2),
Hong Kong

Project being carried out through joint venture

Studio City at Cotai, Macau
RPIRR 2R R R
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The Property Development Management division reported a profit
of approximately HK$1 million for the year under review. The
value of contracts on hand for Property Development Management
division at the year end was approximately HK$35 million.

The Property Investment division also reported a profit, through
its joint venture, of approximately HK$1 million for the year
under review. The joint venture holds an investment property in
Hangzhou, the Pioneer Technology Building, which is an office
building with gross floor area of about 20,000 square meters. The
building contributed rental income of about HK$ 13 million (2014:
HK$12 million) during the year and it was almost fully leased out

as at 31 March 2015.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Below is an event of the Group occurring after the end of the
reporting period and up to the date of approval for issuing the
consolidated financial statements on 19 June 2015:

On 16 April 2015, the Company granted 401,000 share options
at an exercise price of HK$6.80 per share to an employee.
The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as to onethird on 16
April 2016, as to a further onethird on 16 April 2017 and as
to the final onethird on 16 April 2018. The share options are
exercisable from the aforesaid vesting dates until 15 April 2019 (both
dates inclusive).

The Concordia Development at Coloane, Macau
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Chief Executive Officer’s Report

TTHREBBE

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Under its prudent funding and freasury policies, the Group
maintains a variety of credit facilities to meet requirements for
working capital. At 31 March 2015, cash, bank balances and
deposits stood at approximately HK$3,222 million, of which
approximately HK$3,119 million, HK$53 million, HK$24 million,
HK$23 million and HK$3 million were denominated in Hong
Kong Dollars, Renminbi, Macau Patacas, Singapore Dollars and
Japanese Yen, respectively. The Group had fofal borrowings
of approximately HK$1,586 million at yearend of which
approximately HK$488 million are repayable within one year.
In oddition, the Group also has outstanding convertible bonds
with face value of approximately HK$2,219 million and liability
component as at 31 March 2015 of approximately HK$409
million. The convertible bonds mature in February 2025.

All of the Group's borrowings, other than the convertible bonds,
as at 31 March 2015 bear interest at floating rates and are
denominated either in Hong Kong Dollars or Renminbi. The
Renminbi borrowings are directly tied in with the Group's business
in the Mainland China.

free. The Group's gearing ratio, based on total borrowings of

The convertible bonds are inferest
approximately HK$ 1,995 million and equity atfributable to owners
of the Company of around HK$5,886 million, increased from
approximately 0.17 at 31 March 2014 to about 0.34 at 31
March 2015 primarily due fo increase in tofal borrowings related
fo hotel development.

EMPLOYEES

The Group had 1,988 fullime employees, including the Directors
of the Group but excluding contracted casual labour in Macau, as
at 31 March 2015. The Group offers competfitive remuneration
packages based on overall market rates, employee performance,
and the performance of the Group. Remuneration packages are
comprised of salary, performancebased bonuses, and other
benefits including fraining, provident funds and medical coverage.
Three share incentive schemes (namely share optfion scheme, share
award scheme and share financing plan) are in place to mofivate
and reward eligible employees.
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2015, the Group pledged hotel under
development, property, plant and equipment, prepaid land
lease payments and bank deposits of approximately HK$2,634
million, HK$38 million, HK$ 1,803 million and HK$47 million,
respectively, and charged the Group's benefits over certain
construction contracts and the Group's inferests over cerfain
subsidiaries to secure the general banking faciliies granted to the

Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had contingent liabilities in respect of indemnities of
approximately HK$340 million given to banks for performance
bonds granted to an associate and joint operations and contingent
liabilifies in respect of corporate guarantees of approximately
HK$20 million given to a bank for banking facilities granted to an
associafe as at 31 March 2015.

COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2015, the Group has expenditure contracted for
but not provided in the consolidated financial statements in respect
of the acquisition of property, plant and equipment and hotel under
development of approximately HK$ 1,152 million and HK$ 1,725
million respectively. The Group also has expenditure authorised
but not contracted for in respect of hotel project of approximately

HK$682 million.

SECURITIES IN ISSUE

During the year, an aggregate of 471,270,500 shares were
issued by way of placing.

As at 31 March 2015, there were 920,867,010 shares in
issue. Additional shares may be issued by way of: i) exercise
of share options of the Company for up to 27,505,000
shares of the Company depending on the fulfilment of vesting
condifions attached to the options; ii] exchange for up to 10%
of the shares in Falloncroft Investments Limited (“Falloncroft”) for
up fo 88,235,294 shares of the Company depending on the
ultimate equity capitalization of Falloncroft and achievement of
certain performance tfargefs related 1o hotel development; and
iii) conversion of three 2025 convertible bonds which if fully
converted would result in the issuance of 465,814,719 shares of
the Company.
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Chief Executive Officer’s Report

THRERRSE

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of dividend for the

year ended 31 March 2015 (2014: Nil).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2015, there were no purchases,
sales or redemptions by the Company, or any of ifs subsidiaries, of
the Company’s listed securities.

OUTLOOK

Llooking ahead, the global economic growth will likely be volafile.
Despite stable growth in the United States, growth in the rest of the
world is fragile as seen from the fall in global commodity and ol
prices since June 2014. In addition there is uncertainty generated

by:

®  confinued sovereign credit issues in the Eurozone along with
the generally slow pace of structural reforms;

° continued conflicts in the Ukraine and Middle East; and

e the slowing growth and structural reforms taking place in

China.

Hotel Development

The Macau gaming market has been going through a difficult
phase since the middle of 2014. For the full year 2014, Macau
gross gaming revenues ["GGR") fell 2.6%. Through the end of May
2015 yearto-date GGR is now 37.1% below the same period in
2014. VIP GGR has been the hardest hit, declining by 10.9% for
full year 2014 and 42.5% yeartodate through the end of May
2015. Mass GGR has been less impacted and grew 15.3% for
full year 2014 but declined by 28.8% for May 2015 yearto-date.

Visitation to Macau remained stable with Macau recording an
increase of 7.5% for full year 2014 and a slight decline of 3.6%
for 2015 yearto-date to the end of April. Hotel occupancy has
also reflected these slight declines. It would appear that the
decline in GGR has resulted from a decline in the average amount
wagered rather than a decrease in Macau visitation.

Despite the anticipated volatile market conditions, the Company
feels that its niche strategy of targefing a global clientele of high
net worth customers seeking o unique luxury experience is well
positioned to compete in a slow market.
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Engineering Business — PYE (51% owned)

Despite continuing challenges in the construction industry, we sill
foresee healthy demand over the medium and long term.

In Hong Kong, Hong Kong's Chief Executive announced various
initiatives in housing and land planning together with high
levels infrastructure investment in their 2015 Policy Address,
which is expected fo provide confinuous growth of building and
infrastructure  projects. In Macau, the demand for construction
services will slow down from the peak, while Singapore's
construction market is expected to grow steadily. Our track record
in these markets makes us confident of securing more confracts in
the coming years.

Competition within the industry remains keen in the face of the
shortage of competent professional staff and  skilled labour.
To mitigate these challenges, we will confinue to manage our
resources proactively and focus on premium projects that provide
better profit margins and remain committed fo strengthening our
business continuously by diversifying risk through joint ventures and
prudent expansion outside Hong Kong in order fo create value for
shareholders.

Walter Craig Power
Chief Executive Officer (Executive Director)

Hong Kong, 19 June 2015
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Biography of Directors
EEBEEBMN

Stephen Hung, aged 56, has been the Joint Chairman (Executive Director) of
the Company since February 2013. He is also the Chairman of the Executive
Committee of the Company, and a member of the Nomination Committee and
Finance and Investment Committee of the Company, and a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company. He has over 32 years of experience in the finance
and investment industries. He is the Chairman of The Taipan Investment Group and
the Vice Chairman of Rio Entertainment Group, which operates the Rio Hotel &
Casino through its affiliates in Macau. Mr Hung was formerly co-head of investment
banking for Asia at Merrill Lynch and subsequently formed his own investment
banking firm, Amida Capital limited in 1992. From 2000 to 2002, Mr Hung

Mr Stephen Hung served as the Vice Chairman of eSun Holdings limited (0571.HK). From 2000 to

2004, he also served as a non-executive director of AcrossAsia Limited (8061 .HK).
Mr Hung graduated from University of Southern California, Los Angeles with a
master's degree in business administration in 1981. Mr Hung is also a director of | Hung Llimited, S Hung Llimited, Pride Wisdom
Group Llimited and Chief Wise Limited, all of which have interests in the shares/underlying shares of the Company which fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinances.
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Peter Lee Coker Jr., aged 46, has been the Joint Chairman (Executive Director) of the
Company since February 2013. He is also a member of the Finance and Invesiment
Committee, Disclosures Commitiee and Executive Commitiee of the Company,
and a director of various subsidiaries of the Company. He has over 24 years of
experience in the finance and investment industries. He is the Managing Pariner of
Pacific Adveriers, and is also a partner of TDR Capital Investment lid (@ Shenzhen-
based private equity firm). Mr Coker served as an officer of the Bridge Companies
prior to joining Wellington Securities [New Zealand) in 2002. During his service
with the Bridge Companies, Mr Coker held the tile of Managing Director-Asia, Chief
Executive Officer of E-Bridge and Managing Direcfor of Bridge Asia where he was
Mr Peter Lee Coker Jr. responsible for the firm's equity business in Japan and South East Asia/Australia.
Peter Lee Coker Jr. 5t 2= From 2000 to 2001, Mr Coker served as the Chairman of IRESS Market Technology

Limited (formerly BridgeDFS) [ASX: IRE). From 2002 to 2005, Mr Coker served as the
Chairman of Wellington Securities (New Zealand). From 2006 to 2009, Mr Coker served as the Chairman of Global Trading Offshore
Pte (Singapore). Mr Coker graduated from Lehigh University in the United States with a Bachelor of Arts degree in 1990.
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Lau Ko Yuen, Tom, aged 64, is the Deputy Chairman (Executive Director) of the
{ Company. He is also a member of the Remuneration Commitiee, Nomination
i qg_ Committee, Finance and Investment Committee, Disclosures Committee, Corporate
' f Governance Committee, PYE Committee and Executive Committee of the Company.
He is also the Deputy Chairman and non-executive director of a subsidiary of the
Company, and a director of various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr Lau has over
41 vyears' internafional corporate development and management experience in
infrastructure developments as well as construction and engineering services involving
the road, rail, port, power, telecommunications, mining and resources secfors in

the Asia Pacific Region. Mr lau has been the Deputy Chairman of the Company
Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom since January 2005. He has been re-designated from Non-Executive Director of
HRRALE the Company fo Executive Director of the Company since February 2013. Mr Lau
is the Chairman and Managing Director of PYI Corporation Limited [0498.HK), a
significant developer and operator of major bulk cargo ports in the Yangize River Region in China. He is also the Deputy Chairman and
non-executive director of Prosperity Investment Holdings Limited (0310.HK) and he was an independent non-executive director of China

National Building Material Company Limited {3323.HK] until November 2011.
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Walter Craig Power, aged 61, has been the Chief Executive Officer (Executive
Director) of the Company since February 2013. He is also a member of the Finance
and Investment Committee and Executive Committee of the Company, and a director
of various subsidiaries of the Company. He is one of the longest serving casino
execufive expafriates in Macau's gaming industry. Arrived in Macau in January
2003, Mr Power has held the positions of Chief Operating Officer of New Cotai
Entertainment, an investor and developer of Macau Studio City, as well as Senior
Vice President of Operations of Venetian Macau Limited. Mr Power was instrumental
to the success of the development, opening and operation of the Sands, the first

wesfern casino in Macau. During his fenure at the Sands, he was responsible for
Mr Walter Craig Power casino operations, hotel operations, all food and beverage outflets and security
Walter Craig Power 5t %= operations. He was also a member of the Compliance and Credit Committee. Being
one of first western executives to enter the Macau gaming market, and having worked
in Macau for over ten years, Mr Power is known internationally for his extensive knowledge of Macau gaming to include junket, VIP and
mass market operations. A 23-year gaming industry veteran, Mr Power accumulated extensive international gaming experience through
executive operational positions af casino resorts in the United States, Argentina, South Africa and the Philippines, in addition to his work
in Macau. Mr Power, a former United States Marine Corps Major and Naval Aviafor, received his BA and MBA from the University of

Michigan. He is also a graduate of the casino industry’s Executive Development Program offered by the University of Nevada,/Reno.

Walter Craig Power * 6155 B ZZ—=F _ARHERER A ZITHAR (ITES) - T ARRA VB RKRELZEGHR
HITEEGKRE  URARFAZHAMNBRARZES - i RRPFIBEEREP —BRERBRRZIMEBISITHAS  Powerst
ERZFT=F— HEERP - MNew Cotai Entertainment CRFI2BFIIHE 2 REEFRERE) BETHRER —B - WHEEA
JRET A CEPT) IR AR AR Z SR L ERIEE - Power R R ERPFIE R AT HIS D 2R ER - WEREEREMBILIER -
R EBYE BRESEE BELE MARRERZEF -MITAEHRNREELZEGKE < Power R AR EILEA
RFIBY TS ZBATRAEZ — BRMAIEETF  tERMEYEZBEAZ (REESTNTA BEERFISTSEE)
SHRER FEBHEE - ER—BRBYEER2BFRBZERAL  BRERPIBR 2 TIEERIN - PowerSE £ TNE BN
PR BENIERBHESEETREERTER T EE CHBERER  Powert A RATEBRIEEEBR DR IEER
T8 MEFRABEFNELEM N TRHEIRBELEM o M IMEEUniversity of Nevada/Reno IR Z R E1THA B#RERIE -
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James Chiu, OBE, JP, aged 76, has been an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company since March 2006. He is also the Chairman of
the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Corporate  Governance
Committee and PYE Committee of the Company. He is also the Chairman
and independent non-executive director of a subsidiary of the Company, and
an independent non-executive director of a subsidiary of the Company. Ir
Chiu has served Hong Kong's construction industry for 51 years. He was the
Managing Director of the General Electric Company of Hong Kong Limited
from 1984 to 1998.

1 hi
;ﬁj;é"gslcéugm Ir Chiu has held a number of important industry roles. He was a president

of The Hong Kong Federafion of Electrical and Mechanical Confractors

Limited, The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers and a Chairman of the British

Chamber of Commerce in Hong Kong. Currently, he is a Council Member
of Hong Kong Electrical & Mechanical Contractors Association, Hong Kong Electrical Contractors” Association limited and Hong
Kong & Kowloon Electric Trade Association. He is also a director of BEAM Society Limited.

Ir Chiu is an Honorary Fellow of the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers with effect from 22 January 2015, and a Fellow of Hong
Kong Academy of Engineering Sciences.

S OBE P 765 A_ZEENFZARKNIARAZBYFNATES WAL QARIZERZES FHEES
TEEARLZEERNREREZESXF MM ALARR —MWBRARZEERBYIFNTES  URARA—HHERRZ
BN IEMITEE c HIRBMBRBEEBEERBSIF - MR — N N\EFE-—NNANFREEZ LR BAERCICIETERTAL
2 —H o

HIRMEECEAZREZRY  ETERTERETERMEeeR AETEMBCeRAEERBELR ﬁﬂfﬁﬂﬂ%
BERETIREABEKNE  BAERTIEDNSARQAKNENENEXESZRENE T ARERRIEHEERA
EERKE -

BIREMATELIEMSeXEBERGE (M- AF AT BRAEBLEEIREMEREREE -
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Lee Chack Fan, GBS, SBS, JP, aged 70, has been an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company since January 2005. He is also the Chairman
of the Nomination Commitiee of the Company, and a member of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Commitiee and PYE Committee of the Company. He
is also an independent non-executive director of a subsidiary of the Company.
Professor lee is the chair professor of geotechnical engineering and director of
the School of Professional and Continuing Education of the University of Hong
Kong. He is also an academician of Chinese Academy of Engineering. Professor

lee graduated from The University of Hong Kong in 1968 and subsequently
received his master's degree from the University of Hong Kong in 1970 and

Professor Lee Chack Fan

25 45 2 3 5 a Ph.D. from the University of Western Ontario, Canada in 1972. Professor

lee is an inTemoTionoHy renowned expert in geotechnical engineering. He

worked for Ontario Hydro in Canada for some 20 years before he joined his
alma mater in 1994. He has participated in the design of many massive dams and nuclear power sfafions. He has served as
a specialist consultant or an advisor to many infernational bodies such as the United Nations Development Plan, World Bank,
Asian Development Bank, efc. on numerous energy and infrastructure projects in many parts of the world. Professor lee's eminent
achievement in civil engineering has been highly recognized; he was awarded the KY Lo Medal in 2000 by the Engineering
Institute of Canada and was elected the academician of the Chinese Academy of Engineering in 2003 in recognition of
his contributions to the engineering profession. He has been appoinfed as Justice of the Peace by the Hong Kong Special
Administration Region Government in July 2003, and he has been awarded the Silver Bauhinia Star and Gold Bauhinia Star in
July 2005 and July 2013 respectively.

Professor lee is currently the Chairman of Hong Kong Institute for Promotion of Chinese Culture, member of the Commission on
Strategic Development, and the President of the Fu Hui Charity Foundation. He was a member of the Board of the West Kowloon
Cultural District Authority until 22 October 2014.

IR GBS SBS P /08 BEZEELRF - ARBEARRZBIUFNTERF WITRAEARRAZREZEGIRRA
RAZEZEZEE FHEESRREREZEENE - MTARAR —BHBARZBUINTES - FTHRAEBKRE
ETTIRBEEHRLBEBREEXEECERER - MTRTEIRERR T - FHER-—ANNFEEREFERE  MAZER
—NEZFREBFBRBZELEMN R AL FRMEABELABARENEELEML - FHEAEEREHE L TR
HR o R —NAMFEMNBEERIAR - BRIMNERLAEEE TR R LIER20F - th B2 ELIERIG LR EMER LTIE -
RS EHE A ZEERIERZER  EEZARNFASNBERER  BFEBoHERAS - HRRT  DMERRTE -
FHER EARTES EBSH G K ERERR - N — 22T FE SEngineering Institute of Canada#IKY Lo Medal » B & 7R 7%
CET=FEERTHEIRERE LT URGHERIAIRIENER - MR 2T =G4+ AREBFITHRRBNTEI A
NPt UHRR_EERFHARTE—=F+ AERRBEFABDERSEADHE -

THERBATBPREXLEEFLESEEF KKEEEZE SN EREEERZEACCER MY ARAXLREERE
ERKEEZE_E—NF+A=-+=H-
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Biography of Directors
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lain Ferguson Bruce, aged 74, has been an Independent NonExecutive Director

¥ of the Company since January 2005. He is also the Chairman of the Finance and

= Iq'i Investiment Commitiee and Disclosures Committee of the Company, and a member

l J of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee, Corporate Governance Committee
—

and PYE Commitiee of the Company. He is also an independent non-execufive

director of a subsidiary of the Company. Mr Bruce joined KPMG in Hong Kong in
1964 and was elected to its partnership in 1971. He was the Senior Partner of
KPMG from 1991 until his retirement in 1996 and served as Chairman of KPMG
Asia Pacific from 1993 to 1997. Since 1964, Mr Bruce has been a member of

the Insfitute of Chartered Accountants of Scofland, and is a fellow of the Hong Kong

Mr lain Ferguson Bruce
e+ %i Institute of Certified Public Accountants with over 50 years of infernational experience

in accounting and consulting. He is also a fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of

Directors, and a fellow of the Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute with effect
from 27 November 2014. He is the Chairman of KCS Limited and an Independent Non-Executive Director of Citibank (Hong Kong)
Limited and MSIG Insurance [Hong Kong) Limited. Mr Bruce serves as an Independent Non-Executive Director on the boards of several
publicly listed companies in Hong Kong, including Wing On Company Infernational Limited (0289.HK), Tencent Holdings Limited {0700.
HK), Sands China ltd. [1928.HK] and Goodbaby Infernational Holdings Limited (1086.HK). He is also an Independent Non-Executive
Director of Noble Group Limited, a company whose shares are listed on The Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited, and Yingli
Green Energy Holding Company Llimited, a company whose shares are traded on the New York Stock Exchange. Mr Bruce was an
Independent Non-Executive Director of China Medical Technologies, Inc., a China-based medical device company that was listed on
NASDAQ, up to 3 July 2012. He was also an Independent Non-Executive Director of Vitasoy Infernational Holdings Limited (0345.
HK) and refired from that company’s board on 4 September 2014.

HBEL Vim BT TRF-AREEARARRIZBIUIFNTES AR RRIZUBLAREZEGRKEZES LR
RARRZEZEZES REZES CXERZECRREREXZEENE - FAARR —HHB AR ZBIIFNITE
E-MBLEER -NAUNEMBEEERFRSHMEBAER —NE—FRREARA TA- WA —FE2HER-ANRXR
FRABEETEERABARR NN ZFE - NN EFHREEEFTHRERARZER - A— N NEERE  MBLEERE
BEFAGHMRAEREESTAGERGE  UHEAS0FHE G RAEARKER W RESEEERERTE
RERBBFAREZGERGE(MT—OF+—AZtEHRER - MRKCS limitedE & RIEERTT () AR QT
=HEREEXNRE (BEB)BRARBIFATEE -MELARERBEEZRARLETRAREERZBE U IFNTES &
FEK LB AR A F)(0289.HK)  BEFIZEARAR A R](0700.HK) « @ EIHR Q1928 HK) K& 4 £ F BIBRZ AR B IR 2 7)(1086.
HK) = 7% & Noble Group Limited (7% 2 & 2 BR T # AN E 5 22 5 B £77) K Yingli Green Energy Holding Company Limited (% 22
RZBORBOEFELFZGENTRS) 2B IFPITESE o M B L 55 & B 1EChina Medical Technologies, Inc. (%2 &l&—HH
BEMRBERARARERNNAIERRTETRY) 2B FATEFEE T —F+ A=A MG REMLDEKREE
BRATNOASHK) 2 BIFEAITES RN _E-—HFNANBREEEFHRE -
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Francis Goutenmacher, aged 73, has been an Independent Non-Executive Director of
the Company since February 2013. He is also a member of the Audit Committee and
Nomination Commitiee of the Company. Mr Goutenmacher has been with Richemont
Luxury Group, S.A. (“Richemont’), one of the world leading luxury goods groups,
for over 30 years. He has been the managing director and chief executive officer
of several presfigious brands, like Cartier and Piogef, encompassed by Richemont.
After refiring as the regional chief executive of Richemont Asia Pacific Limited, Mr

Goutenmacher is now running a marketing consultancy firm, Gouten Consulting

Limited, and is a director of this consuliancy company. Mr Goutenmacher holds a
Bachelor's degree from Ecole Nationale des Arts Decoratifs in Paris, France. He is an
independent non-executive director of I.T Limited (0999.HK) and Natural Beauty Bio-
Technology Limited (0157.HK).

Mr Francis Goutenmacher
Francis Goutenmacher 5t 4

Francis Goutenmacher * 735% ' E—ZE—=F _ ARHER QR ZBIFNTEST M ARRFAZEREZEGRIERES
B8 ° Govenmacher E ARV EH RTERSERBEE — RSB ((E2) REa -1t -t ERNEEETZEZSE
EEmEO T RMAR ] SETEFLLIERITHAE - Covtenmachert A REFEE TR A BR AR 2 EIHITHRAEE -
B Al 48 & T 3% HE B8 i 2 BGouten Consulting Limited » 3 7354 ‘A Rl1HYE % © Goutenmacherst 4 #5 5 VA B B2 £2Ecole Nationale des
Arts DecoratifsZ8 2% 7 2+ E47 o 4t B i AL.T Limited (0999 .HK) X B A XA WEHT AR A B(0157 HK) Z B IEHITESE -

Chan Kok Chung, Johnny, aged 55, has been an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company since November 2014. He is also a member of the Audit
Committee of the Company. Mr Chan has over 30 years of experience in investment
banking and investment management industry. He is a cofounder of Crosby Capital
Limited, and the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Crosby Asset Management
(Hong Kong) limited, a regulated entity of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures
Commission. Mr Chan is the President of the Hong Kong Venture Capital and Private
Equity Association. He is also the Secretary General of the Asia Venture Capital

and Private Equity Council. Mr Chan is a member of the Innovation and Technology

Commission, the Steering Commitiee of the Asian Financial Forum of Hong Kong

gggﬁihung, ey Trade Development Council and the Development Board of the Chinese International

School. He is a member of the Choate Rosemary Hall Parent Advisory Council. He is
a Director of Repton International (Asia Pacific) Limited. Mr. Chan holds o Master of
Business Administration degree from City University Business School in the United Kingdom, a postgraduate diploma from The Securities

Institute of Australia and a Bachelor of Arts [Hons) degree in Economics from the London Metropolitan University.

MRBESLE 55 BZZ—NWF+ - AHEARRIZBIUIFRTES AR RRZEREZEGKE - REANRKRAER
TRREEBTHZEEIOFER - MRSHERERAFTZHABELAZ — URBEBSFRPEFHERZEGIRE
EREHAEEERE (BE)ARAANEIFRITHER - MEETELBRERMEREN S LT o INEERMEIEREER
BESHEWER - RELEREAFEREKE  BEEHERPLMNEeRMHERIZEGNE NELBBRENBERESGHKE -
72 Choate Rosemary Hall Parent Advisory Council®) X & e 1 ZRepton Infernational [Asia Pacific) Limited#) Z 55 o R 55 4= 5 S B
MAZHERE THERBELT 260  BMNEFBERRECBRURBABGREBEEXZE T (BRE) BAL -
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Biography of Senior Management
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Richard Lico, aged 51, has been the Chief Financial Officer of the Company
since May 2013. He is also a member and alternate secrefary of the Executive
Committee of the Company. Mr lico has over 28 years of experience in finance
and private equity. Prior fo joining the Company, Mr liaco was a Managing
Partner of Brookfield Asset Management ("Brookfield”) and Head of Real Estate
Invesiment for Brookfield in Europe. Prior fo his appointment at Brookfield in
2010, Mr lico served as Managing Director, Real Estate Investment Banking for
Bank of America Merrill Lynch ("Merrill Lynch”), london, a position he held since

2005 and was employed for the preceding 7 years at Citigroup in both London
and New York as a Managing Director of Real Estate Investment Banking. Before

Mr Richard Li
gril;_;gilao moving to New York in 1998, Mr lico spent 11 years in Hong Kong inifially

with Merrill Lynch and then cofounded Amida Capital Group Limited with Mr
Hung in 1992. Mr lico graduated from Harvard College with a Bachelor of Arts
degree in 1986.

Bx5 51m BT -—=FRAARHEARARAIZUBEL  MRARARZHITEEGKE RIRFHWE - BRENTB R
SESHEREB28FLER - IAKRRFZA] - B % BBrookfield Asset Management ([ Brookfield ]) 2 3 12 & # A F&Brookfield
REN 2 FHEREEE o ME =T —ZF BN BrookfieldE 8 2 Al - B AR ZF L A FHH I FBank of America Merrill
lynch (£ ) 2 B FEHERERITEF QLR B M2t FAHEEEEENMARAL 2 FHERERITEFLL
BoR—ANANEBREARO A BEEGREEEF  FSEBPREN - B2 R — L = F BEHOKE 5% & 5 F 5L Amida
Capital Group limited © B AR —NN\REFEEXERRHERE - MIEXE LB -

Mui Ching Hung, Joanna, aged 46, is the Corporate Counsel and Company
Secretary of the Company. She is also the secretary of the Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee, Disclosures Committee, PYE Committee and Executive
Committee of the Company, and the secretary of various subsidiaries of the
Company. She is responsible for legal, regulatory compliance, corporate
governance and company secretarial matters of the Group. Ms Mui has over
23 years' experience in company secrefarial field. She joined the Group in
1997. Ms Mui holds a Bachelor [Hons) Degree in law and a Master of Arts
Degree in language and law. She is an associate member of The Hong Kong

- Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered Secrefaries and
Ms Mui Ching Hung, Joanna

WEBAT /MR Administrators.

ZEE REREEXEZE
RRABMEER - 1§/)
BEMEENEELTE

WAL 405 RARBZARNERBRERARANE  TRARFAZEREZES RELZEE REZS
ERPTEEGWE  URARFAZHEMNBRARcWE - FREAKE AR EEAR ©XER
AR ARMEEE T MAERAFER - R - NN EFNAREE - 1§/ NEFAEREEZTEMM
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Corporate Governance Report

O ERBE

Louis XIlI' Holdings Llimited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”) is committed to mainfaining high
standards of corporate governance because we believe that is
the best way to enhance shareholder value. The Company places
strong emphasis on an effective board (the “Board”) of directors (the
"Directors”) of the Company, accountability, sound internal control,
appropriate risk-assessment procedures, and transparency to all
shareholders.

The Company has complied with all code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”) (the
"listing Rules”) throughout the year ended 31 March 2015 and
has adopted most of the recommended best pracices stated
therein.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition

The Board has a balanced composition of Executive and Non-
Executive Directors to ensure independent viewpoints in all
discussions. As at the date of this report, the Board comprises nine
Directors, including four Executive Directors and five Independent
Non-Executive Directors. Board members are listed below:

BHT=5BARIBA(ARA] EREMHMEAF
BRIAREDBNEFRKFZEEESR  AAREEN
FEHDREARREBEZRERE -ARBZEEERR
AlgReRzArREE((EX)R(EER)) HE
- BRZAMEER REZARFGERFMEZ2ER
RZIBRE -

RBE-_FT-—RAF=-A=T—HLFEAR ARFACE
STEE é‘%é}ﬁ&%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ A ([EBMA]) Er LR
Al (T EmAR R e+ A # (R EEa<F D (TR
ZHTAESTAMEX - MERMEPRENEBRETH

EER

AENDY

EZRTHTEEMFNTESZAHAREHE - B
ENwWABE LB NABRSEH EFRANM
EEER(BROURBTESRAUBIIFATES) -
EERKBIBRIT

Board of Directors

ExR

Executive Directors

HITES
e Stephen Hung (Joint Chairman)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

BYFHITES

e James Chiu

HKES (BB L) TS

o Peter lee Coker Jr. (Joint Chairman) o |ee Chack Fan
Peter Lee Coker]r. (/& £ /&) FIE5

¢ lau Ko Yuen, Tom (Deputy Chairman) ® |ain Ferguson Bruce
=R (FEE) matL

* Walter Craig Power (Chief Executive Officer)
Walter Craig Power (7T (48 %)

Note: Appointed on 21 November 2014

Biographical information of the Directors is set out on pages 24
fo 29 of this annual report and on the Company’s website. In
addition, a list containing names of Directors and their roles and

® Francis Goutenmacher

Francis Goutenmacher
e Chan Kok Chung, Johnny (Note)
PR 2 A (BTRE)

MaF - RZE—WF+—AZ+—BEEHF
EEREEGNINAFRE2ABETFE208  INRAAAF]

BB EEEE AERBBERERAR
B R BB PR A UL TS o

functions is published on the websites of the Company and the

Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
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Throughout the year ended 31 March 2015, at least onethird of
the Board was made up of Independent Non-Executive Directors,
one of whom had appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise, as required
by the listing Rules. There is no relationship (including financial,
business, fomi\y or other material/relevant re|oﬂonship) among
members of the Board.

The composition of the Board (with five Independent Non-Executive
Directors out of nine Directors| exceeds the Listing Rules requirement
to have independent non-executive directors representing at least
one-hird of the board.

In August 2013, the Company has established a policy conceming
diversity of Board members (the “Board Diversity Policy”). In the
Board Diversity Policy:

1. The Company recognises and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance.

2. With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced

development, the Company sees increasing diversity af
the Board level as an essential element in supporting the
affainment of ifs strategic objectives and its sustainable
development.

3. In designing the Board's composition, Board diversity has
been considered from a number of aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational

background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service.
4. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and

candidates will be considered against objectives criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skill,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will
bring fo the Board.
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The following is a chart showing the diversity profile of the Board: TEHNEEEKEZ T ZIFER -

French
° N
Independent 71-80
8 | Nonfxecutive us
7 Directors =
- | &L British
6 ERITES e
61-70
5
4
Chinese
3 Executive Directors /B
o © 51-60
WITES
2
] 41-50
::_o' o:o Designation Ethnicity Age
irectors
[\ B %8 FHR
EEAN i e q

Role and Responsibilities A RBE

The Board is responsible for overseeing the Company's strategic  EHFAREE ARG 2RI A MY ES TS 2154
direction and the confrols applied to its activities, and ensuring HREEZEEBE BRABRETH ARFHEEB2EER
that Management has appropriate processes in place for risk-  NEFEEFIREUEE 27 °

assessment, management, and internal control over the Company's

day-o-day affairs.

The Board has in place a list of decisions that are to be refained EEBEZEMWEARAT —RINREMALEREE -

for the Board decision. These matters include: Hep B4k :

1. Corporate strategy; 1. N AR

2. Financial reporting and confrol; 2. BATSIE ¥R M )

3. Major financial arangements; 3. EDNN ez 3

4. Risk management; 4. [k E I

5. Succession planning; 5. v

6. Nofifiable transactions under Chapters 14 and 14A of the 6. FHRBETARTAAE ST E B R T R Y2
Listing Rules; and 2 &

7. Recommendations fo shareholders regarding the 7. BONEZBENER KB - BAEMERERKEER
appointment of external auditor, dividend payments, capifal ZHE PR R IR iR o

reorganizations and schemes of arrangement.
The Board has delegated all daytoday operations and ZEREREBARBEHZ —IAFEERETETERR

management of the Company's business to Management under the  FUARRITHAHAENEEEESR -
leadership of the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
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Chairmen and Chief Executive Officer

The Joint Chairmen of the Company are Mr Stephen Hung and Mr
Peter Lee Coker Jr. The Chief Executive Officer of the Company is
Mr Walter Craig Power.

To ensure a balance of power and authority, the positions of
the Chairmen and Chief Executive Officer of the Company are
held by different individuals, with separate duties. The division of
responsibilities between the Chairmen and Chief Executive Officer
is clearly established and sef out in writing.

The role of the Joint Chairmen of the Company is o oversee the
Company's strategic direction and the confrols applied to its
activities. The Joint Chairmen provides leadership for the Board
and ensures that the Company establishes sound corporate
governance pracfices and procedures. They also encourage all
Directors to make a full and acfive contribution to the affairs of the

Board.

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the overall
performance of the Company and plays a leading role in
delivering a growth strategy. He provides leadership for
Management, oversees the dayto-day operations of the Group,
and monifors the achievement of Company’s objectives set by the

Board.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Independent Non-Executive Directors were appointed for a
ferm of approximately three years expiring af the conclusion of the
third annual general meetfing from the date of their appointment/
reelection, subject fo the Company's Byelaws. Pursuant fo the
Company's Byelaws, all Directors are subject fo retirement from
office by rofation at least once every three years and are eligible
for re-election by shareholders.

Each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors has given an
annual confirmation of independence to the Company pursuant
fo Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that
all Independent Non-Executive Direcfors meet the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Llisting Rules and are
independent in accordance with the terms of the guidelines.

The Nomination Committee of the Company is responsible for
assessing the independence of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors. As a good corporate governance pracfice, every
member of the Nomination Committee abstains from assessing his
own independence.
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Board Process

The Board meets regularly and at least four times a year. Regular
Board meetings are usually scheduled at the beginning of the year
fo give all Directors adequate fime fo plan their schedules to attend.
Direcfors receive at least 14 days’ prior written notice of regular
Board meefings and an agenda. The Board papers, including
supporting analyses and relevant background information, are
normally sent to all Directors at least 3 days before the Board
meeting. For other Board meefings, Direcfors are given as much
nofice as possible in the circumstances.

In order to have an effective Board, Directors are provided with
information on activities and developments in the Group's business
on a regular and timely basis to keep them apprised of the lafest
developments of the Group. The Directors have full access to
information on the Group and are able to seek independent
professional advice whenever they deem it necessary.

In addition, in order to enable the Board and each Director to
discharge their duties, it has been the Company's pracfice to
provide all Directors with monthly updates giving a balanced
and understandable assessment of the Company's performance,
positions and prospects since 2007, way ahead of the
implementation of new Code on 1 April 2012.

To avoid conflicts of interest, Directors who have declared their
material inferests in the proposed transactions or issues fo be
discussed are not counted in the quorum of meetfings and abstain
from voting on the relevant resolutions.
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Details of Directors’ aftendance at Board meetings, Board
committee meetfings and shareholders’ meetings during the year
ended 31 March 2015 are set out in the following fable:

Meefings atiended / held during the year ended 31 March 2015
HZ-3-RF-R=T-ALEBALR/S2ed

Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination
Board Commitee ~ Commitee  Committee
£ ENZEE §MZEe R%ZEE
Number of meefings held 0 3 4 3
during he year
ERENEH NG
Executive Directors
HTES
Stephen Hung 6/6 3/3
HE
Peter lee Coker . /6
lau Ko Yuen, Tom 6/6 4/4 3/3
S
Walter Craig Power 6/6
Independent Non-Execufive Directors
BUFHTES
Jomes Chiu 6/6 3/3 4/4
B
lee Chack Fan 6/6 3/3 4/4 3/3
£
lain Ferguson Bruce 5/6 2/3 2/3
hEL
Francis Goutenmacher 6/6 3/3 3/3
Chan Kok Chung, Johnny [Nofe| 1/1 1/1
RER ()

Note: Appointed on 21 November 2014

In addifion to the Board meetings, the Chairmen hold a meeting
with Independent Non-Executive Directors without the presence of
Executive Directors, in March 2015

Minufes of Board meetfings and Board commitiee meefings with
sufficient defails of matters discussed are kept in safe custody by
the Company Secretary, and are open for inspection by Direcfors.

Induction and Development

Management and the Company Secrefary liaise with the newly
appointed  Directors to acquaint them with their duties and
responsibiliies as Direcfors and the business operations of the
Company. On appointment to the Board, Direcfors receive a
package of orientation materials on the Group and are provided
with a comprehensive induction on the business operafions and
practices of the Group, as well as the general and specific duties
of directors under general law and the Llisting Rules. All Directors
are also given a Directors” Manual on their appointment which set
out, amongst other things, direcfors’ duties, terms of reference of
the Board Commitiee and corporate governance practices of the

Group.
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2 2 2 4 ] ]
22 1/1 1/1
2/2 2/2 1/1 1/1
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2/2 1/1 1/1
22 414 1/1 1/
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To assist Directors’ continuing professional development ("CPD"),
defails on legal and regulatory changes are provided to all
Directors. Directors are also recommended and encouraged
fo attend forums or seminars relating to the roles, functions and
duties of a listed company director. The costs of such forums or
seminars are borne by the Company. The Corporate Governance
Committee of the Company is responsible for reviewing and
moniforing the Directors’ fraining and development.

The Directors are required fo provide the Company with details
of the CPD fraining undertaken by them from time to fime. Based
on the defails so provided, the CPD training undertaken by the
Directors during the year ended 31 March 2015 is summarised as

follows:
Directors Induction Training
E= N2
Executive Directors
HITES
Stephen Hung N/ATEAR
HE K
Peter Lee CokerJr. N/A =& A
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom N/A 7 #E A
g2l5 R
Walter Craig Power N/A T &R
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BYFEHTES
James Chiu N/A 7 #E A
lee Chack Fan N/A T~iE A
ES PN
lain Ferguson Bruce N/A T~ iE A
meEL
Francis Goutenmacher N/ATEAR
Chan Kok Chung, Johnny (Note) v

BRE & (i)
Note: Appointed on 21 November 2014.

The Company has received confirmation from each current Director
that he has given sufficient time and affention to the affairs of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2015. Besides, Directors
have disclosed to the Company their interests as direcfor and
other office in other public companies and organisation in a timely
manner and update the Company on any subsequent changes.

RHHEETZHEFEXER(CPD]) - ARBIAMEE
ERPZRREEZEDHB - ARATERLEBE
EHEABLTAREREZAC REEMBEZHEBHL
Mg mEAATESEROALARFAE -ARF 2D
XERZBERAERTREREEHIIRER -

BEEAMARBREBRETEER 2CPDIFIIFFE - R
BERHzE#E BE - RAF-A=+—BLHFE
EEEX ZCPDEIIBMENT :

Attending presentation/
forums/seminars relevant
to the Groups’ business or

directors’ duties

Reading regulatory rules HFHEAKEXBRES
and their updates BEAEERE W
RMEEERARRHER g ERE

4 4

4 4

4 4

v v

v v

v v

v v

v v

v v

M R-E-—HF+—A-+—HEZE-

ARABEREACEERR  BERBRE-F—AES
B=+—BILFENEHAR 2 BHH L2 50
RHEH - R BEEREAARARBAREMAR
ARRWEHEES RGBS 2 M RAARAE
HAEME BT -

BEt+t=KEHARLA 20155k
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BOARD COMMITTEES

To facilitate the work of the Board, Board committees have been
set up with written terms of reference which clearly define the role,
authority, and functions of each commitiee. Each Board committee
is required to report their decisions or recommendations fo the
Board. Details of Directors’ atfendance at the Board commitiee
meetings during the year ended 31 March 2015 are shown on
page 36 of this annual report.

The role and function of, and a summary of work done by, each
Board committee during the year ended 31 March 2015 are sef
out below:

Audit Committee

Composition

The Audit Committee consists of five members, all of whom are
Independent Non-Execufive Directors, and is chaired by an
Independent Non-Executive Director.

The current members of this Committee are Ir James Chiu (Chairman),
Professor lee Chack Fan, Mr lain Ferguson Bruce, Mr Francis
Goutenmacher and Mr Chan Kok Chung, Johnny. None of them
is a partner or former pariner of Messrs Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu,
the Company's external auditor.

Role and Function

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include oversight of the
Group's financial reporting system and inferal control procedures,
review of the Group's financial information, and review of the
relationship  with the external auditor of the Company. This
Committee also meets regularly with the Company's external
audifor to discuss the audit process and accounting issues.

Summary of Work Done
The following is a summary of the work performed by the Audit
Committee during the year ended 31 March 2015:

1. Review of the annual results of the Group for the year ended

31 March 2014;

2. Review of the interim results of the Group for the six months
ended 30 September 2014;

3. Review of the Group's financial information, financial
reporting system, internal control procedures, and financial
and accounting policies and practices;
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Approval of remuneration and ferms of engagement of the
external auditor;

Recommendation fo the Board fo re-appoint the extermal
auditor at the 2014 annual general meeting;

Review of the external auditor's independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process, and
review of policy on engaging the external auditor to supply
non-audit services;

Review of the audit plan for the financial year ended 31

March 2015

Review of the Company's systems of financial confrols,
infernal control and risk management;

Review of the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, fraining programmes and budget of the Group's
accounting and financial reporting function;

Review of internal/external auditor's  significant  findings
and recommendations, and monitoring of the subsequent

imp\emenfoﬁon;

Review of the effectiveness of the internal audit function of

the Group;

Approval of the 2016 intfernal audit plans;
Review of the continuing connected transactions;
Review of the whistleblowing policy; and

Meeting with the external auditor, in the absence of the
Executive Directors.

Remuneration Committee

Composition

The Remuneration Committee consists of three members, the

majority of whom are Independent Non-Executive Directors. This

Committee is chaired by an Independent Non-Executive Director.

The current members of this Committee are Ir James Chiu (Chairman),

Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom and Professor Lee Chack Fan.
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Role and Function

The Remuneration Committee has been established to ensure there
is a formal and transparent procedure for seffing policy on the
remuneration of Executive Directors and for fixing the remuneration
packages for all Directors. This Committee is mainly responsible
for making recommendations to the Board on the Company's
policy and sfructure for remuneration of Directors and  Senior
Management, and making recommendations on the manpower
deployment plan. This Committee also determines, with delegated
responsibility, remuneration packages of individual Executive
Directors and Senior Management, and makes recommendations
on remuneration of Non-Executive Directors.

Summary of Work Done
The following is a summary of the work performed by the
Remuneration Committee during the year ended 31 March 2015

1. Approval of revised Directors' fees of Executive Directors;

2. Recommendation of revised Directors’ fees of Independent
Non-Executive Directors;

3. Recommendation of Director's fee of a new Independent
Non-Executive Director;

4. Approval of revised remuneration of a Senior Management;

5. Approval of annual bonus of an Executive Director and a
Senior Management; and

6. Review of the Company’s remuneration policy.
Remuneration Policy

The Company ensures that the remuneration offered is appropriate
for the duties, in line with market practice and pay levels, and
effective in atfracting, refaining and motivating employees (including
Executive Directors). For Non-Executive Directors, the Company
ensures that they are sufficiently but not excessively compensated
for their efforts and time dedicated to the Company. No individual
determines his or her own remuneration.
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The remuneration of Directors is determined with reference to
market competitiveness, job responsibilities, and performance of
the Company and the individual. Details of the remuneration of
Direcfors during the year ended 31 March 2015 are sef out on
page 126 of this annual report. With effect from 1 April 2015,
(o) the director’s fee of each of Mr Stephen Hung, Mr Peter Coker
lee Jr., Mr lau Ko Yuen, Tom and Mr Walter Craig Power has
been increased by HK$15,750 per annum to HK$330,750 per
annum; (b the director’s fee of Ir James Chiu has been increased
by HK$40,950 per annum to HK$859,950 per annum; [c) the
director’s fee of Professor lee Chack Fan has been increased by
HK$42,210 per annum to HK$886,410 per annum; (d] the
director's fee of Mr lain Ferguson Bruce has been increased by
HK$45,990 per annum to HK$965,790 per annum; (e] the
director's fee of Mr Francis Goutenmacher has been increased
by HK$60,900 per annum to HK$1,278,900 per annum;
and (f) the director’s fee of Mr Chan Kok Chung, Johnny has
been increased by HK$20,000 per annum to HK$420,000
per annum. During the year ended 31 March 2015, the
remunerafion paid fo one Senior Management was within the
band between HK$1,000,001 to 5,000,000, and one Senior
Management was within the band between HK$5,000,001 1o
HK$10,000,000.

Nomination Committee

Composition

The Nomination Committee consists of five members, the majority
of whom are Independent Non-Executive Directors. This Committee
is chaired by an Independent Non-Executive Director.

The current members of this Committee are Professor lee Chack
Fan (Chairman), Mr Stephen Hung, Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom, Mr lain
Ferguson Bruce and Mr Francis Goutenmacher.

Role and Function

This Committee was established to ensure there is a formal,
considered and transparent procedure for the appointment of
new Directors. The duties of this Committee include reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board and, if necessary,
recommending changes. It is also responsible for identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become members of the Board,
selecting or making recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals to be nominated for directorships, and reviewing the
effectiveness of the Directors.
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Summary of Work Done
The following is a summary of the work performed by the
Nomination Committee during the year ended 31 March 2015:

1. Recommended the appointment of a new Independent Non-
Executive Director;

2. Nominated the refiring Direcfors for re-election at the 2014
Annual General Meeting;

3. Reviewed the siructure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience| of the Board;

4.  Assessed the independence of the Independent Non-
Executive Directors; and

5. Reviewed the Company's policy on nomination of Directors.

Nomination Procedure

The Nomination Committee reviews the structure, size and
composition (including skills, knowledge and experience] of the
Board and makes recommendations fo the Board regarding any
proposed changes.

Appointments of new Directors are first considered by the
Nomination Committee. In considering the oppointment of a
Director, this Committee applies criteria such as professional and
educational background, relevant experience, and qualifications.
The recommendations of this Committee are then put fo the Board
for consideration and approval. Thereafter, all Directors appointed
by the Board are subject to election by shareholders af the next
general meefing (in the case of filling casual vacancy) or next
annual general meeting (in the case of an addition to the Board)
after their appointment.

Finance and Investment Committee

Composition

The Finance and Investment Committee consists of five members,
and is chaired by an Independent Non-Executive Director. The
current members of this Committee are Mr lain Ferguson Bruce (Chairman),
Mr Stephen Hung, Mr Peter lee Coker Jr., Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom
and Mr Walter Craig Power.
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Role and Function

The Finance and Investment Committee is mainly responsible
for making recommendations to the Board on matters relating to
investing in assets, evaluating the budgets of all key expenditures,
reviewing financial performance against forecast, and considering

dividend payout.

Summary of Work Done
The following is a summary of the work performed by the Finance
and Investment Committee during the year ended 31 March

2015:

1. Review and evaluation of actualfo-budget results for the year
ended 31 March 2014 and for the six months ended 30
September 2014 (including budget of all key expenditures);

2. Review of financial performance against forecast;

3. Discussion on changes in accounting standards which may
affect the Group's consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2014 and for the six months ended
30 September 2014; and

4. Consideration of the payment of the 2014 final dividend
and 2015 interim dividend.

Disclosures Committee

Composition

The Disclosures Committee consists of three members, and is
chaired by an Independent Non-Executive Director. The current
members of this Committee are Mr lain Ferguson Bruce (Chairman),
Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom and Mr Peter Lee Coker Jr.

Role and Function

The Disclosures Committee is mainly responsible for overseeing
disclosures to shareholders, the public, and relevant statutory
authorities, and for overseeing compliance with any applicable
legal requirements for disclosure.

Summary of Work Done

The work done by the Disclosures Commitiee during the year
ended 31 March 2015 included the review of the content of
announcementfs relating to the annual results of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2014, and the interim results of the Group
for the six months ended 30 September 2014.
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Corporate Governance Committee TEERELTE®
Composition AR

The Corporate Governance Committee consists of three members, X EARAZEGH =K EBMENK FEEFRRKBHKE
the majority of whom are Independent NonExecutive Directors. BBV IFHITEE - AZESHBUFNTEFEEE
This Committee is chaired by on Independent NonExecutive & RZEB @R HERES TR (ERF)  2IRRLE
Director. The current members of this Committee are Ir James Chiv R &+ 445K °

(Chairman), Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom and Mr lain Ferguson Bruce.

Role and Function AR

The Corporate Governance Committee was established with  GEEARZESZRAYNEEEZREE  BITo¥EE0R
delegated responsibility of the Board fo perform the corporate  BEE R#E—FMB A AR ZBEEAR -

governance duties and fo further strengthen the Company's

corporate governance.

The Corporate Governance Committee is mainly responsible for ¥ ERZEGEE %JE&EHN MARBEERE
developing and regularly reviewing the Company's compliance ﬁ%ﬁ&ﬁ%%ﬁ?ﬁiﬁﬂ”z BT WMEERREHER -
with legal, regulafory and corporate governance standards and

makes recommendations fo the Board.

Summary of Work Done TEHE

The following is a summary of the work performed by the DHEEARZEENEE—_ZT—HAF-A=+—BILFE
Corporate Governance Committiee during the year ended 31 ZIT’HE%%ZZDT-

March 2015

1. Reviewed the Company's corporate governance policy; 1. EHARRZEEERBE

2. Reviewed the training and continuous professional 2. BANEENSRERBZBIIRFETEERR
development of Directors and Senior Management;

3. Reviewed the Company’s compliance with the Code for the 3. R ARNBREE T —UEF=ZA=Z+—HLF

year ended 31 March 2014 and for the six months ended ERBEZZT-—NFAA=THIEREAZEF
30 September 2014; and STAIRER - &

4.  Reviewed the Company's disclosure in the Corporate 4. BN ARARBE_T—NF=A=+—HIF
Governance Report for the year ended 31 March 2014, EzEER $E¢Z?§E§ o
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PYE Committee

Composition

The current members of the PYE Commitlee are Ir James Chiu
(Chairman), Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom, Professor Llee Chack Fan and
Mt lain Ferguson Bruce.

Role and Function

This Committee is mainly responsible for overseeing, monitoring
and supervising the overall management and operation of the
construction business of the Company

Summary of Work Done

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the PYE Committee
reviewed the results of the construction business of the Company
for the year ended 31 March 2014, and for the periods ended
31 July 2014, 30 September 2014 and 31 January 2015

Executive Committee

Composition
The Executive Committee consists of five members. The current
members of this Committee are Mr Stephen Hung, Mr Peter lee
Coker Jr., Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom, Mr Walter Craig Power and Mr
Richard Lico.

Role and Function
This Committee is mainly responsible for handling the management
and operations of the dayto-day business of the Group.

Management Functions

The division of responsibilities between the Board and
Management are clearly sef out in writing to ensure that there is @
segregation of duties with clear accountability.

The Board, under the leadership of the Chairman of the
Company, has delegated all the dayfoday operations and
management of the Company's business to Management, under
the leadership of the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
Management is required to report fo the Board on their decisions
or recommendations.
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DEEARE

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securifies
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) sef
out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct
regarding securifies fransactions by the Directors.

All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the
Company, that they complied with the required standard set out in
the Model Code during the year ended 31 March 2015.

The Company has also adopted a code of conduct governing
securities fransactions by employees who are likely to be in
possession of unpublished price-sensitive information in relation to

the Group.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the consolidated financial statements of the Group. With the
assistance of the accounts department, the Direcfors ensure that the
consolidated financial statements of the Group are prepared on @
going concern basis and in accordance with statutory requirements
and applicable financial reporting standards. The Directors also
ensure that the consolidated financial statements of the Group are
published in a timely manner.

The statement by the external auditor of the Company regarding
their reporting responsibilities of the consolidated financial
statements of the Group is sef ouf in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 79 and 80 of this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secrefary supports the Chairmen, Board and Board
Committees by ensuring good information flow and that Board
policy and procedures are followed. She is responsible for advising
the Board on governance matters and facilitates the induction and
professional development of Directors. The Company Secretary is
also responsible to the Group’s compliance with all obligations of
the Listing Rules and Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share
Repurchases.
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The Company Secrefary is an employee of the Company and is
appointed by the Board. She reports to the Joint Chairmen and
the Board as a whole. All Directors have access to the advice and
services of the Company Secrefary in respect of their duties and
the effective operation of the Board and Board Committee.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Company Secretary
undertook over 15 hours of professional training to update her skills
and knowledge.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

At the Company’s Annual General Meeting held on 24 September
2014,
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the Company’s external auditor for

the financial year ended 31 March 2015

shareholders approved the re-appointment of Messrs

The fees paid to Messrs Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu for audit and
non-audit services for the year ended 31 March 2015 (and the
comparative figures for the year ended 31 March 2014) are as
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follows:

2015 2014
—E—FRF — g
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FTET FHET
Audit fee ZEE R 4,411 4,456

Non-audit services fees FZEREE R
Interim review fee FEEMER 950 950
Tax services B R 407 195
Provident fund audit UNEE2 T 26 23
1,383 1,168

The Audit Committee of the Company is responsible for approving
the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor
and ensuring the continuing objectivity and independence of
the external auditor. The Audit Commitiee of the Company has
resolved to recommend the re-appointment of Messrs Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu as external auditor of the Company. This
resolufion has been endorsed by the Board and is subject to final
approval and authorization by the shareholders at the 2015
Annual General Meeting.
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TERERBME

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

Introduction

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the Group's system
of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness. In meeting its
responsibility, the Board seeks fo increase risk awareness across
the Group's business operations and has put in place policies
and procedures which provide a framework for controls and
management of risks.

The Board is also committed to managing risks and monitoring its
business and financial activities in a manner which enables it to
maximize profitable business opportunities, avoid or reduce risks
which can cause loss or reputational domage, ensure complionce
with applicable laws and regulations, and enhance resilience to
external events.

Internal Control

The Group has had in place an integrated infernal control
framework, issued by COSO (the Commitiee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission) in the United
States, in complying with Code. Infernal control is defined as a
process designed fo provide reasonable assurance regarding the
achievement of objectives in relation fo the following:

e Effectiveness and efficiency of operations;
e Reliability of financial reporting; and
e Compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

The Group's internal control framework is divided into five inter-
relafed components: control environment, risk assessment, confrol
activities, monitoring and  information & communication. It serves
as criteria for the effectiveness of the internal control system in
supporting the achievement of the separate but overlapping
operational, financial reporting and compliance objectives.

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group's system of
internal control and assessment of risks. The responsibility of day-
to-day management of operational risks and the implementation of
mitigation measures lies with Management.
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Built info the Group's system are checks and balances such that
no single party can “monopolise” a transaction, activity or process
fo conceal irregularities. Hence, Management has underiaken the
following additional checks and balances procedures:

e A clear functional organizational structure was set up
with well-defined lines of authority, accountability and
responsibilities. Each division clearly understands their scope
of business and authorities delegated by Management;

o A monthly reporting system on the performance of works
confracts, and actual financial performance results against
budgets was esfablished. ;

e The Board reviews annually, in particular, adequacy of

resources, staff qualifications and  experience, fraining
programme and budget of the Group's accounting and
financial reporting function as required under the Listing

Rules;

®  The Audit Commitiee assesses and monitors the effectiveness
of internal confrol system in defecting fraud and other
imegularities by reviewing the work of the Group's infemal
audit function and its findmgs; and

e The Company is aware of confrolling price-sensitive
information and its obligations under the listing Rules, and
has in place a disclosure of price-sensitive information policy.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the
Group's infernal control systems during the year ended 31 March
2015, and was not aware of any significant issues that would
have adverse impact on the effectiveness and adequacy of the
infernal control system of the Group. Such review covers all
material controls, including financial, operational and compliance
confrols, risk management functions, and consider the adequacy of
resources, sfaff qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Group's accounting and financial reporting
function.
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TEERBRE

Risk Management | fe i I8

The Group has established an enterprise risk management AEBEERY —ECXRBREEEESR  UHRAETE
framework to identify potential events that may be affecting the ~ RNEBEZ BEEFH - HHEBRN KA AEBASEEB
Group, fo manage risks within ifs risk oppefite and to provide — 1ZIEEARIRIE o IER A =B GRMANK - Ui TEE
reasonable assurance regarding the achievement of the Group's CERZESREERVALRBEERARNEL
objectives. It consists of three lines of defence to provide S A& :

Management, Audit Committee and the Board with the confidence

that the Company is managing ifs risks and they are:

Frist line of
defense
E—EHR

SENIOR

Second line of CORPORATE Business planning, policy and d i
A pI'OCS ure sel |ng, MANAGEMENT
defense OVERSIGHT FUNCTIONS functional oversight SQEEE
ERCUES  ASEani RE  REREFHE B S

Third line of
defense
E=EHR

THE BOARD
=R

(Audit Committee)
(BRZEERE)

This enterprise risk management framework will enable the — BLIEREBREREREARR BN EBHELE -
Company fo have the following potential benefits:-

*  Greater likelihood of achieving business objectives; ° BAWREREKEE:

e Higher share prices over the longer term; o RBFIFRE:

®  Reduction in management time spent “fire fighting”; o WA E G R TR B

®  Increased likelihood of change initiatives being achieved:; . REEBEGREREHATEE

®  More focus internally on doing the right things properly; e FRECANEMEHEMEEREENSE:
®  Beftter basis for strategy seffing; e HIERMEERILERE:

e Achievement of competitive advantage; °  IMRBFED:

e Fewer sudden shocks and unwelcome surprises; and s RBUORBRERTHMEBZLEZEBIEMN K
e Early mover into new business areas. s TEMEBEBEELK-
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Internal Audit

The internal audit function of the Group reviews the Group's
internal control system, including assessing the adequacy and
effectiveness of the design and operating effectiveness of the
infernal controls as well as management oversight of the in-scope
areas and processes. Infernal control review is conducted at least
once a year. The procedures consist of process evaluations through
inferviews with various personnel of the in-scope processes, review
of relevant policies and procedures, and sample festing of controls.
During the internal audit process, the Group's internal audit function
identifies internal control weakness, makes recommendations and
obtains remedial action plan from Management with timelines,
for strengthening the infernal control of the Group. Internal audit
function of the Group will also follow up with Management status
of remedial action plan.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the inferal audit function
of the Group has conducted a review on the Group's internal
control system. Internal audit report, containing observations,
recommendations and remedial action plan, has been submitted to
the Audit Committee and the Board.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND
SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

In order fo enhance shareholder and investor understanding
of the Group'’s business, the Company has established several
communication channels with shareholders and investors, including
(i) printed copies of corporate documents (including but not
limited to annual reports, interim reports, circulars and nofices of
shareholder meetings); [ii) general meetings where shareholders
can offer comments and exchange views with the Board; [iii) the
Company’s website:  www.Xlll.com; and (iv) the Company's
share registrar with whom shareholders register their shares. The
Company has established a shareholders’ communication policy
fo set ouf the Company's procedures in providing the shareholders
and investment community with ready, equal and timely access to
balanced and understandable information about the Company.

In addition, shareholders are encouraged to attend all general
meetings of the Company, where the Joint Chairmen of the
Company, Chairmen of Board Committees, other Directors and
the external auditor are available to answer questions on the
Croup's businesses. In order to conduct the general meetfings in a
transparent manner, it has been the Company’s practice to conduct
poll voting at general meetings since 2005, way ahead of poll
voting being made mandatory for all general meetings effective on

1 January 2009.
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In addition to the annual general meeting, the Company held
one special general meefing during the year ended 31 March
2015. The Joint Chairmen of the Board, Chairmen of the Board
committees affended the annual general meefing and special
general meeting and were available to answer questions.

The last general meeting was held on 19 December 2014 af
Mandarin - Oriental,
5 Connaught Road, Central, Hong Kong for the purpose of

Victoria Room, 2nd Floor, Hong Kong,
considering, inter alia, placing of shares and convertible bonds.
The resolutions put forward are set out below:

e Authorise the increase in authorised share capital; and

e Approve the placing agreement, the creation and issue of
the convertible bonds and the specific mandate fo allot and
issue new shares pursuant fo the placing agreement, and
such number of new shares as may be required fo be allotted
and issued upon exercise of the conversion rights attaching
fo the convertible bonds pursuant to the placing agreement.

Al the above resolutions were passed at the said special
general meefing. The results of the poll voting are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 19 December 2014, which
have been published on the websites of the Company and the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

Under the Company's byelaws, shareholders holding notf less
than onetenth of the fofal voting rights at general meetings of
the Company shall have the right, by written requisition to the
Company, fo require a special general meeting to be called for
the business specified in such requisition.

Also, shareholders holding not less than onetwentieth of the tofal
voting rights at general meetings or not less than 100 shareholders
have to right fo submit a written request to the Company sfafing the
resolufion infended fo be moved at the annual general meeting.

Shareholders may send their enquiries requiring the Board's
aftention to the Company Secretary ot the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong at 2901 AIA Centrdl,
1 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.

Defails of the inferests of Direcfors and shareholders in the shares of
the Company are shown on pages 60 to 61 and pages 71 to 76
of this annual report respectively.
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OTHER CORPORATE INFORMATION

Memorandum and Bye-laws

There were no significant changes to the Company's memorandum
and bye-laws during the year ended 31 March 2015.

Key Corporate Dates

Events

B

Announcement of 2015 interim results
N ZFE—RFRHIES
Announcement of 2015 annual results
AT —RFEFERA

2015 annual general meeting

—T-hEERRBFEAE

Public Float Capitalisation

The public float capitalisation of the Company was approximately
HK$1,666 million on 31 March 2015, and approximately
HK$ 1,832 million on the date of this report.

By order of the Board

Mui Ching Hung, Joanna
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 19 June 2015
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Dates
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20 November 2014
—E-mE+—HAZ+H
19 June 2015
—E—RFATNEB
11 August 2015
—ET-RENA+—H
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TERAESETHRS

Louis XIlI' Holdings Llimited  (the

subsidiaries, the “Group”) is committed to building harmonious and

"Company”, together with its

sustainable communities, as a responsible corporate cifizen.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company places strong emphasis on sound infernal controls,
appropriate risk-assessment procedures and transparency to its
shareholders and the public.

The Company believes that a high standard of corporate
govemance is key fo sustainable business development. The
Company strives to comply with all relevant rules, regulations and
laws and adopt best practices.

The Group's internal audit function tests the effectiveness of the
Group's infernal control measures.

In addition, the Group has established a whistleblowing policy
and system for employees and those who deal with the Group
to raise concerns, in confidence, with the Audit Committee about
possible improprieties in any matter related to the Group.

QUALTY MANAGEMENT

The Group has established a comprehensive supply chain risk
management strategy. Suppliers and subcontractors are selected by
Management fo ensure consistent service quality and delivery, and
their performance is regularly evaluated and recorded. Potential
suppliers and subcontracfors are invited fo tender in accordance
with relevant project specifications. The selection process includes
completion of a Quality, Health and Safety Questionnaire, a vital
evaluation tool.

The Group has also deployed other quality-management systems
include the Plan-Do-Check-Act Improvement Cycle, which ensures
confinuous improvement in service quality and, thus, customer
satisfaction. It comprises:

e [SO Q001 (Quality Management System)

o ISO 14001 (Environment Management System]

e OHSAS 18001
Assessment Series)

o ISO 50001 Certification (Energy Management System)

(Occupational Health and  Safety
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STAFF DEVELOPMENT

The Group recognizes that its employees are key fo achieving its
sustainability goals and longterm business success. The Group has
established a variety of mechanisms fo ensure that all employees
enjoy a fair and healthy work environment, where they feel valued,
included, and motivated to give of their best.

The Group’s Career Development and Advancement Plan
maximises the strengths of individuals and encourage employees to
advance in their careers. The Group also encourages confinuous
learning and provides all employees with a wide spectrum of
training programmes.

SAFETY AND HEALTH

The Group's Safety, Health, Environment & Quality Policy Statement
(S.H.E.Q) sefs out guidelines for a safe working environment for all
employees, and encourages a "safefyfirst” mindset throughout the

Group.

Furthermore, the Group's Zero Accident goal is a critical initiative
that records all occupational accidents or illnesses for thorough
investigation to idenfify their root causes and minimise or eliminate

recurrence.

In 2014, the Group organised a number of health, safety and
environmental training programmes for staff and  subcontractor
workers. Through sharing the latest developments in safety
management, indusfry regulations and legislative updates, the
Group encouraged its partners to adhere fo the highest health and
safety standards.

The Group has also participated in a new safety promotion
programme  involving health checks and procedures to prevent
heat stroke at construction sites, jointly initiated by the Hong Kong
Construction Industry Employees General Union and the Labour

Department of the HKSAR.
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TERAESETHRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group places equal importance on consfruction and
conservation. Throughout the vear, the Group continved tfo
review and finetune all its processes fo make them even more
environmentally responsible. The Group's daily operations adhered
fo a sfrict environmental policy that ensured green procedures
across the board.

Environmental sustainability is a crucial guiding principle in all our
construction projects of the Group. The Group actively promoted
green buildings through the use of sustainable materials, energy-
efficient design, and environmentally-friendly landscaping fixtures
and fittings wherever applicable.

The Group frequently partnered community and environmental
organisations fo educate and encourage its associates and sub-
confractors fo conserve natural resources.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group cares about society and gladly participate in activities
that promote harmony and wellness. Throughout the vyear, the
Group reached out fo the greater community through involvement in
corporate programmes, volunfeering, donations and sponsorships,
making good use of our business strengths and resources.

The Group has organised and attended over 10 community
activities, large and small, in cooperation with numerous non-
profit and governmental organisations, fouching the lives of a wide
range of people.

For insfance, the Group's volunteer team joined the Neighbourhood
Advice-Action Council to visit a group of elders in Lam Tei, Tuen
Mun. It is to thank the senior cifizens for the significant contribution
they have made fo the development of Hong Kong.

Steps were also taken to provide a support network for families
of construction workers suffering hardships resuling from job-
related ailments. “A Summer Fun Day” on 2 August 2014 was co-
organised by the Group and the Lighthouse Club. The Group's
volunteer team joined 12 families on a visit to the MTR Super
Operations Control Centre (OCC) in Tsing Yi and then sat down

to a buffet lunch at hotel.

To train talent for the indusiry, the Group sponsored various
programmes including “Engineering and You", organised by The
Hong Kong Institution of Engineers, and “Build a Better Hong
Kong"”, organised by the Construction Indusiry Council.
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Directors’ Report
ESRWmEE

The directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of Louis Xlll Holdings Limited (the
"Company”) and ifs subsidiaries [collectively referred fo as the “Group”)

for the year ended 31 March 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company.

The activities of ifs principal subsidiaries, associates, joint ventures
and joint operations at 31 March 2015 are set out in nofe 43 to
the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2015 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page

1 of the annual report and in the accompanying nofes to the
consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the five largest customers
and the single largest customer of the Group accounted for
approximately 83% and 39% of the revenve of the Group,
respectively. The five largest suppliers and the single largest
suppliers of the Group during the year accounted for approximately
34% and 20% of the purchases of the Group, respectively.

As far as the directors are aware, none of the directors, their close
associates, within the meaning of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong
Kong Stock Exchange’) (the “Listing Rules”), or those shareholders
which to the knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of the
Company's share capital have an inferest in any of the five largest
customers and/or five largest suppliers of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2015
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Directors’ Report
EERHBESE

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Group currently maintains a variety of credit facilities
At 31 March
2015, the Group's fotal bank borrowings amounted to

fo meef ifs working capital requirements.

approximately HK$1,586,127,000 with approximately
HK$487,610,000 repayable within one year and approximately
HK$1,098,517,000 repayable more than two years but not
exceeding six years. In addition, the Group also has outstanding
convertible bonds with face value of HK$2,218,542,350 and
liability component as at 31 March 2015 of HK$409,303,000.
The convertible bonds mature in February 2025. Cash, bank
balances and deposits ot 31 March 2015 amounted fo
approximately HK$3,221,683,000. The Group's current ratio
was approximately 1.7 and the Group's fotal borrowings fo equity
ratio was approximately 0.3 at 31 March 2015

FIXED ASSETS

During the year, the Group spent approximately HK$74,155,000
on property, plant and equipment for the purpose of expanding ifs
business.

In addition, the Group spent approximately HK$1,700,925,000
for the hotel under development erected on the Cotai Strip of
Macau.

Details of these and other movements in the hotel under
development, property, plant and equipment and prepaid land
lease payments of the Group during the year are set out in
notes 14, 15 and 16 to the consolidated financial statements

respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Defails of movements in the issued share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE OPTIONS

Particulars of the share option schemes and defails of movements
in the share options of the Company and Falloncroft Investments
Limited ("Falloncroft”) during the year are set out in note 32 fo the
consolidated financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company's reserves available for distribution fo shareholders
as af 31 March 2015 comprised the refained profits of
HK$1,656,000 (2014: HK$13,491,000) and contributed
surplus of HK$35,497,000 (2014: HK$35,497,000).

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up tfo the date
of this report were:

Executive directors

Stephen Hung (Joint Chairman)

Peter Lee Coker Jr. (Joint Chairman)

Lau Ko Yuen, Tom (Deputy Chairman)
Walter Craig Power (Chief Executive Officer)

Independent non-executive directors

James Chiu, OBE, Jp

Llee Chack Fan, GBS, SBS, JP

lain Ferguson Bruce

Francis Goutenmacher

Chan Kok Chung, Johnny (appoinfed on 21 November 2014

In accordance with Byedaw 86(2) of the Company’s Byelaws,
Mr Chan Kok Chung, Johnny will refire at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. In addition, in accordance with Byelaws
87(1) and 87(2) of the Company’s Byelaws, Mr Stephen Hung,
Professor Llee Chack Fan and Mr Francis Goutenmacher will refire
by rofation at the forthcoming annual general meetfing. All refiring
directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

Non-executive directors are appointed for a specific term of
approximately three years, and they are subject fo retirement by
rofation under the Company’s Byelaws.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors proposed for reelection at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service confract with the Group
which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than sfatutory compensation.
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Directors’ Report
EERHBESE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

At 31 March 2015, the interests and short positions of the directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any associated
corporation [within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance [the “SFO")), as recorded in the register of the
Company required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers [the “Model Code”) in the Listing Rules
were as follows:

Interests in shares and underlying shares of the
Company

EENRD - HERODRESZ

TE-RF=ZR=+—H ARAEFREETHA
BNARBIHEMREEE (ExREFLREED ([7F
HNETERD]]) EXVER) 2 Bt - RN REFTHE
REZBF LB GENEIS2ZEEFEREARREZLMA
ZHEEFAR  IRBELETRUNZ LT ARERETE
R ZBFEFU(BETR ) MAERTAEARA R
BEBRM 2 EEIORRIAT

KA R BB AN K AR B8 B 2 #E a6

Number of
underlying shares Total
[in respect of number of
share opfions shares and Approximate
Number of (unlisted equity underlying percentage of
sharesofthe  derivatives)) of the shares of the shareholding
Name of director Capacity Long position Company held Company held Company held of the Company
FARE
BRBREZ
(FLHRE
FEALTE fT£I8) FREAAARY BELFRE
EEpg af #e Ro8E REROHA REBRHEH ZBREDL
[Nofe)
(W)
Stephen Hung Beneficial owner long position - 3,600,000 3,600,000 0.39%
HoKE EERAA i)
Peter Lee Coker r. Beneficial owner long postion 5,698,600 3,600,000 9,298,600 1.01%
EEREA #a
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom Beneficicl owner Long position - 3,600,000 3,600,000 0.39%
sk BEERAA e
Walter Croig Power Beneficicl owner long posiion - 3,600,000 3,600,000 0.39%
EZRBA e
Jomes Chiu Beneficial owner Long position - 360,000 360,000 0.04%
BES ERRAA #a
lee Chack Fan Beneficial owner long position - 360,000 360,000 0.04%
% BEERAA e
lain Ferguson Bruce Beneficial owner long position 81711 360,000 441,711 0.05%
hEt EERAA e
Francis Goutenmacher Beneficial owner long position - 360,000 360,000 0.04%
EERBA e
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (Continued)

Note: The share options were granted to Mr Stephen Hung, Mr Pefer lee
Coker Jr.,
Chiu, Professor Lee Chack Fan, Mr lain Ferguson Bruce and Mr Francis

Mr Llau Ko Yuen, Tom, Mr Walter Craig Power, Ir James

Goutenmacher on 12 July 2013 under the share option scheme of the
Company adopted on 7 September 2005 (the “Share Option Scheme”)
and entitle each of them fo subscribe for shares of the Company upon
exercise af an exercise price of HK$6.80 per share. The share options
2 July 2013, as to a further
one-third upon topping out of the hotel under development on the Cotai

shall vest in 3 tranches, as to one-third on 1

Strip of Macau and as to the final one+hird upon opening of the hotel
under development on the Cotai Strip of Macau. The share options are
exercisable from the date on which the share options are vested until 11
July 2017 (both dates inclusive).

none of the

March 2015

directors or chief executives of the Company had any interest or

Save as disclosed above, at 31 ,
short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any associated corporation [within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register of the Company
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
nofified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
pursuant fo the Model Code.
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Directors’ Report
EERHBESE

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE BARNOIEREE 2ZH

SHARES OR DEBENTURES

(i) Share option scheme (i) EERRHEETE
Defails of movements in the share opfions of the Company RARRBE_ZT—RAF=A=1T—HLEFER
granfed under the Share Opfion Scheme during the year BEREABRLZEREZS 2FB0T

ended 31 March 2015 are as follows:

Closing
Number of shares of the Company to be price of the
issued upon exercise of the share opfions Company’s
REREEAEARAARETZROHE shares
Outstanding Granfed  Reclassified lopsed  Outstanding Exercise  immediately
Date at during during during at price  before date Exercise
Name of granfee of grant 1.4.2014 the year the year theyear  31.3.2015 per share of grant period
RZ2-m%E R-Z-1f SERM
mA-H Fh ZB=t-H AHARLE
ERAKS REBH  HAGE  FARE  ENSE FRAXN HAGE SROKEE ROKTE i
Directors
g%
Stephen Hung 12.7.2013 3,600,000 - - - 3,600,000 6.80 6.45 Note |
HokRs “E-=H{+A+CH ik
Peter Lee Coker . 12.7.2013 3,600,000 - - - 3,600,000 6.80 6.45 Note 1
ZE-ZELATCH liEd
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom 12.7.2013 3,600,000 - - - 3,600,000 6.80 6.45 Note |
HsR “T-ZFtAtCH i
Walter Craig Power 12.7.2013 3,600,000 - - - 3,600,000 6.80 6.45 Noe 1
“T-ZEtA+CH liEd
Jomes Chiy 12.7.2013 360,000 - - - 360,000 6.80 645 Note 1
BHES ZE-ZEtATCH ik
lee Chack Fan 12.7.2013 360,000 - - - 360,000 6.80 6.45 Note 1
FRH ZE-ZELATCH liEd
lain Ferguson Bruce 12.7.2013 360,000 - - - 360,000 6.80 6.45 Note |
Bt “T-ZFtAtCR i
Francis Goutenmacher 12.7.2013 360,000 - - - 360,000 6.80 6.45 Note |
“T-ZHtAtCH liEd
Sub Tofal 15,840,000 - - - 15,840,000
it
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE BARODNEEE 225 ()
SHARES OR DEBENTURES (Continued)

i) FBEhAEstEl (8)

(i) Share option scheme (Continued)

Closing
Number of shares of the Company to be price of the
issued upon exercise of the share options Company's
RERERTEARAARRTZROEA shares
Outstanding Granfed  Reclassified Lopsed  Outstanding Exercise  immediately
Date ot during during during at price before date Exercise
Name of grantee of grant 1.4.2014 the year the year theyear  31.3.2015 per share of grant period
R=2-IF R-Z-1fF RER
mA-H £ ZA=+-H AHAALE
ERARE REH  HATE  FARE  ENSE FRAM HATE  SRAEE ROUDE TEH
Employees (In aggregate]
{8 (A7)
1272013 3,600,000 - - - 3,600,000 6.80 6.45 Noe 1
“E-=H+A+CH ik
12.7.2013 400,000 - 400,000 - 800,000 6.80 6.45 Note 3
“E-=#+A+-H [Note 2) M3
(Wit2)
1272013 1,200,000 - - (300,000) 900,000 6.80 6.45 Note 4
“B-ZE+ATZH Htitd
1272013 1,160,000 - - - 1,160,000 6.80 6.45 Note 5
“F-ZFtAfCA iGN
12.7.2013 1,150,000 - - - 1,150,000 6.80 6.45 Note 6
“Z-ZELAtZH o
12.7.2013 400,000 - 60,000 - 460,000 6.80 6.45 Note 7
“E-Z£EATZH [Note 2] WizE7
(Hii2)
12.7.2013 138,000 - - - 138,000 6.80 6.45 127201410
ZE-=E+ATCH 11.7.2017
“T-mF
tAtzRE
Bt
tAt+-A
30.9.2013 985,000 - - (138,000 847,000 6.90 6.89 Note 8
—Z-ZFNR=TH fitis
15.10.2013 289,000 - - - 289,000 8.10 7.23 Note 9
“T-Zf1+AtEA Ft9
18.7.2014 - 229,000 - - 229,000 6.80 5.98 Note 10
Z2-MELATNA ft310
Sub Totol 9,322,000 229,000 460,000 (438,000 9,573,000
It
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ESRHEE

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE

SHARES OR DEBENTURES (Continued)

(i) Share option scheme (Continued)

BARDRERR 22 (&)

(i)

B RcEsTE ()

Closing
Number of shares of the Company to be price of the
issued upon exercise of the share opfions Company's
RERBETERAAARBTZROYE shares
Outstanding Granted  Redlassified Lopsed  Outstanding Exercise  immediately
Date at during during during at price  before date Exercise
Name of grantee ofgrant  1.4.2014 the year the year theyear 3132015 pershare of grant period
R=-2-WE R-B-1% RER
mA-H R ZAZt-8H AEAALT
ARARE RWEH  HATE  FARE  EN2E ERAR HAGE SROEE ROUTE G
Other Parficipants
(In aggregate)
Hth2HE (A3 12.7.2013 400,000 - (400,000) - - 6.80 6.45 Note 3
ZE-ZE+rA+CH [Note 2] HizE3
(Wit2)
12.7.2013 12,000 - - (12,000 - 6.80 6.45 127201410
ZZ-=FtATCH 11.7.2017
“E-pE
tAt=ZAE
“FtF
tAt+-H
1272013 1,270,000 - - - 1,270,000 6.80 6.45 Note 4
“T-ZFtAtCH itard
12.7.2013 450,000 - - - 450,000 6.80 6.45 Note 5
“F-ZHEATCA S
12.7.2013 60,000 - (60,000 - - 6.80 6.45 Note 7
—E-=F+f+CH [Note 2) M7
(Hit2)
12.7.2013 260,000 - - - 260,000 6.80 6.45 Note 11
-t ATCH RN
28.3.2014 112,000 - - 112,000 8.592 8.27 Note 12
ZE-ME=A-TNA F2
Sub Total 2,564,000 - [460,000) (12,0000 2,002,000
It
Total 27,726,000 229,000 - [450,000) 27,505,000
&zt
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE

| BAROREEE ST
SHARES OR DEBENTURES (Continued)

B (38)

s (&)

Notes: BiEE -

(i) Share option scheme (Continued) (i)

The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as to onethird on 12
July 2013, as to a further one-third upon topping out of the hotel
under development on the Cofai Strip of Macau and as fo the
final onethird upon opening of the hotel under development on
the Cotai Strip of Macau. The share options are exercisable from
the dates on which the share options are vested unfil 11 July
2017 (both dates inclusive).

BRES—HEE =D ZBRER_ZT—=F
tA+T-REE- 779\\_/‘ Z BB AR RE OB P BR 2K
BRPEEHERSE  RE=D— ZBRER
R ERD 2NEHEREE - BRES BK
REGBZARE_ZT—+FLtAT-—RHRHB(E
EEREMX) Al P -

2. Certain persons were reclassified from the category of "Other EFATBIHEM28E | EFHH2EAREBIZE
Participants” to “Employees”. Al o
3. The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as to onethird on 12 BRES =5 =H—2BERER-ZT—MF
July 2014, as to a further one+hird on 12 July 2015 and as +tAt+-HRE - 739|\:’\ Zgﬁﬂxﬁgﬁ’\_g—fﬁ
to the final onethird on 12 July 2016. The share options are F+HAt+-_HEE- = —2ERER=
exercisable from the dates on which the share options are vested —R"FEtA+TZH E%E ° E%HQTE SRS ﬁﬁi
until 11 July 2017 (both dates inclusive). 2T +tFtLtA+—BAEM(BEERMRKX) A
FATE ©
4, The share options shall vest in 8 tranches, as to 10%, 15%, 15%, BRES )\HEE - 10%15%15%~ 15%+
15%, 10%, 10%, 15% and 10% on 31 May 2013, 31 August 10%~10% ~ 15%R10% 2 RS RN T —=
2013, 30 September 2013, 1 April 2014, 30 September FRA=+—RA ZE—=FN\A=+—H =
2014, 31 January 2016, 31 March 2016 and 31 December —=FAA=+tH -ZZE—MWEmMA—H
2016, respectively, subject to the fulfilment of certain vesting —mFEAA=+H =ZT— /\¢ R=+— El
conditions. The share options are exercisable for 18 months from E-RF=ZA=+—HBERZZE—RF+ZR= +_
the dates on which certain vesting conditions are fulfilled, but in HRE WEFEKRETS E G- EBREBET
any event, exercisable until 11 July 2017 [both dates inclusive). SRBIREER 2 AHRI8EARA T -
EEBOAR-_ZE—FLA+—AZAI(BER
BMA) Al 1T -
5. The share options shall vest in 7 tranches, as to 15%, 15%, 15%, BlRES EHERE 15%15% - 15% 15%~
15%, 15%, 15% and 10% on 31 August 2013, 1 April 2014, 15% ~ ]5%&]O%Zﬁ%ﬁﬁ*gﬁ%”ﬁé:%_zi)\ﬂ
31 December 2014, 31 March 2015, 31 January 2016, 31 =t—H == @i@ﬂ H- —mFE+=
March 2016 and 31 December 2016, respectively, subject A=+—8" —hHF=A= ‘f’ E _T—ﬁ
to fulfilment of certain vesting conditions. The share options are i*ﬁ]E'}"*E —T— ﬁi A=+—BEK=
exercisable for 18 months from the dates on which certain vesting —R"Ft+ZA=+—"HBEB HETFEKRETH
conditions are fulfilled, but in any event, exercisable until 11 July GH -BERERSET ﬁ%{\*ﬁﬁgkﬁiz H %ﬁt;{l‘
2017 (both dates inclusive). 18EAAA] T HERUARZZTE—tF+
R+—BZA(BEERMX) A TITE -
6. The share options shall vest in 4 franches, as to 25%, 25%, BERE D ML E B - 25%  25% ~ 25%%25%2 M

25% and 25% on 31 August 2013, 1 April 2014, 31 August
2014 and 31 January 2016, respectively, subject fo fulfilment of
certain vesting conditions. The share options are exercisable for
18 months from the dates on which certain vesting conditions are
fulfilled, but in any event, exercisable until 11 July 2017 (both
dates inclusivel.

H%E“E'Jﬁ/\* —=F/\A=t—8" :? S
mA—H - —OFNA=+—BAR-ZT—KF
—A=1— E%’}% EEFERET 3%'7&1*"5%
BB TRBGAEER 2 AMEI8EARN
AFIE - EERAATR-_Z—tF LA+ —BZ
Al (BREERMXK) Al P17 -
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE

, BARMDNERER
SHARES OR DEBENTURES (Continued)

Z =5k (48)

(i) Share option scheme (Continued) () BEBRLHEETEl(8)

Notes: (Continued) BteE - (&)

7. The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as to 30%, 30% 7. BRESZHEE - 30%  30%K40% B E 5
and 40% on 31 May 2013, 31 December 2014 and 31 AR=—_ZT—=FRA=+—Q8" :gflﬂliJr:ﬁ]
March 2016, respectively, subject to fulfilment of certain vesting =t—BRZZE-RF=ZA=T—BEHE HEHF
conditions. The share options are exercisable for 18 months from ERETHBGE BREEST ﬁgflﬂfﬁfggﬁfz
the dates on which certain vesting conditions are fulfilled, but in Z B HERFEEHI8ME B ARl F1T6E - MM A =
any event, exercisable unfil 11 July 2017 (both dafes inclusive). T+ F+A+—HZH(BIEERMK) 7] PIHE o

8. The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as to onethird on 30 8. BRES-MEE =0 2BRER-_ZT—NF
September 2014, as to a further onethird on 30 September NA=+TEHES - 73’)7|\E§} BN _—F R
2015 and as fo the final onethird on 30 September 2016. The FARA=TH®B BR=D—Z2HERER=-F
share options are exercisable from aforesaid vesting dates unfil —R~FAA= ‘f’ EE?E o BARER DR H e
29 September 2017 (both dates inclusive). EZ—tFNAAZTNEHE(BEEERX)

A FATE ©

Q. The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as to onethird on 15 9. BERES L5 = ZBRER-_ZT—NF
October 2014, as to a further one-third on 15 October 2015 +A+HBERE - 739|\Eﬁ ZHERER=-FT—A
and as fo the final onethird on 15 October 2016. The share F+ATHERE &B=H9—Z2BREKR_-ZF
options are exercisable from aforesaid vesting dates unfil 14 —RETATERRE - BRES LGB R R
October 2017 (both dates inclusive). E_ZT—+F+A+TNHEBH(BEEREMK) 7]

FATE ©

10.  The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as o one+hird on 18 10, BRESIZMUEE - ZHEBRER_ZT— ﬂi
July 2015, as to a further onethird on 18 July 2016 and as tA+N\BHRE - 7757\‘7/\ 2B EN T —
to the final one+hird on 18 July 2017. The share options are FLATN\BRE &&E=9— Zﬁﬁﬁxﬁﬁé—g
exercisable from the aforesaid vesfing dates until 17 July 2018 (both —+tF++A+N\BEB - BRES LB R R
dates inclusive). E2_Z— )\FtATLtHEM(BEEEMKX) A

FATE ©

11.  The share options shall vest in 2 tranches, as to 75% and 25% on 1. BEERESMALEE  75%N25%2 BEIED BRI =
15 January 2014 and 31 December 2015, respectively, subject T-NF-A+RARZZE—RAF+t_A=+—
to fulfilment of certain vesting conditions. The share options are AGRE EaFERE THEBGE -BEREgE T
exercisable for 18 months from the dates on which certain vesting B ER B 8E AR FIT4E
conditions are fulfilled, but in any events, exercisable until 11 July HEHBNMAR —_E—+E+A+—B 2o (BEE
2017 (both dates inclusive). EMA) A FI76 -

12, The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as o one+third on 28 12, BERES=HEE =0 2BREXR-_ZT-LF

March 2015, as to a further onethird on 28 March 2016 and
as to the final onethird on 28 March 2017. The share options
are exercisable from aforesaid vesting dates until 27 March
2018 (both dates inclusive).

No share options of the Company were exercised or

cancelled during the year.

Particulars of the Share Option Scheme are sef out in note

32(a) to the consolidated financial statements.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES (Continued)

i)

(i)

Share award scheme

This scheme, which was adopted by the Company on 6
September 2006, allows the Company to make bonus
payments to eligible persons (including employees, directors,
consultants, advisers and agents of the Group) by way of
the Company's shares acquired by and held through an
independent trustee until fulfilment of specified conditions
before vesfing.

During the year, 22,000,000 shares were awarded
fo a consultant company under this scheme. A tofal of

22,219,000 shares were vested during the year.

None of the direcfors of the Company were awarded any of
the Company’s shares under this share award scheme during

the year or af 31 March 2015.

Particulars of the share award scheme of the Company are
set out in note 33(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

Share financing plan

This plan, which was adopted by the Company on 6
September 2006, allows eligible persons (including
employees, directors, consultants, advisers and agents of
the Group) fo borrow funds from the Company or from a
company within the Group fo acquire new or old shares
of the Company on a nonrecourse basis with the subject
shares pledged to the Company as security subject always
fo connected fransaction and other relevant provisions under
the Listing Rules.

None of the directors of the Company acquired any of the
Compoany's shares under this share financing plan during the

year or at 31 March 2015.
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AR EETEAL - WERMD K H —RBILZFEA
BAMSE EEHREENRBRMEKRRAL -
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EERHBESE

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES (Continued)

(iv] Share option scheme of Falloncroft

On 5 February 2013, prior to the completion of the
acquisition of the entire issued share capifal of Falloncroft
(as described in a circular of the Company dated 5 January
2013), Falloncroft adopted a share option scheme and
granted options that would, for a subscription and capital
contribution, in cash, of up to HK$600,000,000, entitle
Chief Wise Llimited ["Chief Wise"), an offiliate of Mr
Stephen Hung (joint chairman and the executive director of
the Company), to subscribe for 600,000,000 number of the
shares of Falloncroft. Chief Wise may assign these options
fo the management of Falloncroft as it sees fit.

Holders of the options subscribing for shares of Falloncroft,
on exercise of the opfions, have the right fo require the
Company fo purchase their respective holdings of the shares
of Falloncroft in exchange for an allotment and issue of new
ordinary shares of the Company.

Particulars of the share option scheme of Falloncroft are set
out in note 32(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed herein, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of ifs subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements
to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities including
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate, and
none of the direcfors, chief executives or their spouse or children
under the age of 18, had any right fo subscribe for securities of the
Company, or had exercised any such rights during the year.

68 Louis Xl Holdings Limited 2015 Annual Report

BARDRERR 22 (&)

(iv)] Falloncroftz B R #E 512

RZE—=F=ZAAAB ' REKKEEFalloncroft
EHEETRAN (FRARAIBHAZST —=F
—ARABZBEKET) B - Falloncroft R 49 7 & A% #
ETETERE FRARERBEREERS
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

None of the directors of the Company is interested in any business
apart from the Group’s businesses which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the
Group during the year or af 31 March 2015

DIRECTORS" INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

No confracts of significance to which the Company or any of ifs
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted af
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

On 24 April 2013, the Company and ITC Properties Holdings
Group limited, a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of ITC Properties
Group Limited ["ITC Properties”,
"ITC Properties Group”) entered into a conditional business services

together with its subsidiaries, the

agreement (the “ITCP Business Services Agreement”) for the period
from 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2016 with the annual cap
amounts of HK$500 million, HK$1,900 million and HK$2,200
million for the financial years ended/ending 31 March 2014
2015 and 2016
shareholder of the Company. The entering into of the ITCP Business

, respectively. ITC Properties is a substantial

Services Agreement constituted a continuing connected transaction
of the Company under Chapter 14A of the listing Rules. Details
of these were set out in the circular of the Company dated 8 May

2013.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group entered into
the following fransactions with a subsidiary of ITC Properties and
entities jointly confrolled by the ITC Properties Group:
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EERHBESE

CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

FEBEEXS (&)

Name of party Nature of transactions Amount
REFHER REME o
HK$' 000
FET
Keen Step Corporation Limited Construction works charged 62,046
(“Keen Step”) by the Group
EREEAR (2R REBUEREHNIERE
Fortress Jet International Limited, Construction works charged 156,497
Pine Cheer limited and by the Group
Sino Able Investments Limited REBUEREHNTRRE
(Collectively referred to as “JVs
of the ITC Properties Group”
EHEBE AR A E - Pine Cheer Limited
K Sino Able Investments Limited
(ARIEEESE EERE]D
218,543

Keen Step and JVs of the ITC Properties Group are associates,
within the meaning of the Llisting Rules, of ITC Properties, a
substantial shareholder of the Company.

The Company's audifor was engaged to report on the Group's
confinuing connected fransactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Hisforical Financial
Information” and with reference fo Practice Note 740 “Audifor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing
his findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
fransactions disclosed above in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of
the Listing Rules.

The auditor of the Company has reported their conclusion on
these procedures fo the board of directors of the Company.
The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed and confirmed that the continuing connected transactions
as sef out above have been entered into:

(il in the ordinary and usual course of the business of the
Group;

(il on normal commercial terms or better; and

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS /OTHER
PERSONS RECORDED IN THE REGISTER
gllzng UNDER SECTION 336 OF THE

At 31 March 2015, so far as is known to the directors and the
chief executives of the Company, the interests and short positions
of the substantial shareholders/other persons in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register of
the Company required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO

were as follows:

(a) Interests of substantial shareholders in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company

ﬁh%%&%ﬁﬁ@%&%%ﬁ%
<SPy TERR A
AT ZEZRR KR

REZBE-RF=A=+—HB HBARFAEERETETH
ANEFE - RIFES R BEGIIE3BEFE Z AR A
BRMAas s TBRR B ATRARR Z BN K
BB D 2 EFORBNT

o) EEBRARR TR RIBHRG

2R

Number of Total number
underlying shares of shares Approximate
Long position/ Numberof ~  (unlistedequity ~ and underlying percentage of
short position/ share of the derivatives) of shares of the shareholding
Name of shareholder Capacity lending pool Company held  the Company held Companyheld  of the Company
P AAT
HER 5 FEAAR
e/ %R/ FEAAR (FLHRA RARAE RN
RREH L) AR5 RABE  FEIR)EA RAEE ZBHEA
Ontario Teachers' Beneficial owner long position - 338,628,459 338,628,459 36.77%
Pension Plan Board E=BEA e
Sean Hung Interest of controlled long position 82,477,999 88,235,294 170,713,293 18.54%
HER corporation e
(Notes 14 2)
WREHEE  BR
(H#1%2)
SHung Limited Interest of controlled long position 82,477,999 88,235,204 170,713,293 18.54%
corporation He
[Notes 14 2)
WREHEE R
(Hz1%2)
[ Hung Limited Interest of controlled long position 82,477,999 88,235,204 170,713,293 18.54%
corporation e
[Notes 14 2)
NSt = 3
(W1 k2)
Chief Wise Beneficial owner long position - 88,235,294 88,235,294 9.58%
(Note 1) e
ERBE A
BEZT=6BFRLAA 2015F® 7]
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EERHBESE

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS /OTHER
PERSONS RECORDED IN THE REGISTER
KEPT UNDER SECTION 336 OF THE
SFO (Continued)

(a) Interests of substantial shareholders in the

BlZE3361R T E
FTERRH
B (48)

(a) FBRERVNAR TR K AE 7 I

shares and underlying shares of the Company ZRERR(8)
(Continued)
Number of Total number
underlying shares of shares Approximate
Long position/ Numberof ~(unlistedequity ~ and underlying percentage of
short position/ share of the derivatives) of shares of the shareholding
Name of shareholder Capacity lending pool Company held  the Company held Companyheld  of the Company
i sx SN
HERSD iSRS
Be/%E/ i SE SN (FLEMRA R RAEE ERDFRE
RREB L) TE GRS ko®E IR A ROEH ZBHESL
Pride Wisdom Group Beneficial owner long position 82477999 - 82477 999 8.96%
Limited (Note 2] e
("Pride Wisdom") ExfiBA (Mi#2)
Deutsche Bank Beneficial owner long position 27 - 134,837,284 14.64%
Aktiengesellschaft ERERA HE
["Deutsche Bank")
([EEHRT))
Person having long position 27,322,000 -
securiy interest H#eE
in shares
BARDERER AL
Inferest of controlled long position 170,000 -
corporation 2
RERHEE 2 #R
Custodian corporation/ long position 107,345,257 -
approved lending agent e
EEAR/ ARAUBRNAE
Deutsche Bank Beneficial owner Short position 170,000 - 170,000 0.02%
EEERT ERERA *E
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS /OTHER

PERSONS RECORDED IN THE REGISTER

KEPT UNDER SECTION 336 OF THE

SFO (Continued)

(a)

Interests of substantial shareholders in the

=N
> IS
H-B
INEEDS
A

BETE
iy

RBIZE336IRIZE
SERBRR H
KRB (#8)

(a) EBBERVAR TR K AE 78 A

shares and underlying shares of the Company RS (8E)
(Continued)
Number of Total number
underlying shares of shares Approximate
Long position/ Number of (unlisted equity ~ and underlying percentage of
short position/ share of the derivatives) of shares of the shareholding
Name of shareholder Capacity lending pool Company held  the Company held Companyheld  of the Company
AR
RERH g2
BR/ KR/ gy N (FEMRA R REE EARARE
PEEE 54 TEHRG RO®E  fIEIA)HE REBH ZBHEDL
Deutsche Bank Custodian corporation/ lending pool 107,345,257 - 107,345,257 11.66%
BEERT approved lending agent A HRG
TERR/RABHRE
Janus Capifal Invesiment manager long position 114,344,800 - 114,344,800 12.42%
Management LLC RELE e
Chan Kwok Keung, Interest of controlled long position 93,485,600 - 93,485,600 10.15%
Charles ["Dr Chan” | corporation [Nofe 3] e
RER ([RIEL)) RRERZEz ER
(Hri3)
Ng Yuen Lan, Macy Inferest of spouse long position 93,485,600 - 93,485,600 10.15%
("MsNg'| (Note 3) e
e (Taxt]) BB (fi723)
BHt=EmARAT 201558 /3
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EERHBESE

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS /OTHER

PERSONS RECORDED IN THE REGISTER

KEPT UNDER SECTION 336 OF THE

SFO (Continued)

(a)

Interests of substantial shareholders in the

(a) FBRERVNAR TR K AE 7 I

shares and underlying shares of the Company ZRERR(8)
(Continued)
Number of Total number
underlying shares of shares Approximate
Long position/ Numberof ~(unlistedequity ~ and underlying percentage of
short position/ share of the derivatives) of shares of the shareholding
Name of shareholder Capacity lending pool Company held  the Company held Companyheld  of the Company
AR
RER S AR
Be/%E/ FEALE (FLEmRA R REE ERDFRE
RREH 54 TEHRG ko®E  fiEIA)HE ROBEH ZBHEDL
ITC Properties Interest of confrolled long position 93,485,600 - 93,485,600 10.15%
EREME corporation [Nofe 3 e
RRERZEz B S
(H1:3)
ITC Properties Interest of controlled long position 93,485,600 - 93,485,600 10.15%
Management Group corporation (Nofe 3] H#E
Limited REERZE 2 #R
[“ITC Properties (Hi723)
Management”)
Advance Tech Limited Beneficial owner long position 93,485,600 - 93,485,600 10.15%
["Advance Tech”) (Note 3] e
RHEBRAT ([RHE]) EalEm A H3)
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS /OTHER
PERSONS RECORDED IN THE REGISTER
KEPT UNDER SECTION 336 OF THE
SFO (Continued)

(a)

Inferests of substantial shareholders in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company

(Continued)

Notes:

Chief Wise was jointly owned by S Hung Limited and | Hung
Limited, which were wholly owned by Mr Sean Hung. S Hung
Limited, | Hung Limited and Mr Sean Hung were deemed fo
be inferested in the 88,235,294 shares to be issued by the
Company by way of exchange for shares in Falloncroft.

Pride Wisdom was jointly owned by S Hung Llimited and | Hung
Limited, which were wholly owned by Mr Sean Hung. S Hung
Limited and | Hung Limited and Mr Sean Hung were deemed
to be inferested in the shares of the Company held by Pride
Wisdom.

Advance Tech was a wholly-owned subsidiary of ITC Properties
Management which was in turn a wholly-owned subsidiary of ITC
Properties. The issued shares of ITC Properties were directly held
as fo approximately 32.62% and 0.90% by Selective Choice
Investments Limited ("Selective Choice”) and Dr Chan respectively.
Selective Choice is a wholly-owned subsidiary of ITC Investment
Holdings Limited (“ITC Investment’] which in tum was wholly
owned by [TC Corporation Limited (“ITC"). Dr Chan was the
controlling shareholder of ITC. Ms Ng, the spouse of Dr Chan,
indirectly held approximately 21.04% interest in issued shares of
[TC Properties. [TC Properties Management, [TC Properties, Dr
Chan and Ms Ng were deemed fo be interested in the shares of
the Company held by Advance Tech.

H-ELfe
INERS

A
G

@N’f‘,;\-f
>l
L

(a)

i
XA
o
R
N
[

SENSR
MpH =
%l
i

ASIE I
it

\]
/

EBRRN AR R M AR R

= N\ 7

Z

et

1.

==}

N
AN
W= (8)

Chief WiseBS Hung Limited &I Hung Limited £ [A]
BAH MZMmEIRHLERELEE2EEHF-S
Hung Limited * | Hung Limited &3t 2148 55 £ 94 4R &
R B35 8 X #aFalloncroftfik 17 M #§ & F #1172
88,235 204D A 2w ©

Pride WisdomFa S Hung Limited &I Hung Limited % [F #
B MzMERFREEEEL2ERH - SHung
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF RiEzE %5 & Hi & 15451 58
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS/OTHER &l Frstirs T ER R H
PERSONS RECORDED IN THE REGISTER fth A £ 2 #E %% 2

KEPT UNDER SECTION 336 OF THE

SFO (Continued)

(b) Interests of other persons in shares and (b) HAATHRARR RIS &M ERR D
underlying shares of the Company 2 S
Approximate
Number of shares/ percentage of
underlying shares shareholding of
Name of person Capacity Long position of the Company held of the Company
FrERATRE,/ 1572 R B #E
RERER =27 A HERGEA ZBHNEA L
Ku Yun-sen Interest of controlled Long position 47,000,000 5.10%
BAL corporation (Note) 55

REAEHER < 4 (Hit)

Violet Profit Holdings Beneficial owner (Nofe) long position 47,000,000 5.10%
Limited (“Violet Profit") EnlaA ) e
Note: Violet Profit was wholly owned by Mr Ku Yun-sen. Bt : Violet ProfitH BE R A e E 2 B ©

Save as disclosed above, at 31 March 2015, the Company has B EXFIEEEI - R-_ZE—FE=ZA=+—0 1B
not been notified of any interests or short position in the shares and &% R EIE (EHIF336EA R TIBFE 2 B Mtk
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register of ~ ARAFMEE NS H M A THA AR T Z B MIAR
the Company required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO. Bin 2 fEm AR o

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES RRE R T2

Information on the Group's refirement benefit schemes is set out in 7N B3R KA FI5H 8] 2 BRI E 7 R ER A B IR KR &
nofe 36 to the consolidated financial statements. 36

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS BrBEERE

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's 7R A &) 2 A & 41 81| 3k & 552 55 ) 7 37 48 A AR 8 50 B8 2 4
Byelaws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the 21X BEARRARBRBBRLHIARARERIESHE
Company to offer new shares on a prorafa basis fo existing A%

shareholders.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with all code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 March 2015 and has

adopted most of the recommended best practices stated therein.

The Corporate Governance Report is set out on pages 31 to 53 of
this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors of the Company, the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the
year ended 31 March 2015 as required under the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of ifs subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed
securifies.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations

of approximately HK$567,000.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Defails of significant event occurred ofter the reporting period are
sef ouf in the nofe 42 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Directors’ Report
EERHBESE

AUDITOR % BY R

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting o ARAFIERBRRBEF ARG LIR2 —EREREEET)
reappoint Messrs Deloite Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the — BAEMRG SatARTTAA A B 2 X 26T °

Company.

On behalf of the Board RREER

Stephen Hung BB

Joint Chairman Yy

Hong Kong, 19 June 2015 &5 —E—RF~A+1H
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B 2B A RS E

Deloitte.
=2

TO THE MEMBERS OF LOUIS XIll HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Louis Xl
Holdings Limited (the “"Company”’) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred fo as the “"Group’| set out on pages 81 fo 204, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
March 2015, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
consolidated sfatement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of

significonf accounting po|icies and other e><p|onotory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Insfitute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors defermine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obfain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial

statements are free from material misstatement.

BESZT=SEERITZERR
(EBRZEAMELZHRAA)

REZBMITE TN ERZES EEE204EHMER S =
SEERRA(TERA) EMBAR (REIEKE])
ZEAUBRR BER _E-AF=A=1+—HZ&E
BHMBRARRBEZALFEZFEEGER HKAE
mRkEMEEEER GAEREHRIGEERDNR
RUARETESAHRME R EMEE -

ESHUREYBRRARXKEZER

BERREFARAERBERGHNASEM B ENE
REEWRBERAKIZKBERERHEEERA T2
FEMB®mE MBREMUEZBBAEE  AE
REMBTRR M ERRGFREERM o 2 ERHRRAL -

oS

R AN 2 EAE

AEZHMTHE TR REANZBENITEZ TIEN S
HEAMBHRRREEER  LRBAREQREFEOMS
BVARE - EMEBEBRIRME o BRUIAIN - REXBENTTH
BEETAREEMARE ARBMTHRIALARES
WAR  HEMEMALEESFAEEREE AR
FTEREBEERSGTMASRMNBEEFLERETE
%o FELERERAZBEITETERRE  LRE R
HITER UAEREGAVMBBRRRE I FEERNE
KR RERA
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B 2B AN RS E

An audit involves performing procedures fo obtfain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due fo fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the enfity's
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s inferal confrol. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial

statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate fo provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2015,
and of the Group's financial performance and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance with the

disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 19 June 2015
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Consolldo’red Statement of Profit or Loss
: \ /
For the year ended 31 March 2015 #E—ZF—RF=A=+—HIFE
2015 2014
—2-i¥ — M
NOTES HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
k=3 FHET FHET
Revenue WA 5 9,323,418 8,579,708
Cost of sales HER A (9,039,706) (8,291,049)
Gross profit EAH 283,712 288,659
Other income H fth Uk 25 7 13,314 9,079
Administrafive expenses THEA (259,617) (257,593)
Finance costs BE KA 8 (11,415) (16,272)
Impairment loss recognised B HEL A B M SRR RE R
in respect of other debtors 2R EEE 22 - (27,318)
Share of results of associates OB E N RIEE (2,284) (757)
Share of results of joint ventures BESEOEXR 2,234 1,296
Profit (loss) before tax Fr A AT A (E18) 25,944 (2,900)
Income tax expense FriS i & B 10 (33,856) (27,036)
Loss for the year FEEE 11 (7,912) (29,942)
Loss for the year attributable fo: JEIEEEEE
Owners of the Company ZN/NEIEZ Z =N (29,883) (50,5806
Non-controlling interests JEFERR S 21,971 20,644
(7,912) (29,942)
Loss per share BhkEE 13
Basic (HK cents) FEA GBI (5.5) (12.9)
Diluted (HK cents) 58 (B(L) (5.5) (12.9)

BEt+t=5EFRLA
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
meBaREMEERER

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #E—ZF—-—RF=A=+—HIFE

2015 2014
“E2-1%F “E-F
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
TFHET FHET
Loss for the year FEEE (7,912) (29,942)
Other comprehensive (expense) FEEM2E (A WK :
income for the year:
ltiems that may be reclassified Higre B M2 B HE
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange difference arising on BREBIINEREE ZER ZH
franslation of foreign operations (135) 516
Share of franslation reserve of an Bh—RAEERARREERHE
associate and joint ventures (R (274) (103)
(409) 413
Total comprehensive expense for the year FREE2EMAX A (8,321) (29,529)
Total comprehensive [expense) income EiEem (AX) W85
affributable to:
Owners of the Company ZN/NEIEZZ SN (30,093) (50,375
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR 21,772 20,846
(8,321) (29,529)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R &

At 31 March 2015 RZZE—RF=HA=+—H

2015 2014
—2—nfF ik
NOTES HKS$’000 HK$’ 000
liks3 FHET FHET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Hotel under development R AEE 14 2,633,563 932,638
Property, plant and equipment IESR Y E g 15 206,335 223,696
Deposits paid for acquisition of W2 - Hedk
property, plant and equipment B EPARE NI 15 38,807 =
Prepaid land lease payments ARt i iE &R 16 1,716,894 1,821,485
Goodwill B 17 61,646 61,646
Other intangible assets HiELEE 18 7,627 7,627
Interests in associates Bk 8N B) R 19 24,741 27,023
Interests in joint ventures BETERER 20 91,467 89,509
4,781,080 3,163,624
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Prepaid land lease payments Ta T+ #h 1H & RIE 16 104,591 104,591
Amounts due from customers for contract works BUREFA4TIENE 21 824,031 723,800
Trade and other debtors, deposits and prepayments B 5 Rk E i U FIE ~ 515
RIAFFRIA 22 2,657,938 2,274,208
Amounts due from associates JrE B & N B RUIE 23 16,046 31,264
Amounts due from joint ventures U A E D ¥EFKIA 23 495,327 383,412
Amounts due from joint operations/other partners Bl & B X &8 EB
of joint operations E At R £ IE 23 119,565 131,412
Amounts due from subsidiaries of a shareholder Bl — 2 AR R KB A R A 24 63,591 61,994
Other loans receivable HiEWER 25 91,351 74,247
Pledged bank deposits BHIRRITER 26 46,878 16,032
Short term bank deposits RHHISRTTIE R 26 2,138,346 1,409,900
Bank balances and cash SRITHEBEIR S 26 1,036,459 629,027
7,594,123 5,839,887
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Amounts due fo customers for contract works EREFAHIRENRE 21 1,650,622 1,421,870
Trade and other creditors and accrued expenses B 5 N Hoqth JE A 5RIE I e AT
53 27 2,218,124 2,292,380
Amounts due fo associates JE {57 Bt 41X B 5RIR 23 28,486 44,671
Amount due to a joint venture e —F& & ERIA 23 2,868 =
Amounts due fo joint operations,/other parters ENE&%EY &8%EB
of joint operations H A R HERE 23 86,866 123,443
Amounts due to subsidiaries of a shareholder BN —ZIREHE AR A 24 15,793 15,645
Loan from a subsidiary of a shareholder —ZlRRz —EHBARER 24 37,000 38,000
Taxation payable e IR 52,198 30,208
Bank borrowings - due within one year —FREEZRITERK 28 487,610 440,926
4,579,567 4,407,143
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 3,014,556 1,432,744
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BEERTBAS 7,795,636 4,596,368
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FERBEE
Bank borrowings - due after one year —FIEEB 2 RITER 28 1,098,517 2,618
Convertible bonds A RS & 5 29 409,303 239,721
1,507,820 242,339
6,287,816 4,354,029

BEt+t=5EFRLA
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Consolido’red Statement of Financial Position

e BRI &

At 31 March 2015 RZZ—RFE=A=+—H

2015 2014
—hRF —ET—F
NOTE HK$’000 HK$’ 000
i3 THT FHET
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXRFEE
Share capital & 2 31 1,841,734 899,193
Reserves B 4,044,173 3,084,043
Equity atfributable to owners RNRABIHEE ARG R
of the Company 5,885,907 3,983,236
Non-controlling interests FEPERR M
Share option reserve of a subsidiary —MIM B DA 2 A 30,168 20,824
Share of net assets of subsidiaries BB RARIZFEE 371,741 349,069
401,909 370,793
TOTAL EQUITY iarEm 6,287,816 4,354,029

The consolidated financial statements on pages 81
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 19

June 2015 and are signed on ifs behalf by:

Peter Lee Coker Jr.

Joint Chairman (Executive Director)

BELTE (BITEE)
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Deputy Chairman (Executive Director)
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MERRZER

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #E—ZF—RF=A=+—HIFE

Atributabl o owners ofhe Company Non-contrling nferests
KLAAREARR FERER
Convertble Shares Share Share Shareopfion ~~~ Shareof
Share Shore ~ Speal bonds  heldfor option aword  Tronsoon~~ Refoned reseveofa  netasselof
copiel  premium resenve resenie  shareaward resenve resene resenve profts  Subtolol  subsidiry  subsidories  Subviokl Tokl
-EWR  BEKE
TEE  RRGEE BhE  RbZE 2z 22
BE BEEE  GHBRE  EREE  MRRb i BF EXRE  REW Mt BRERE FEE it it
HE000  HKPO00  HKS000  RKSOO0  HKS000  HKBOOD  HKSO00  HKEOO0  HKF000  HKE000  HKSOOD  HKE000  HKSO00  HK§'000
Thn Tién Thr Thr Thn Thn Thr Thr Th Thn Thn Thr Thr Th
AT Apil 2013 WZ3-Z§mA-B 700326 1316052 (153767) 977881 = = = iy 171807 3,048,571 10667 330616 341283 3369854
bogedfeenceaisngon  BEFRERES
fondoionofoeignopertons ~ ZEREE = = = = = 34 314 = 0 0 516
Shore offonslton esene o Bh-EREDAR
anassociafeord it ventves AELEERGE = - - 103 - 103 - - 103
(o) ot for e yeor FR(ER) & - - - = = = = [50,986| 150,586 = 20,644 0,644 (29942
Tollcompiehensie income ER2ANE(FR)
[expence] for e year a8 = - - - = il 150,586] 50,379 - 20846 20,846 29,529
sl newodiaydoespon  REATEEES
converson ofcomvetble bonds Eipkil 18
Note 31 (Wsie) 11,382 25,643 (31,484) - - - 5541 - - 5541
e of placing hores Noe 1) ETREMRM (i3 10)) 178485 555981 - - - - - - 734 466 - - - 7Md66
Tronsocion cogs ofibableto SARERRRERHA
isueofplocig shoes [27.5%9) - - - - - 7539 - 7539
lsieof comverible bonds [Nofe 290 &7 R (Hr2229) = - - 2551 - - - - 252,551 - - - 2551
Tronsocion cos otibuiableto e~ TRREFRABARIE
eqiycomporentofconveible  REHAHE)
bonds [Note 29 - - - (10,448 - - - - (10,448 - - - (10,448
Recagniionof equiysefed RRADAERENE
shoebosedpoyneniepenes  HRAGENBHALR
o e shore opionscheme o 2R (30)
the Company [Noke 32 - - - - - 35,70 - - 35,720 - - - 35,720
Recogrifon o equisefed HiBFoloncrolmesmerts infed
sioetosdpoymenteipenes  ([Folonaof ) B 58
ofhe hore opon scheme of HRAEEARAARE
Folloncroivestment inied LEER (H23h)
("Folloncroff) INote 320) = = = = = = = 10,157 = 10,157 10157
Recagniionofequiysefed LR
shoebosedpoyneniepenes  HRAGENBHALR
ofthe shore award scheme of LAERE (W30
fhe Company [Note 33/ - - - - 3,067 - 3667 - - - 3607
Puchoseof shoresnderheshore A ZEEE
awordschere BERf - - - - (8.000) - - - (8.000) - - - [8.000]
Shoresvesedunderthe soreawerd R DR HBBR
scheme - - - 1883 [2.807) - [918) - [918)
Confibuionsfomnorcontoling ~~ FEHER R
shoreholders = = = = = = = = = 2 2 2%
Diiderds disbued bysubsores ~ HBARARZ RS = - - - - 1,519 (1,519 [1.519)
A31 Morch 2014 WZE-MEZA=1-R 899193 1870737 (153767 1,188,500 [6,117) 3720 866 7483 121221 3983236 20824 349969 30793 4354009
Exchonge dfteence arsing on BB RBEL (ERER
fonslationof Freign opeatons - - - - - o4 o - 199 [199] 133
Soeclorsaionesenecton  BfE-EHEAARAE
assoiole ord onhenues 5ERGE = = = - - - (74 - (274 - - - (74
(los ot forheyear EE(BE)EH = = - - (9883 (29883 097 0971 7912
Toiolcompehensie fexperse] R (AR hELE
income for e year = = = = = {210 20883 30,03 = 0,772 0772 8.321)

BEt+t=5EFRLA
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GARKBBE
w3
For the year ended 31 March 2015 #E—ZF—-—RF=A=+—HIFE
Atrbutabl fo owners ofhe Company Non-conhrolinginfres's
KORRAARL FERER
Converfble Shares Share Share Shareoption ~~~ Shareof
Share Share Specal bonds  heldfor option oword  Trnslaon ~ Refoned reseveofa  netasselsof
copiol ~ premium resenve resene  shoreaward resene resenve fesenve pofis  Subtoll  wubsidioy  subsicioris  Subotl Toll
-ERE  BGWE
T8%  REHER BRE  RoER 2q2 Mz
Ba  RGEE  GEBE  REEE FRRG i B EXRE  RER Mt BRERR BEE it it
HE00  HKG000  HG000  HKEO00  HKP000  HKE000  HKBOOD  HKP000  HKE'000  HKPO00  HKS000  HKE0O0  HKFO00  HKS'000
TEL Thn Tén TEn TEn ThL Thn Tén TEn TEn ThL TEn TEn TEn
lsueofplocingshres BARERR Hetile)
Note 31(e] 042541 . - - - - - - 1413812 - - - 1413812
Trnsacton cosiscbucble o ERERDEERANE
isueof plocig shares 60934 - - - - - - 60934 - - - 60934
Isste of converible bonds BhmkEs K20
Note 29 - - - 60 - - = = 60747 - - - 007
Trnsacton cosiscbucble o TARERRADAEL
thecquy componentof comebe XA (K290
bonds [Noie 29 = = = (23275 = = = = (23273 = = = (23273
Recagniionof equiysefed B NTRREE
shoebosed poymeniepenses  WREEEMBH
ofre s opionscheme o BERZAAAR
the Company (Nt 2] (W30 - - - 19,003 - - 19,003 - - - 19,003
Recagniionof equiysefed EifoloncolfEfEstal
shoebosed poymentepensesl.  NRAGENBAHA
the shore opfon scheme of Eﬂiﬂ AX
Falloncrof Noie 320b) - - - - - 9,344 - 0,344 0344
Recagniionof equiysefed BEATRRERE
sharebased poymentexpenses LXM%%W%E%
of e shore cward scheme of LRERR (W330)
the Company [Note 33(c] - - - 90045 - 92,045 - - - 0,045
Puchoseof shoresndereshore AR £EIEE)
award scheme LD - - - - (142000 - - - - (142000 - - - (142000
Shores vested urder e hore RER A &R
awerd scheme FBIA = - - 93299 88933 - 4366 - - - 4366
Tonserorsanedpofisupon ~ KARERE 2B
lapseof sare opions FRRERZRE
gonted by he Conpary bt = = = - B = - 3l - - - -
A 31 March 2015 REB-REZA=T-A 184073 2080474 (153767) 1794972 54818) 69 3978 073 91369 5,885,907 30,168 74 401909 6,27816

AEBEZFHFEEEATER

The special reserve of the Group includes the following:

[a)  a credit amount of HK$1,000,000 representing the difference (o)  —% A%%1,000,0005% 7.2 # B - BN UK B8 A 1 B /8
between the cost of acquisition of two subsidiaries and the Nz BB BB A B R T ST R (b) ATt R
nominal amount of their share capital at the date on which they LI& BRAIHARCRIMNBARREEZERIEEERR
were acquired by Paul Y. Management Contracting Group NA([REZZIRDWEEB 2 RAHEE ZH
Limited ("Paul Y. Management Contracting”), a subsidiary of the HZER &

Company, before the reverse acquisition as mentioned in note (b)
below; and
[b) o debit amount of HK$154,767,000 representing the reserve (b))  —2 AE154,767,0008 T 2 B o7k Bl W BB 1%

arising from the reverse acquisition of Paul Y. Management
Contracting and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “Paul
Y. Management Contracting Group”), net of refund from ex-
shareholder of Paul Y. Management Contracting for the shortfall
in net assef value of Paul Y. Management Contracting Group
upon completion of the acquisition by the Company from PYI
Corporation Limited, the former ultimate holding company, of
the entire equity interest in, and shareholders’ loan to Paul Y.

Management Contracting Group in January 2005.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

SAERETRBR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #H#E—ZF—NF=A=+—HIFE

2015 2014
—E—-1fF —ET—NF
HKS$’000 HK$' 000
FET FHET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES R
Profit (loss) before tax BB AR A (B518) 25,944 (2,200
Adjustments for: M NFIEBEITHE
Depreciation of property, plant M WM REREITE
and equipment 32,403 33,086
Finance costs & B AR 11,415 16,272
Impairment loss recognised in respect B SRR R 2 REERE
of trade debtors 2,112 -
Impairment loss recognised in respect HAh e B RER < BB E B
of other debtors - 27,318
Interest income F Bl (13,314) (9,079)
Loss on deregistration of an associate L A=INGIE G € F a5t = 160
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEWE  BMEREEE
and equipment 2,448 3,136
Release of prepaid land lease payments ERTEN T EFRIE 575 575
Share of results of associates BOBE N R XS 2,284 757
Share of results of joint ventures BHAELERE (2,234) (1,2906)
Share-based payment expenses VARR 1 A £ 18 2 15 0B 52 12,103 15,284
Operating cash flows before movements RETLEEREPAI 2 REER
in working capital BenE 73,736 83,307
Changes in amounts due from/to U, NEFAHIREFEES
customers for contract works 146,935 288,724
Increase in trade and other debtors, B REMEIWGIE  F]&
deposits and prepayments K IER FRIAE N (376,662) (242,162
Decrease in amounts due from associates L Bt N B FR B R A 15,218 8,545
Increase in amounts due from joint ventures FEM & & b FEFIRI N (111,915) (220,633)
[Increase) decrease in amounts due from joint A EER SLEBEMEMN
operations/ other partners of joint operations IR (g pn) R (31,747) 2,929
Decrease in amounts due from subsidiaries FEU — &R R 2 M & A R IE R
of a shareholder 535 12,921
(Decrease] increase in trade and other creditors B REMENRIBREFTHAEZ
and accrued expenses ORLA) $E A0 (74,229) 644,022
Decrease in amounts due to associates JE ST HSS & N R RE R A (3,022) (17,767
Increase in amount due to a joint venture B —RAE D EKIAEM 2,868 -
Increase (decrease) in amounts due to joint EREEER AEEBEHMBME
operations/other partners of joint operations IR O ) 6,468 (7,682)
Increase in amounts due to subsidiaries of JE A — B BR B 2 [T 8 A Bl 5 I 3L AN
a shareholder 142 15,645
Decrease in amounts due fo non-controlling JRE AT FE 22 A 4 2 S TR
interests - (171)
Cash [used in) generated from operations (AR REKEEXB2RE (351,673) 567,678
Overseas fax paid BTG INRIE (11,884) (6,302)
Overseas fax refunded R[EGINGEIE 18 -
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM OPERATING (AR REREER RS THE
ACTIVITIES (363,539) 561,376

BEt+t=5EFRLA
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GEREREE

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #ZE—=

—HEF=A=t—RALFE

2015 2014
—=—HF —E—MF
NOTE HK$’000 HK$’ 000
B TFHET FHET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEK
Additions to hotel under development NEEREFEE (1,423,427) (736,145)
Placement of short ferm bank deposits FEAEHRITER (900,000) -
Payment for purchase of shares under the share BB KB ETEIIET
award scheme f& 7 2 17 3R (142,000) (8,000)
Additions to deposits paid for acquisition of WEWEYE M RRE
property, plant and equipment ZBENET® (38,807) =
Additions to property, plant and equipment WEWE - W R E (36,301) (61,554)
Placement of pledged bank deposits FABEBIRITER (30,846) (16,032)
Advance of other loans receivable HONE b FEURE R (10,000) (74,247)
Repayment from joint operations/other BRER AEEBHM
pariners of joint operations BHER 43,594 -
Interest received 2 W F & 9,234 14,754
Proceed:s from disposal of property, HEmE - *%W ST
plant and equipment P15 5/ 657 4,662
Advances fo joint operations/other ma %%ﬁ/é%%ﬁ%ﬁ@
partners of joint operations R (57,038)
Contribution to a joint venture Ffﬂ—F'EJA“ﬁﬁﬁéf (14,540)
Advance to a joint venture m—fEaE ﬁé%@ - (1171)
Additions fo other infangible assets H | & ER (57)
Repayment from an associate —fEE R TE?K 8
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES ARBEED RS FE (2,527,896) (948,300)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES REEE
New bank loans raised HERITER 2,091,709 782,468
Proceed:s from issue of placing shares TT@E%HXT/J}Zﬁﬁ?Ef A 1,413,812 734,466
Proceeds from issue of convertible bonds ?’*TT—HﬁHﬂ FZFE ?5( 755,300 209,042
Repayment of bank loans BERITEK (949,035) (779,134)
Transaction costs attributable fo issue of BT E RGN BIH R SR
placing shares (60,934) (27,539)
Repayment fo joint operations/other ERAEER AEED
partners of joint operations HAh R (43,045) (60)
Inferest paid B F & (32,288) (26,185)
Transaction costs attributable fo issue of BT R E 5 B 16 R 5 B
convertible bonds (27,915) (12,408)
Repayment to an associate (ES R in) /NI EEN (13,125) (8,240)
Project loan management fee paid ENEEEREEE (3,045) =
Repayment of loan from a subsidiary of BB —BRER 2 — R B
a shareholder NafER (1,000) (6,000)
Advances from joint operations/other BEER /SEEBHMBY
partners of joint operations EP = 57,421
Loan from a subsidiary of a shareholder — & IR R — BT B A~ ml S X 44,000
Advance from an associate *F'EEJ%»%%A‘Z\\ EELN - 13,010
Contributions from non-controlling interests SRR N E 26
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests B IR R IR S (1,519)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES REMETH2REFHE 3,130,434 1,070,248
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH ReRERELEHEER
EQUIVALENTS b IpER 238,999 683,324
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE IEERSH
CHANGES (3,121) (16
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BROUGHT RERERESEEEREA
FORWARD 2,038,927 1,355,619
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CARRIED ReRERSEEEELS
FORWARD 26 2,274,805 2,038,927
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No’res to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R M A

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #E—ZF—RF=A=+—HIFE

GENERAL

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in
Bermuda with limited liability. Its shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Hong Kong Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate

Information” section of the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities
of its principal subsidiaries, associates, joint ventures and joint
operations are sef ouf in note 43 fo the consolidated financial

statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the same as the functional currency of the

Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time, the
following new and revised Hong Kong Accounting Standards
["HKAS]s)"), Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRS(s)"),
amendments and interpretations ("HK(IFRIC] — Int") (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the "new and revised HKFRSs") issued
by the Hong Kong Insfitute of Certified Public Accountants (the
"HKICPA").

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

Investment Entities

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsefting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures
for Non-Financial Assets

Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge
Accounting

HK(IFRIC) = Int 21 levies

The application of the above new and revised HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group's financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years and/
or on the disclosures sef ouf in these consolidated financial

statements.
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No’res to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R R Y AT

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE—Z—AF=A=1+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. FERHIIRKBR2EBUBREELN ()
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

AEE W AREARAAT ERMEHRERZH
IR e BB RS 2R -

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments® B IS s A R 05 TRITAS
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts* BBMBREERIE 45 XHEELERE"
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with BN RS ERE 5% BEPAEHBAS
Customers®
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative® BAEGHENE R (ET) THRE
Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable ERSHENEIORR AERZTE R
and HKAS 38 Methods of Depreciation BT EREI8% ARZERE

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 27

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 10,

HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 11

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

and Amortisation®

Agriculture: Bearer Plants®

Defined benefit plans: Employee
Confributions'

Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements®

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture?

Investment Enfities: Applying the

Consolidation Exception®

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations®
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2010 - 2012 Cycle?

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2011 = 2013 Cycle!

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2012 - 2014 Cycle®
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

L Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 July

2014.

Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 July
2014 with limited exceptions.

Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016.

Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning on

or after 1 January 2016.

g Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2017.

& Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive
model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising
from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the
current revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18
HKAS 11
inferprefations when it becomes effective. The core principle of

“Revenue”, “Construction Contracts” and the related
HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise revenue fo depict
the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration fo which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for goods or services. Specifically, the

standard infroduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

e Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

e  Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contrac(s)

o Step 3: Defermine the transaction price

° Step 4: Allocate the fransaction price to the performance

obligations in the contract(s)

. Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the enfity safisfies

a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #ZE—=

CRE R

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
HKFRS 15 in the future may affect the amounts reported and
related disclosures. However, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS 15 until the Group

performs a detailed review.

Other than that, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the other new and revised HKFRSs will have no
material impact on the results and the financial position of the

Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial sfatements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis. Historical cost is generally based on the
fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid fo fransfer a liability in an orderly fransaction between
markef parficipants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In esfimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes info account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would
take those characteristics info account when pricing the asset
or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement
and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is defermined on such a basis, except for share-based
payment fransactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2,
leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not
fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in
use in HKAS 36.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and enfities controlled by the

Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the

Company:
J has power over the investee;
J is exposed, or has rights, to variable retumns from its

involvement with the investee; and
o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes fo one

or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
confrol over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to

control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are affributed to the owners of the Company and fo the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries
is affributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling

interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in

line with the Group's accounting policies.

All infragroup assets and  liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the

Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's ownership inferests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group's interests and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
inferests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair
value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly
in equity and affributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any refained inferest and (i) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill], and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the
subsidiary [i.e. reclassified fo profit or loss or transferred to
another category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment refained in the former
subsidiary at the dafte when control is lost is regarded as the
fair value on inifial recognition for subsequent accounting
under HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments:

Measurement”, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition

Derecognition and
of an investment in an associate or a joint venture.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration fransferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of
the acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the
Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners
of the acquiree and the equity inferests issued by the Group in
exchange for confrol of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs

are generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

At the acquisition date, the idenfifiable assets acquired and the

liabilities assumed are recognised af their fair value, except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets
related to employee benefit arangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 “lncome

Taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee Benefits” respectively;

e liabiliies or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group enfered info fo
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2

"Share-based Payment” af the acquisition date; and

e  assefs [or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current
Assefs Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations” are

measured in accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration fransferred, the amount of any non-controlling
inferests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment,
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assefs acquired and liabiliies assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration fransferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase

gain.

Non-controlling inferests that are present ownership interests and
entifle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net
assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on a
fransaction-by-ransaction basis. Other types of non-controlling
interests are measured at their fair value or, when applicable,

on the basis specified in another standard.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any, and is presented
separately in the consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating
units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the

combination.

A cash-generafing unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually or more frequently when
there is indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acquisifion in a reporting period, the cash-
generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that reporting period. If the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than ifs
carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and
then to the other assets of the unit on a pro rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each assef in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the affributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the

amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an enfity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is

not confrol or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assefs
of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent

of the parties sharing control.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. The financial
stafements of associates and joint ventures used for equity
accounting purposes are prepared using uniform accounting
policies as those of the Group for like transactions and events in
similar circumstances. Under the equity method, an investment
in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised in the
consolidated sfatement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss and
other comprehensive income of the associafe or joint venture.
When the Group's share of losses of an associate or joint
venture exceeds the Group's interest in that associate or joint
venture (which includes any long-ferm inferests that, in substance,
form part of the Group's net investment in the associate or joint
venture), the Group discontinues recognising ifs share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only fo the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made

payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate or a joint venfure. On acquisition of
the investment in an associate or a joint venture, any excess of
the cost of the investment over the Group's share of the net fair
value of the idenfifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is
recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying
amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group's share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost
of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately

in profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether
it is necessary fo recognise any impairment loss with respect to
the Group's investment in an associate or a joint venture. VWhen
necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment (including
goodwill] is tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS
36 "Impairment of Assets” as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the

investment subsequently increases.
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No’res to the Consolidated Financial Statements

n\/-_r\

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #ZE=%F

CRE R

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from
the date when the investment ceases to be an associate or a
joint venture, or when the investment (or a portion thereof] is
classified as held for sale. VWhen the Group refains an interest
in the former associate or joint venture and the refained inferest
is a financial asset, the Group measures the retained interest af
fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair
value on initial recognition in accordance with HKAS 39. The
difference between the carrying amount of the associate or joint
venture at the date the equity method was discontinued, and
the fair value of any refained inferest and any proceeds from
disposing of a part inferest in the associate or joint venture is
included in the defermination of the gain or loss on disposal of
the associate or joint venture. In addition, the Group accounts
for all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relafion fo that associate or joint venture on the same
basis as would be required if that associate or joint venture had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabiliies. Therefore,
if a gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive
income by that associafe or joint venture would be reclassified
fo profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities,
the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or
loss [as a reclassification adjustment) when the equity method is

discontinued.

The Group continues fo use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes an
investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement to fair

value upon such changes in ownership inferests.

When the Group reduces ifs ownership inferest in an associate
or a joint venture but the Group continues fo use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of
the gain or loss that had previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income relating to that reduction in ownership
interest if that gain or loss would be reclassified to profit or loss

on the disposal of the related assefs or liabilities.

When a group entity fransacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group (such as a sale or contribution of
assets], profits and losses resulting from the fransactions with
the associate or joint venfure are recognised in the Group's
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests in

the associate or joint venture that are not related to the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Interests in joint operations

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the
assets, and obligations for the liabiliies, relafing to the joint
arrangement. Joint control is the comroduoHy ogreed shoring
of control of an arangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the

parties sharing control.

When a group enfity underfakes ifs activities under joint
operations, the Group as a joint operator recognises in relafion

to its interest in a joint operation:

o its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly;

o its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred
{Oinﬂ\/;

o its revenue from the sale of its share of the output arising

from the joint operation;

e ifs share of the revenue from the sale of the output by the

joint operation; and

o its expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred
jointly.

The Group accounts for the assets, liabilities, revenues

and expenses relating fo its interest in a joint operation in

accordance with the HKFRSs applicable to the particular asses,

liabilities, revenues and expenses.

When a group enfity sells or contributes assets to a joint
operation in which a group entity is a joint operator, the Group
is considered to be selling or contributing assefs to the other
parties to the joint operation, and gains and losses resulting
from the sale or confribution are recognised in the Group's
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of other

parties’ inferests in the joint operation.

When a group entity purchases assefs from a joint operation
in which a group entity is a joint operator, the Group does nof
recognise ifs share of the gains and losses unfil it resells those

assets to a third party.
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No’res to the Consolidated Financial Statements

n\/-_r\

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #ZE—=

CRE R

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment other than hotel under
development are sfated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and

subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment other than hotel under
development less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the sfraightline method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in

esfimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
fo arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or refirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is

recognised in profit or loss.

Hotel under development

Properties in the course of construction for hotel operation are
carried af cost, less any recognised impairment loss. The relevant
costs include acquisition costs, development expenditure,
borrowing costs capitalised and other direct costs attributable to
such properties. Such properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when complefed
and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on
the same basis as other property assets, commences when the

assets are ready for their infended use.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership

fo the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as expenses on a
straightline basis over the lease term. Contingent rentals arising
under operating leases are recognised as expenses in the period

in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received fo enfer into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction

of renfal expense on a sfraightline basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Prepaid land lease payments

The upfront payments to acquire leasehold inferest in land are
accounted for as operating leases and are stated inifially at cost
and released over the lease term on a straightline basis. The
released prepaid land lease payments in respect of a parcel
of land in Macau is capitalised into hotel under development
during the construction period and recognised as expenses

subsequent fo the completion of the hotel property.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assefs with indefinite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated
impairment losses (see the accounting policy in respect of
impairment losses on tangible and infangible assets other than

goodwill below).

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of intangible assets
are measured at the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in profit or loss in the period when the asset is

derecognised.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of
goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of ifs tangible and intangible assefs to
defermine whether there is any indication that those assefs
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order fo
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. VWhere a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assefs are also allocated to individual cash-generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated tfo the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified. In addition, other infangible assefs with
indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment at least annually,

and whenever there is an indication that they may be impaired.
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No’res to the Consolidated Financial Statements

n\/-_]_\

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #ZE—=

CRE R

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of
goodwill above) (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a prefax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific fo the asset for which the

esfimates of future cash flows have not been adjusfed.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit]
is estimated to be less than ifs carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced
fo its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the assef [or a cash-generafing unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash generating unit) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income

immediately.

Construction contracts

When the outcome of a construction contract can be esfimated
reliably, contract revenue and costs are recognised by reference
fo the stage of completion of the confract activity af the end of
the reporting period measured based on the contract revenue for
work performed to date relative fo the estimated total confract
revenue, except where this would not be representative of the
stage of complefion. Variations in confract work and claims are
included to the extent that the amount can be measured reliably

and ifs receipt is considered probable.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised fo the extent
of confract costs incurred that it is probable will be recoverable.
Confract costs are recognised as expenses in the period in

which they are incurred.

When it is probable that fofal confract costs will exceed fofal
contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an expense

immediately.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Construction contracts (Continued)

Where confract cosfs incurred to date plus recognised profits
less recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus
is shown as amounts due from customers for contract works.
For confracts where progress billings exceed confract costs
incurred fo date plus recognised profits less recognised losses,
the surplus is shown as amounts due fo cusfomers for contract
works. Amounts received before the related work is performed
are included in the consolidated sfatement of financial position,
as a liability, as advances received. Amounts billed for work
performed but not yet paid by the customer are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position under trade and

other debtors, deposits and prepayments.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for service provided in the normal course of business, net of

discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from construction confracts is recognised on the
percentage of completion method, measured by reference fo the

value of work certified during the year.

Development management, project management and facilities
and asset management services income are recognised when

services are provided.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
Group's rights fo receive payment have been esfablished (provided
that i is probable that the economic benefits will flow fo the

Group and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably).

Inferest income from a financial asset is recognised when it
is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a fime basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and af the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rafe that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net

carrying amount on initial recognition.

LEETHE ()
&:./J( &)

3R I B B £ 2 A KB N AR e 58 05 1) Rk 48 e 23
Jgﬂéﬁﬂjiﬁﬁ%h\ CAIBRBEARKE P AN TR

c MEERBHAREELZ A RN INLHE
a/wmﬁb@i,%%ﬁ%%)%?ﬁ RIS N P AN TIE
FIAZR o IETTIRE TREAKEZ RIEAAZE
MBMRRE - FR—RAR REWENK - FE
ETTRERMEF AN ZHAAMALZE Y
BRRKR 2 E 5 REMEYFR - 7]2 KB KR
BN

AR

WARBE WK ERKENAFESE  FHEBER
BREPRERE ZEWIE - BETAREERR
Z TR -

REIREHNZWATIRETIESLFE  WEBE
FREZEILREBERER

BRER BB EEUARRENREEEIZRE WS
E@%E{ EE%HTEE%\"

REZ B W A5 B YR B BB 2 #E I
YRR (EAZBRREENGERAIERASEER
BWASRARER SEHOETE) -

CREEZNBEREREENRRAERARE
.HLBZ SE R R ERER - BN ERE N
REBAEREACERMNXZREEER A
BN EEREHEE 2Bt RRAYIR S ETEE
FHANLEBERZERERERRZEEREFE
2FI% -

mat=smamraz 20155% 103



No’res to the Consolidated Financial Statements

n\/-_r\

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #ZE—=

CRE R

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing cosfs directly aftributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of fime fo get ready
for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Invesiment income eamed on the
femporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing

costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution refirement benefit schemes
and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised
as expenses or capitalised in confracts in progress or hotel
under development, where appropriate, when employees have

rendered services entitling them to the contributions.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred fax.

The tax currently payable is based on faxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from “profit before tax” as reported in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years and it further excludes items that are never faxable
or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted

by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tfax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding fax base used in
the computation of faxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all toxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
tfemporary differences fo the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the femporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition [other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that

affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and inferesfs in joint arrangements, except where
the Group is able to confrol the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the femporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and inferests are only recognised fo the exfent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they

are expected fo reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced fo the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available to allow all or part of the asset fo be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected fo apply in the period in which the liability is
seffled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of

the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
fax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Group expects, at the end of the reporting pericd, to recover

or seftle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate fo items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred fax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting

for the business combination.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #E—ZF—-—RF=A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
enfity, fransactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) af the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetfary items denominated
in foreign currencies are refranslated at the rates prevailing af
that dafe. Non-monefary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not refranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the setflement of monetary itfems,
and on the refranslation of monetary items, are recognised in

profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assefs and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated info the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates prevailing
af the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are franslated at the average exchange rates for the year,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period,
in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
fransactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in

equity under the heading of translation reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operafion (i.e. a disposal of
the Group's entire inferest in a foreign operation, a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, a disposal involving loss of joint control over a joint
arrangement that includes a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of significant influence over an associate that
includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation aftributable
fo the owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that
does not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary,
the proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences
are re-aftributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e.
partial disposals of associates or joint arrangements that do not
result in the Group losing significant influence or joint control),
the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange differences

is reclassified to profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assefs and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated sfatement of financial position when a group entity

becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are inifially measured af
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assefs and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assefs or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly affributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or

loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assefs are classified as loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is defermined at the time of
initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assefs that
require delivery of assets within the time frame established by

regulation or convention in the markefplace.

Lloans and receivables

loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent fo initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including trade and other debtors, amounts due from associates,
joint ventures, joint operations/other partners of joint operations,
subsidiaries of a shareholder, other loans receivable, pledged
bank deposits, short term bank deposits and bank balances and
cash) are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any idenfified impairment losses [see accounting

policy on impairment of financial assets below).
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No’res to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #ZE—=

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. SETBCE (&)
Financial instruments (Continued) ﬁmﬂlﬂ (#&)
Financial assets (Continued) TEEE ()
Effective interest method BRA B

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating inferest
income over the relevant period. The effective inferest rate is
the rafe that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction cosfs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, or,
where appropriate, a shorfer period to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

BERNBEDFESREEZHIEKARIZER
HARI 0 M B IR ER 2 TOK » BIR M R TI#E TR AR K
ReWA (BIEMAEBRERERME 2T
WEBER RHKAREMBENRTE) ZSBE
EZERFR X(WER) REHMRBRURE
BARERE 2 REFEIME -

Inferest income is recognised on an effective inferest basis for BB LA ZHN S WS BRI REEER -

debt instruments.

Impairment of financial assets A ERE

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the é—i%ﬂﬁ?ﬁ/\ﬂiﬁiﬁﬂ R ERETR - 8 B8
end of each reporting period. Financial assefs are considered to FHReREENRBEABAEEEE— 4%

be impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the

financial assets have been affected.

Obijective evidence of impairment could include:

1¢$Iﬁ%ﬁirﬂﬁ?Z(ﬁuﬂinﬂéﬁii‘%ﬁ% :
AleREESRARRE -

MEEBEEREHE

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; ° BEOAXRSEFHRIEE AT RS : =%
or
e breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in o BH MABHEHFERAE K

interest and principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankrupicy or financial re-organisation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For certain categories of financial assets such as frade debtors,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are,
in addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis.
Obijective evidence of impairment of a portfolio of debtors could
include the Group's past experience of collecting payments, an
increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past
the credit periods ranging from 60 to 90 days and observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate
with default on debtors.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of the esfimated future
cash flows discounted at the financial asset's original effective

interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade debtors, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an dllowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or
loss. When a debtor is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of

amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and
the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring
affer the impairment loss was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to
the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost

would have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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No’res to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE—Z—AF=A=1+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. SETEGR (&)

Financial instruments (Continued) ﬁmﬂlﬂ (#&)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments EHEERKATA

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are SEERETZERERATAENRESNZH
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity instruments in ZHEEESHABEMMIAT A EE0EASR

accordance with the substance of the confractual arrangements
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity

instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any confract that evidences a residual
inferest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are

recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue cosfs.

Repurchase of the Company’'s own equity insfruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company's own equity instruments.

Where the shares of the Company are acquired under the
share award schemes by the share award scheme trust,

the consideration paid, including any directly attributable

BEFIW/ATE-

AR T A
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B URAT 1S TR IE (FEHBR BB B ATRAR) BERR ©

FBEIADA ARG RAT AS BN R R
B MEBE  LE BTXEHARREFR
ATAZENREBRERRERERE -
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incremental costs, is presented as “shares held for share award” BRI -
and deducted from total equity.
Convertible bonds contain liability and equity components AR ELSE S B ERRAZ S

Convertible bonds issued by the Company that contain mainly
the liability and conversion opfion components are classified
separately info respective items on initial recognition in
accordance with the substance of the confractual arrangements
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.  Conversion opfion that will be seffled by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset
for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity instruments is

classified as an equity instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Convertible bonds contain liability and equity components
(Continved)

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability component
is defermined using the prevailing market inferest rate of
similar non-convertible debts. The difference between the gross
proceeds of the issue of the convertible bonds and the fair value
assigned fo the liability component, representing the conversion
option for the holder fo convert the convertible bonds into equity,

is included in equity (convertible bonds reserve.

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the convertible
bonds is carried at amortised cost using the effective inferest
method. The equity component, representing the option to
convert the liability component info ordinary shares of the
Company, will remain in convertible bonds reserve until the
embedded option is exercised (in which case the balance
stated in convertible bonds reserve will be fransferred to share
premium). Where the option remains unexercised at the expiry
date, the balance stated in convertible bonds reserve will be
released to the retained profits. No gain or loss is recognised in

profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of the option.

Transaction cosfs that relate to the issue of the convertible bonds
are allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion
to the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs
relating to the equity component are charged directly to equity.
Transaction costs relating to the liability component are included
in the carrying amount of the liability porfion and amortised over
the period of the convertible bonds using the effective interest
method.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabiliies (including trade and other creditors,
amounts due fo associates, a joint venture, joint operations/other
partners of joint operations and subsidiaries of a shareholder,
loan from a subsidiary of a shareholder and bank borrowings|
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective

interest method.
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No’res to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE—Z—AF=A=1+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Effective interest method
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest

g

SRR (&)
ﬁmﬂlﬂ(ﬁé)
EHMEEBRKATA (A)
BT 2%
BERNBEDFESRABIHEKRARIRZER
HAR D M B R Z 70K « BERF R T b5t R 2K

expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is ReMR(BEMBREBREBERMEZ AR
the rafe that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments SWHEBR RHIRAREMEESITE) EZe

(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction cosfs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, fo the net carrying

amount on initial recognition.
Inferest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
confractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it fransfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks

BEZEMER X (WEm) FE,HHF%ZEEEEEEE
iéu\ﬁﬁ B 2 BRI E 2 B R

FEFIHERA S EEHER -

AR
EReREERSRENAOENERE 2
REERBARZIBRIEIARECREET S —
BERE ARENERUIERAZEREE - MAE

and rewards of ownership of the assef fo another entity. If the EYEEBEETERBEERZBREY AR KD
Croup neither fransfers nor refains substantially all the risks and BULBEHEEREE  ~ASEEBRSE2 R

rewards of ownership and confinues fo confrol the fransferred
asset, the Group continues to recognise the asset to the extent
of its continuing involvement and recognises an associated
liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a

collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of o financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the assef's carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive

income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and

payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to directors, employees and advisers
providing similar services as employees

The fair value of services received defermined by reference
fo the fair value of share options granted at the date of grant
is expensed or capifalised in hotel under development on a
straightline basis over the vesfing period, with a corresponding

increase in equity (share option reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises ifs estimates
of the number of options that are expected fo ultimately vest. The
impact of the revision of the original estimates during the vesting
period, if any, is recognised in profit or loss or capitalised
in hotel under development such that the cumulative expense
reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to

share option reserve.

When share opfions are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry dafe, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be transferred
fo retained profits.

Awarded shares granted to consultants

The fair value of service received, determined by reference to
the fair value of awarded shares granted at the date of grant,
is expensed or capifalised in hotel under development on a
straightline basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding
increase in equity [share award reserve).

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises ifs
esfimates of the number of the awarded shares that are
expected fo ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss or capitalised in hotel under development such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a

corresponding adjustment to share award reserve.

When awarded shares are vested, the amount previously
recognised in share award reserve and the amount of the
relevant treasury shares (held under the shares held for share

award scheme) will be capitalised in hotel under development.
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4.

CRE R

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
fo make estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The esfimates and associafed assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to

be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions fo accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the esfimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future

periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial year:

(a)  Construction contracts

The Group recognises contract revenue and profit of a
construction contract according fo the management’s
estimation of the fofal outcome of the project as well
as the percentage of complefion of consfruction works.
Notwithstanding that management reviews and revises
the estimates of both contract revenue and costs for the
construction confract as the confract progresses, the actual
outcome of the contract in ferms of ifs fotal revenue and
costs may be higher or lower than the estimates and this

will affect the revenue and profit recognised.

(b)  Trade debtors

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the
Group fakes info consideration the estimation of future
cash flows. The amount of the impairment loss is measured
os the difference between the asset's carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows
[excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest
rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition). Where the actual future cash flows are less
than expected, a material impairment loss may arise. As
at 31 March 2015, the carrying amount of trade debtors
is HK$828,837,000 (2014: HK$604,121,000).
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4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Deferred tax asset

At 31 March 2015, a deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of tax losses amounted to
HK$66,717,000 (2014: HK$56,382,000) in the
Group's  consolidated  sfatement of financial position.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation
fo remaining unused tax losses of HK$526,847,000
[2014: HK$381,581
of financial position due fo the unpredictability of future

,000) in the consolidated statement

profit streams (see note 30). In cases where future profits
are expected fo be generated, a deferred tax asset on
the remaining unused tax losses may be recognised in
the consolidated financial statements in the year which

estimation changes.

Property, plant and equipment, hotel under
development and prepaid land lease payments

The Group assesses regularly whether property, plant
and equipment, hotel under development and prepaid
land lease payments have any indication of impairment
in accordance with its accounting policy. The Group
determines the recoverable amounts of the property,
plant and equipment, hotel under development and
prepaid lond lease payments based on the estimation
of the economic benefits generated from these assets.
Management is confident that the carrying amount of
these items will be recovered in full based on the results
of assessment of the estimates of anticipated cash flow
generated by these assefs. The situation will be closely
monitored by the Group, and adjustments for impairment
will be made in future periods in which there is an
indication of such adjustments are appropriate. At 31
March 2015, the carrying amounts of property, plant and
equipment, hotel under development and prepaid land
lease payments are approximately HK$206,335,000
[2014: HK$223,696,000), HK$2,633,563,000 (2014
HK$932,638,000) and HK$1,821,485,000 (2014
HK$1,926,076,000) respectively.

Share-based payment expenses

The recognition of share-based payment expenses requires
the esfimation of the number of options and awards that
will ultimately vest at the end of each reporting period.
The impact of the revision of the estimates during the
vesting period is recognised in profit or loss or capitalised

in hotel under development whenever a revision arises.

4.

THREMRTZER

(c)

(d)

(e)

FR (&)

EREBIHEE
RZEBE-—RAF=ZA=+—H BE#H
BEE66,717,0008 L (ZF—MWF -
56,382,000 7T) R A K B 2 £ & B 4K
MRERBERBEEE - AR REHEER
s M HOR - BUS S B4 L R ER R B A
TIEE18526,847,0008 T (Z T — WM& -
381,581,000/ 7T) IR &7 & B 16 AR L R A Fig
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R

ZE S *ﬁéﬁ&%ﬁﬁ CBRPEEUREN
ii&* »(Eih
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No’res to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R M A

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #E—ZF—-—RF=A=+—HIFE

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY 4.
(Continued)

(i  Goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires
an esfimation of the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating units fo which goodwill has been allocated.
The value in use calculation requires the Group tfo estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating units and a suitable discount rafe in order to
calculate the present value. Where the actual future cash
flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss
may arise. As at 31 March 2015, the carrying amount
of goodwill is approximately HK$61,646,000 (2014:
HK$61,646,000). Details of the recoverable amount
calculation are disclosed in note 17.

5. REVENUE 5

Revenue of the Group represents the fofal value of confract
work certified, the gross proceeds received and receivable from
development management and project management services in
connectfion with contract work and income from facilities and

asset management services during the year and is analysed as

THREMSTZERRR (E)

f e
ErTREEOhAMEREHC R KRS
ZEAREBEM 2 AT RE S BEL GG &
HERBEFEZASEGBEYAELRS
BUERSZARRESRERGBE BTN
qu HHE - WERAKREREREASRD

AREHEERNRERE R-_F—AF=H
E‘f'—El CERREELNRO],646,000% 7T
—PO4 : 61,646,000%7T) © A B FIUK

Cl &t E 2 FBRHTE 7HKE -

i

ON

REBRAEFTRAEHE2 TRENBE  BEE
HMIREBEZEREERIAL BRI & E
IRER 2 FIBMEE  URKRAREREEEERSE 2
Uezs  oTAAR ¢

follows:
2015 2014
—hE —T—F
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FHET FHET
Revenue from construction contracts TRREHIEA 9,292,639 8,575,256
Revenue from development management, BRER HAEEUAKRRE
project management and facilities NEEBEREVA
and assef management services 30,779 4,452
9,323,418 8,579,708
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported fo the executive directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision makers, is organised
info divisions for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment focusing on the types of services
delivered or provided. Specifically, the Group's reportable and
operating segments under HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” are

as follows:

Management confracting = building construction and civil
engineering

Property development - development management,

management project management and

facilities and assef
management services

Property investment — investment in properties
through investment in a
joint venture

Hotel development - hotel operation with ancillary

retail and entertainment

facilities

The Group had invested in an operating segment of the hotel
operation in Macau with provision of ancillary retail and
enfertainment faciliies which are under development. The
remaining segments are held under a major subsidiary of the

Group, Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited ("PYE”).

The accounting policies of the reportable and operating
segments are the same as the Group's accounting policies

described in note 3.

Segment profit represents the profit earned by each reportable
and operating segment without allocation of corporate income,
central administrative costs, finance costs and impairment loss
recognised in respect of other debtors. This is the measure
reported fo the chief operating decision makers for the purposes

of resource allocation and performance assessment.

The assets of the Group are allocated to reporiable and
operating segments except for pledged bank deposits, short term
bank deposits, bank balances and cash and other unallocated

assets.

The liabilities of the Group are allocated to reportable and
operating segments except for cerfain bank borrowings and

other unallocated liabilities.

Infer-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates or af
terms defermined and agreed by both parties, where no market

price was available.

2 WER
ARAAFRRTEE(TELERRE) ZHAEE
RAOBERKAFEZER - EH UMM SIRHEZ
RISERRE D E - AR-ME - ARBEREZAEY
BHREERN LR [FED ] 2 A HREREED
LI

R E R - BFEERTATRE
MEERER - BREE HEAEEUR
®it Rk EEEERS
MERE - RERYME(CBBRERN
—BaELE)
BIEER - BEEE  ERWHEBTE
MIRGER

AEERERPIEELEZRLED R  UREHE
TERRERE  BRARGDERRES - B0 R
HASEE TN —HIEMNBEARRERZEEESR
RARN(MREZEDFE -

A A S B 2 B A RS SR SR A K
ZEEHBE B

DERF AR HE RELED B EN  WED
PR - PRITHERA » BE KA K H U
AR RERE < th AR L ERARERSER
EBERDERKRRTFEZEETE -

BREERRITER  BHRTENX  RITEHLR
SUAREMARSEREESN  AEEMBEESFA

s RATE S o

BETFRTERREMFADREES - AREHA
& EIHATHE REEHE -

7 #2822 3K & R TD AR IR 1T i B W AR =k (i 3 & 7]
H2E2TE) RENEERREZ GRFBEE

W
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #E—ZF—-—RF=A=+—HIFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEBER ()
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results UTAREBWAREBIZARERKEED I 2
by reportable and operating segments. DT e
For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE-_Z-HF=A=1+—HLEE
Property
Management ~ development ~ Property PYE Hotel ~ Segment
contracling  management  investment fotal ~ development fotal  Eliminations ~ Consolidated
REEE NERREE  VERE RERESY  EERE  2Pa He GE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
TAn Thn TAn TAn TAn TEr TAn TAn
SEGMENT REVENUE AHRA
External sales HMEE 9,292,639 30,779 - 9303418 - 9303418 - 9303418
Infersegment sales Pz EHE 1,371,655 500 - 1,372,155 - 1,372,155 (1,372,155) -
Segment revenue PEHBA 10,664,294 31,279 - 10,695,573 - 10695573  (1,372,155) 9,323,418
Segment profi AEEH 195,376 969 1,406 197,751 - 197,751 (42,168) 155,583
Corporate income RN 13,314
Central administrative costs HR{THAR (131,538)
Finance costs BERA (11,413)
Profit before fax BB AR 25,944

] ] 8 Louis XIll Holdings Limited 2015 Annual Report



SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group's assefs and liabilities

by reportable and operating segments.

As at 31 March 2015

Property
Management  development

contracing - management

DEER (&)
UTRAKBEERABRARSE R

S -

R=—B-HF=A=+—H

Property
investment

PYE Hotel
fotal ~ development fotal

Segment

i

Eliminations  Consolidated

REEE NERRER  WERE RERESY  EERR  2H&x E4f g4
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
ThEL TEL ThAn ThEL ThAn ThEn TAn Thn
ASSETS
Segment asses AHEE 4,518,371 19,389 80,497 4627257 4799752  9427,009  (420,812) 9,006,197
Pledged bank deposis BERRTER 46,878
Shortferm bank deposits RERTER 2,138,346
Bank balances and cash ROERRES 1,036,459
Other unallocated assefs EtAPREE 147,323
Consolidated assets GREE 12,375,203
LIABILITIES gf
Segment libilies AHaE 4,142,739 4,847 447 4148033 1765337 5913370  (442,117) 5,471,253
Bank borrowings RITHEH 487,610
Other uncllocated liabiliies EHAARER 128,524
Consolidated liabilities RRERE 6,087,387

BEt+t=5EFRLA
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For the year ended 31 March 2015

No’res to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEPER ()
The following is an analysis of the Group's other information by TR AREEEMERHZAIRE REED I 2 DM
reportable and operating segments:
For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE_Z-HEF=A=+—HLEE
Property
Management  development Property PYE Hotel
contracting  management  investment fotal  development  Unallocated ~ Consolidated
REEE WXEREE  WERE RERXEH  BEEE KB L)
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
AR TER TER TERL TARL TARL TER
OTHER INFORMATION HitER
Amounts included in the measure of AERBENT A H
segment profit or segment assefs: BEfFABZEH
Addifions fo hotel under RERRTEE
development - - - - 1700925 - 1700925
Additions fo property, REME  BW
plant and equipment PE 16,166 - - 16,166 11,741 7,441 35,348
Addition fo deposits paid for REWENE B
acquisifion of property, R&ZBZENTE
plant and equipment = = = = 38,807 = 38,807
Depreciation of properly, ERE IET
plant and equipment JHE 28,818 11 - 28,829 - 3,574 32,403
Loss on disposal of HENE A
property, plantand SE VAT
equipment 2,375 - - 2,375 - 73 2,448
Release of prepaid land BEEMIHEE
lease payments A 575 = = 575 = - 575
Inferess in associates BERFARAERE
and joint veniures R 28,643 (1,924) 89,489 116,208 - - 116,208
Share of results of BlEBERA kA
associates and joint 233
ventures 441 (1,927) 1,436 (50) - - (50)
Amounts regularly provided fo EHRETHITEE
the executive directors BraERE
but not included in the PBENZLRE
measure of segment profit
Share of revenue of BIEBERAR
associates and joint aEREMRA
ventures 1,389,706 109 6,257 1,396,072 - - 1,396,072
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results

by reportable and operating segments.
For the year ended 31 March 2014

Property

Management  development
confracfing  management
REEE NRRRER
HK$'000  HK$'000

DEER (&)
UATRARBRARRERARERELEDHZ
AT ©

BE-—Z-—NF=ZA=+—BLFE

Property PYE Hotel Segment
investment folal  development fofol  Elimincfions  Consolidated
NERE RERRET  ERRR  2¥EH 83 &4
HK$'000  HKF'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

TAL TAT TAL TAT TATL TAT TAT TAL
SEGMENT REVENUE AHHA
External sales HMEE 8,575,256 4,452 - 8,579,708 - 8579708 - 8579708
Infersegment sales PEZBEE 662,900 1,300 - 604,200 - 664200 (664,200) -
Segment revenue PEHBA 0,238,156 5,752 - 0243908 - 0243908 (6642000 8,579,708
Segment profit AEEH 217,790 2,527 712 221,029 = 221,029 (36,527 184,502
Corporate income RN 9,079
Central administrative costs FRTEAR (152,897)
Finance costs BEKL (16,272)
Impaimentloss recognisedin -~ - EIFUERER
respect of ofher deblors ZRERE [27,318)
Loss before fox BHAER (2,906]

Bet=mmsmaz 201565 121



No’res to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #E—ZF—-—RF=A=+—HIFE

6.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group's assefs and liabilities

by reportable and operating segments.

As at 31 March 2014

Properly

Management  development
confracfing  monagement
HEER NERRER
HK$'000  HK$'000

6. DEEHR (E)

NTRAGBEERABRAREREZEDHZ
AT ©
R-B-mE=A=+—A
Property PYE Hotel Segment
invesiment folal  development ool Elimincfions  Consolidted

NERE RERRET  ERER  2¥EH B &4
HK$'000  HKF'000  HK§'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

Thr TR ThL TR TEL THEL ThL TiEL
ASSETS EE
Segment assefs PBEE 4,027,501 43548 88,163 4,159212 2950992 7110204  (286,167) 6,824,037
Pledged bank deposits BERRITRN 16,032
Shortferm bank deposits REEIFR 1,409,900
Bank balances and cash ROEHRRE 629,027
Other unallocated assets EhRAREE 124,515
Consolidated assets GAEE 9,003,511
LIABILITIES 8
Segment liabilies PHERE 3,835,321 17,781 462 3,853,564 498,624 4,352,188 (249,640) 4,102,548
Bank borrowings RITER 443 544
Other unallocated liabilifies ARAEER 103,390
Consolidatedliabilties GRRE 4,649 482
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6.

The following is an analysis of the Group's other information by

reportable and operating segments:

For the year ended 31 March 2014

Property

Management  development
confracting  management
FREE NXREER
HK$' 000 HK$' 000

DEER (&)
AT RAEEEMERHZ R BE ML LD B2 -

BE-_Z-NF=A=+—HLFE

Property PYE Hotel
investment foll  development  Unallocated ~ Consolidated
NERE RERRET  EEER Aol Fa
HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000

TEL TEL FEr TEL THEL TAL TEL

OTHER INFORMATION ﬁf’@ﬁ*‘l
Amounts included in the measure of EREEN% S

segment profit or segment assefs: ﬁ@ﬁﬁ A%
Additions fo hotel under AEERDERE

development - - - - 898,705 - 898,705
Additions fo property, REME B

plant and equipment e 26,426 - - 26,426 13,618 23,655 63,699
Depreciaion of property, nE - BHRER

plant and equipment LHTE 28,848 28 - 28,876 - 4,210 33,086
Loss gain) on disposal of LENE  BRR

property, plant and R EE (BH)

equipment 3,151 - - 3,151 - (15) 3,136
Release of prepaid land BRAEMLH

lease payments BEE 575 = = 575 = - 575
Inferesfs in associates BENARaE

and joint ventures PEER 28,369 = 88,163 116,532 = = 116,532
Share of resuls of BEBENT

associates and joint RAELRZE

ventures (1,236) 1,031 744 539 - - 539
Amounts regularly provided fo EHRETHITES

the executive directors BREERT 2

butnot included in the Bz

measure of segment profit:
Share of revenue of BEBERAR

associates and joint AERERA

ventures 1,502,890 - 5937 1,508,827 - - 1,508,827

BEt-sEARAT 20155% 123



For the year ended 31 March 2015 #ZE—=

S BMKRNEE

—HEF=A=t—RALFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6.

The Group’s operations are mainly located in Hong Kong,
Macau, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") (excluding
Hong Kong and Macau) and Singapore.

DEER (&)

No’res to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AEBZEZHTEMUNEE B pEARKM
B ([ B (BB FRPIERIN RIS

The following table provides an analysis of the Group's revenue TRAEREERARMRALES S (RERERERT

based on geographical location where construction works or PR EMIRF 2 FRERE) 2 DT
other services are provided:

2015 2014

—uF —T-lF

HK$’000 HK$' 000

TFHT THET

Hong Kong 5 2,926,531 3,448,250

Macau RS 5,743,744 4,575,416

PRC A 572,741 495,381

Singapore AN 80,402 60,661

9,323,418 8,579,708

The following is an analysis of the carrying amounts of non-
current assets, analysed by the geographical area in which the

assets are located:

TRRAFRBDEERMEREEMERE 2D :

2015 2014

—E-1F —mF

HKS$’000 HK$’ 000

TFHET FHET

Hong Kong BE 133,198 128,332
Macau B 4,530,369 2,917,648
PRC & 114,992 115,629
Singapore N3 2,521 2,015
4,781,080 3,163,624

Revenue from the two (2014: three) largest customers in KEME (= ME: =) RETEZXFAEHEE
respect of construction confracts amounted fo approximately SETHE ;:.,%’]ZH&]\ D BI#)A3,625,477 0007 7T (=
HK$3,625,477,000 (2014: HK$1,956,319,000) and T4 1 1,956,319,000%7) &2,110,767,000
HK$2,110,767,000 (2014: HK$2,352,234,000), B (ZE—M4 £ 2,352,234,000%7T) - ERIME
respectively, which individually contributed more than 10% AEEHE-_T—RAF=-A=+t—HLFEZH

of total revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2015. Revenue from the remaining one largest customer
in 2014 in respect of construction contracts amounted o
HK$1,157,008,000 which individually contributed more
than 10% of total revenue of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2014. All these customers are under the management

confracting segment.
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OTHER INCOME

7. Httzs

2015 2014
—E-RF —E—MF
HKS$’000 HK$' 000
FHET FHET
Bank interest income RITH B M= 13,903 10,125
Inferest income on amount due from W — 2 IR R — T 2 A
a subsidiary of a shareholder RIE 2 F) B ER 2,132 2,187
Interest income on other loans receivable H Ath B W E 3R B M as 8,674 4,509
Others Hh - 232
24,709 17,053
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of B BERPEERETER
hotel under development & (11,395) (7,974)
13,314 9,079
FINANCE COSTS 8. RERR
2015 2014
—Z-1F —F—@mEF
HKS$’000 HK$' 000
FHET THET
Interest on bank and other borrowings: RITREAMERZFE
— wholly repayable within five years —ARAFANEHER 24,429 26,191
— not wholly repayable within five years —FERAFERNDHEER 8,818 =
Effective interest on convertible bonds AMRES ZERFE 48,669 31,821
81,916 58,012
Less: Amount capitalised in respect B BREREHNTIREA &
of contracts in progress (13,014) (2,219)
Less: Amount capitalised in respect B BRERDBEEAZ SR
of hotel under development (57,487) (31,821)
11,415 16,272

Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose on funds
borrowed specifically for construction contracts and hotel under

development.

BEt+t=5EFRLA
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For the year ended 31 March 2015

9.

(a)

HE—

—HEF=A=t—RALFE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ AND 9. BEERFETHAEREEME
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ and chief executives’ emoluments (o) EBRFETHBAEMS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the nine (2014 ENSEFIE (CE—HF: NR)ESZ
eight) directors are as follows: AZBEnT :
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other  Discrefionary scheme  Share-based
Fees benefits bonus  contributions payment Total
40 )3 BIRER URAB A
He HthEH MERL RIS BEEZAR @t

Name of director and EER HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
chief executive TETHASES TEn TER TER TEx TER TER
2015
James Chiu izh 18 1,212 - - - 259 1471
lau Ko Yuen, Tom =R 514 6,659 3,000 18 2,587 12,778
Stephen Hung SR 308 . . . 11,931 12,239
Peter Lee Coker r. Peter Lee Coker r. 308 6,659 - 294 2,587 9,848
Walter Craig Power Walter Craig Power 308 7,839 - 811 2,587 11,545
lee Chack Fan EYCPie 1,031 - - - 259 1,290
lain Ferguson Bruce mEt 1,105 - - - 259 1,364
Francis Goutenmacher Francis Goutenmacher 1,190 - - - 259 1,449
Chan Kok Chung, Johnny (Nofe i BRE R (Hi) 144 = = = = 144

6,120 21,157 3,000 1,123 20,728 52,128
2014 —E-|f
James Chiu HES 966 - - - 493 1,459
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom 2R 297 5,884 = 13 4926 11,120
Stephen Hung K 300 = = = 15,083 15,383
Peter lee Coker Jr. Peter Lee Cokerr. 300 5720 - 10 4,926 10,956
Walter Craig Power Walter Craig Power 300 7,800 - ] 4926 13,027
lee Chack Fan PN 869 - - - 493 1,362
lain Ferguson Bruce W&t 936 = = = 493 1,429
Francis Goutenmacher Francis Goutenmacher 921 - - - 493 1,414

4,889 19,404 - 24 31,833 56,150
Note: Hiat -

(i) Appointed on 21 November 2014

] 26 Louis XIll Holdings Limited 2015 Annual Report
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9.

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES” AND 9.
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executives’ emoluments (Continued) (a)

Mr Walter Craig Power is also the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company and his emoluments disclosed above
included those for services rendered by him as the Chief
Executive Officer for both years.

Discretionary bonus was defermined with reference fo the
Group's operafing results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics. Neither the directors nor the
chief executive waived any emoluments for both years.

(b)  Employees’ emoluments (b)

The five highest paid individuals in the Group for the
year included four (2014: four) directors. Details of their
emoluments for the year ended 31 March 2015 as
directors are set out in note 9(a) above.

The aggregate emoluments of the remaining one (2014:
one| highest paid individual are as follows:

EERFETHRAERESEME (B)

EERIETHAEME (B

Walter Craig Power5t 4 75 & 48 A 7] 2 17 BUA&
B EREXEBEZHMERERWEFE
HEETRAEMRHRBZHME -

HECAZEARELLERE  AARRK
AhEmERABFMEE - MEEEHE
RITBABMEZMEFEZ TS -

BEME
AEERAFERAUSSHFMAEBRENS
EX(CTWF MORBRER) -RFALIR
HE-Z-—AF=A=+—HBILFEERE
FZMEFH BTN XK a) °

BT—%(CF-—MF:—%)REHHAS
2 EHEBIIMT -

2015 2014
—Z=—-5HE —ET-EF
HK$’000 HK$' 000
T#&xT FHET
Salaries and other benefits N K E b 2@ F 7,665 5,944
Discretionary bonus B E fEAL 8,222 =
Refirement benefit scheme contributions 3R k4@ Fl| 5t 21 4L 3¢ 18 14
Share-based payment LARR 7 A5 BB 2 1<K 436 4,926
16,341 10,884

Their emoluments were within the following bands: TEMEFRBEENT -

Number of employee
EEAH

2015 2014
HK$10,500,001 to HK$ 11,000,000 10,500,001 T2 11,000,000/ 7T - |
HK$16,000,001 to HK$ 16,500,000 16,000,001/ 7T 2 16,500,000/ 7T 1 -
1 1

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the
Group fo the five highest paid individuals, including
directors and chief executive, as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office.

RZMEE R A KB I E A AL &S
AE (BREZERIBETHRAR) XABME N
TERIMAARE BN AR KB 2 A -
HAERBER A (E o

BEt=mmERAE  20156% |2/



No’res to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R M A

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE—Z—AF=A=1+—HIFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FREBLEH
2015 2014
ot k2 — 4
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
TFHT THET
Hong Kong Profits Tax BENGEH

Overprovision in prior years BEFEBERE - (614)

Macau and PRC tax P Ko B IR
Current tax N F i) 33,951 27,743
Overprovision in prior years BEFEBERE (95) (93]
33,856 27,650
33,856 27,036

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the
consolidated financial statements as the assessable profits were

wholly absorbed by tax losses brought forward for both years.

Pursuant fo tax incentive approved under Section 20 of Decree
law No. 9/2014 (2014: Section 20 of Decree law No.
13/2013), Macau Complementary Tax is levied at a fixed rate
of 12% on the taxable income above Macau Pataca ("MOP")

300,000.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rafe
is 25% for the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC from 1 January
2008 onwards.

] 28 Louis XIll Holdings Limited 2015 Annual Report
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10.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 10. FREBLERA (&)
The income fax expense for the year can be reconciled to the NEE 2 B E A ? B &2 BB
profit (loss) before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or B (E51B) 2 HEE
loss as follows:
2015 2014
—2—1fF —T e
HKS$’000 HK$' 000
TFHET FET
Profit (loss) before tax b &A= F (B518) 25,944 (2,906)
Tax at the domestic tax rate of 16.5% RAMBI R 6.5% & 2 B 4,280 (479)
Tax effect of share of results of BEBMEARRAELERE
associates and joint ventures 2GR E 8 (89)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible FER5 76 77 T 7 AT H1R 5 2
for tax purpose 2B E 11,064 15,217
Tax effect of income not taxable ERBHEBRERGE
for tax purpose M2 (146) (542)
Tax effect of utilisation of deductible B ST AR FERR AT HIRUE S = 58
femporary difference previously ZREHE
not recognised (6) (40)
Tax effect of deductible temporary difference AR MR 2 AT 05 b = 58
nof recognised 2RI E 1 2
Tax effect of fax losses not recognised AERBRBBE BT E 24,767 26,819
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses previously B SE BT AR MR 2 B 15 & 18
not recognised ZRGTE (798) (4,827)
Tax effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries  F EAth B A #E [R 48 & 75 2 [T 8 X 7]
operating in other jurisdictions ZRRBEZ R E (5,219) (8,318
Overprovision in prior years BEFEBEEE (95) (707)
Income fax expense for the year FRZMEHER 33,856 27,036

Details of the deferred taxation are set out in note 30.

ETERR 2 FIBE IR M &30 -

BEt+t=5EFRLA
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #ZE—=

—HEF=A=t—RALFE

Statements

11. LOSS FOR THE YEAR FEBE
2015 2014
—E-HF — 4
Notes HKS$’000 HK$' 000
i TFHET FHET
Loss for the year has been arrived at after FREEBEMR GIA)
charging (credifing:
Auditor’s remuneration (2 Gl 4,537 4,593
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #13 ~ ## R R E 2 & (a) 32,403 33,086
Impairment loss recognised in respect of 2 5 R FIEER 2 RE
frade debtors &8 2,112 -
Loss on deregistration of an associate ECIL A= VNGIE S € i iE = 160
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - R RE
equipment 2 B8 2,448 3,136
Operating lease rentals KERLEe (b) 27,742 28,199
Release of prepaid land lease payments ERTEN TR E KA [c) 575 575
Staff costs 8 THA (d) 172,611 155,758
Confract costs recognised as expense REFRY ZA LKA 9,013,632 8,287,514
Net exchange loss (gain) b H 518 (B F)) JF 88 2,170 (1,660)
Notes: et
2015 2014
—E—AF —ZT—mF
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FTHET TET
(a) Depreciation of property, plant and W MBREEZIE
equipment:
Owned assets BHEEE 49,558 38,627
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of W BRERANIREAZEH
confracts in progress (5,400) (4,481)
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of B BRBERPBEERZ ©F
hotel under development (11,755) (1,060)
32,403 33,086
(b)  Operating lease rentals in respect of: KERHES -
Premises mE 50,406 37,358
Plant and machinery WA K H 2% 112,313 105,528
162,719 142,886
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of W BRERANIREAZEH
contracts in progress (113,509) (108,347)
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of B BERERDEEEAZER
hotel under development (21,468) (6,340)
27,742 28,199
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11. LOSS FOR THE YEAR (Continued)

(c)

(d)

1. FEBE (&)

Notes: (Continued) HtaE - (&)
2015 2014
—E-RF —ZE-mEF
HK$’000 HK$' 000
TET FET
Release of prepaid land lease payments: ERFEN T A E A
Release of prepaid land lease payments BRFEN T A EHIE 104,591 104,591
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of B BRBERPEEERAZ &R
hotel under development (104,016) (104,016)
575 575
Staff costs: BIRKA :
Directors’ emoluments (Note 9) FEMWS (HE9) 52,128 56,150
Other sfaff costs: Hih 8 TRA :
Salaries, discretionary bonus and I BEIEA R E AR T
other benefits 842,627 671,812
Retirement benefit scheme contributions, IRRTEFET 81 4R (IR 2R Mz itk
net of forfeited contributions of 94,0008 T (ZE— M4 :
HK$94,000 (2014: HK$200,000) 200,000 7T) ) 22,901 23,843
Equity-settled share-based payment AR B ARMD AER 25X
expenses 6,444 11,118
924,100 762,923
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of B BREREHNIRERAZ 8
contracts in progress (562,979) (494,234)
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of B BRBERPEEERZ &R
hotel under development (188,510) (112,931)
172,611 155,758

12. DISTRIBUTIONS

No dividend was recognised as distributions to owners of the

Company during both years.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for
the year ended 31 March 2015 (2014: Nil).

12. ik

FEZBRE(ZT—MF : &) -

BEt+t=5EFRLA

RZMmEFE  BEARNRBEEADIKES

EETRMENBE-S-AF=A=T+—AL
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No’res to the Consolidated Financial Statements

n\/-_]_\

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #ZE—=

13.

CRE R

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
atfributable to the owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

—HEF=A=t—RALFE

13. BREE
ARRFEAEANEBEZEREAREEERIIRE
THIBIEEE

Loss 518
2015 2014
—E-Af —MOF
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
THERT FET
Loss for the purposes of basic and diluted BERERREGEIR 2 EE
loss per share:
Loss for the year affributable to owners RRABHEE ANEIEFEBR
of the Company (29,883) (50,5806)
Number of shares BHEE
Number Number
of shares of shares
Bin&E & & B
Weighted average number of ordinary EERERREEER
shares for the purpose of basic and diluted Z = 38 A% DA 15 8
loss per share (Note) (Htat) 548,042,386 390,686,039

Note: The weighted average number of ordinary shares adopted in
the calculation of basic and diluted loss per share for both years
have been arrived at after deducting the shares held in trust for

the Company by an independent trustee.

The computation of diluted loss per share for the year ended
31 March 2015 does not assume the exercises of convertible
bonds and the unvested shares awarded outstanding for the
year ended 31 March 2015 since assumed such exercises
would result in a decrease in loss per share. In addition, the
computation of diluted loss per share for year ended 31 March
2015 does not assume the exercises of exchange right granted
fo opfion holders under a subsidiary’s share option scheme
and the Company's share options outstanding during the year
because the adjusted exercise prices of those exchange rights
and options were higher than the average market price of the

shares during the year.

The computation of diluted loss per share for the year ended
31 March 2014 does not assume the exercises of convertible
bonds, exchange right granted to option holders under a
subsidiary’s share option scheme, the Company’s share options
and the unvested shares awarded outstanding for the year
ended 31 March 2014 since assumed such exercises would

result in a decrease in loss per share.
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14. HOTEL UNDER DEVELOPMENT 14.

The movement of the hotel under development for the year

ended 31 March 2015 and 2014 is set out below:

BERPBE/E
HE_T—hAGFEKR-_ZFT—NF=ZA=+—HLHF
EEEREE 2 EBEHIMT

HK$' 000
FAET

COST 2%
At 1 April 2013 R-ZZE—=F1AH—H 33,933
Addition NE 898,705
At 31 March 2014 RZE—W&E=A=+—H 932,638
Addition NE 1,700,925
At 31 March 2015 RZE—R&F=ZA=+—H 2,633,563

The hotel under development is erected on a piece of land on
the Cotai Strip of Macau which is held under a medium-erm
lease. The amounts capitalised in the hotel under development
mainly represent the release of prepaid land lease payments,
effective interest of convertible bonds and bank borrowings,
share-based payments and share award expenses, directors
and key management's emoluments, other staff cosfs, direct
construction costs as well as other professional fees including
design fee and consultancy fees. The capitalised share-
based payments, share award expenses, directors and key
management's emoluments are based on the roles and functions
of each individuals and their relevant time spent in relation to the

hotel under development project during the year.

BERPAEZMNEPRA SR AEN B L
WARBHEOFE - RBERPEERERELAZESE
TREERENLHAEFR - RRES KR
EEERAE - ARD AR MR KR 2R
X EBEERTIEEEAEME  HMEIXA B
BEERRZIRRAREGMEXER (BERAEAR
BEER) - CRAERZUARMOASERZMAR
iy BB BERTEERAEBZMEHRE
EMALZABRBRERFARAZRTEEZ
HRARREE
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #E—ZF—-—RF=A=+—HIFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT/DEPOSITS 15, ¥13 - MR REWIB Y - B R

PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY, PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT

(a)  Property, plant and equipment

B2EMET£

(a) WD - WWNERE
Plant, Furniture,
machinery fixtures and
Leasehold and Motor office
improvement  equipment vehicles  equipment Total
HRE-£BR
HEEE HHRES RE OBAERE @t
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FTHAT TAET FAET FTHT FTAET
CosT B
At 1 April 2013 R-E—=FmMA—H = 281,075 34,226 66,817 382,118
Translation adjustments B 5, 382 - - 9 12) 7
Additions NE 21,725 16,823 8,002 17,149 63,699
Disposals e = (16,220 (3,291) (1,189 (20,700
At 31 March 2014 R-ZE-—mNF=A=+—H 21,725 281,678 38,946 82,775 425,124
Translation adjusiments [ i, 38 2 - (20) 9) (56) (85)
Additions NE 9956 10,159 6,125 Q108 35,348
Disposals & = (18,687 (3,233) (1,390 (23,310
At 31 March 2015 R-E—RAF=A=+—H 31,681 273,130 41,829 90,437 437,077
DEPRECIATION nE
At 1 April 2013 RZZE—=%MA—H = 101,782 23,384 50,530 175,696
Translation adjusiments [ i, 38 2 = = 4 3 7
Provided for the year AEERE 1,456 24,849 4,515 7,807 38,627
Eliminated on disposals & 14 %1 4 = (9,315) (2,626) (961) (12,902
At 31 March 2014 R-E-—NF=A=+—H 1,456 117,316 25,277 57,379 201,428
Translation adjustments & 5 3% - (9) (8) (22) (39)
Provided for the year AEERE 8,890 25,560 4,723 10,385 49 558
Eliminated on disposals £ 14 ¥ 84 - (17,009) 2,179 (1,017) (20,205
At 31 March 2015 RZZE—RF=RA=1+—H 10,346 125,858 27,813 66,725 230,742
CARRYING VALUES SREE
At 31 March 2015 R-ZE—RAF=A=+—H 21,335 147,272 14,016 23,712 206,335
At 31 March 2014 RZE-—mF=A=+—H 20,269 164,362 13,669 25,396 223,696
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15.

16.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT/DEPOSITS 15. W% MR ERE BT - BRMKRE
PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY, PLANT wze s (&)
AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
(a)  Property, plant and equipment (Continued) (@) #3% BWERE (&)
The above items of property, plant and equipment are Pt MR ERRETDNERERTIE
depreciated on a straightline basis at the following rates K EFE -
per annum:
leasehold improvement  Over the shorter of the term of HEEE THEASK3F (AR &
the lease or 3 years RYE)
Plant, machinery and 10% — 33'/,% M- MESMERE 10%-331/4%
equipment
Motor vehicles 20% RE 20%
Furniture, fixtures and 20% — 33'/3% RE EER 20%-33'/,%
office equipment N
(b)  Deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant and b) WEBM%E EEEREZCHTS
equipment
During the vyear, the Group paid HK$38,807,000 FA - AEBEERPBREABLE=AX
[2014: Nil) to an independent third party as deposit for 1157438,807,000% L (=& — U4 : £E)
acquisition of motor vehicles.
PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 16. AT ERKE
Analysed for reporting purposes as follows: HEHREOTAMMOT
2015 2014
—2-1%F —T-F
HK$’000 HK$' 000
TFHT FHET
Non-current assets FERBEE 1,716,894 1,821,485
Current assets mENE E 104,591 104,591
1,821,485 1,926,076

The Group's prepaid land lease payments comprise leasehold

interest in land with medium-term leases situated in:

AEE 2 AN LI E KB RE RN T2
AR SRR A 2 I E S

2015 2014

—Z—-AhF —T—F

HK$’ 000 HK$' 000

FTERT FHET

Hong Kong e 18,536 19,111
Macau (Note) SBPY (B aE) 1,802,949 1,906,965
1,821,485 1,926,076

BHET=KBEARAA 20155 ]35
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE—Z—AF=A=1+—HIFE

16. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS (Continued)

Note: New Concordia Hotel Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, has been granted an irrecoverable and exclusive
power of attorney (“POA") in respect of interest in a parcel of
land situated on the Cotai Strip of Macau (the “Land”). Taken into

consideration of a legal opinion, POA is considered fo be a legal

16. AN LMBER

5 (%)

et - ¥ @Eﬁlﬂgﬂ (ARBZz2EWBRR) &
BEPRMABREEREZ R (L)) 2
AARERER 2 REE ((RIEE]) - 8EZEE
BREAKR REERALSRMEBEERZIAEX
B AIRE - RS R E L AR 2 A s

instrument commonly used in Macau fo grant, assign or transfer RHES -
rights, interest and powers on or relating fo the Land.
17. GOODWILL 7. B2
HK$' 000
FET
COST D%
At 1 April 2013, 31 March 2014 and 2015 RZTE—=FMA—H  —Z—NFR-_T-—HF=HA=+—H0 064412
IMPAIRMENT WAE
At 1 April 2013, 31 March 2014 and 2015 HRZZT—=FMA—H - —MOERZT-—RF=ZA=+—8 (2,766
CARRYING VALUES IREE
At 31 March 2014 and 2015 R-ZE—NER-_FT—HF=A=+—H 61,646
For the purpose of impairment fesfing, the carrying amount of BETRENSENS  HEEmEDBAREERE

goodwill has been allocated to the cash-generating units ["CGUs")
of building construction in the management contracting segment.

The recoverable amount of the above CGU has been
determined based on value in use calculations. The Group
prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent
financial budgets approved by management for the next two
years (2014: two years] and exfrapolates cash flows for the
following five years (2014: five years) with a steady growth
rate of 5% (2014: 5%). The rate used to discount the forecast
cash flows is 9% (2014: 9%). The value in use calculations
is calculated based on the budgefed gross margin, which is
determined using the unit's past performance and management's

expectations for the market development.
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18. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. HttEFLEE

2015 & 2014
—EZ-HFER-Z—HE
HK$' 000
TET
Other intangible assets comprise: Hih B EEBRE
Club membership in Hong Kong, at cost BEZEMEE  REK 7,000
Motor vehicles registration marks, at cost BB R 627
7,627
The above intangible assefs have indefinite useful lives. The TR EEAEFREAFH - ESKL2ERHT
directors are of the opinion that the club membership and motor MHEBRERE  SHEERERELHISZEE
vehicles registration marks are worth at least their carrying Z2OHEENEREE -
amounts by reference fo lafest market prices.
19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 19. BtENAIRER
2015 2014
—2—1fF —TlEF
HKS$’000 HK$' 000
TFET FET
Cost of unlisted investments in associates WA IE ETHEE R F Z BOR 32,594 32,594
Share of postacquisition losses and BERBRZBEBAREMEEMS
other comprehensive expenses, HIBRE WERR B
net of dividends received (7,853) (5,571)
24,741 27,023
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19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 19. BENFER (?;E)
Aggregate information of associates that are not individually AR IEBE AN 2Bt Z N7 2 BEHEE :
material:
2015 2014
—Z-hHfF —T—mEF
HKS$’ 000 HK$' 000
FET FHT
The Group's share of loss AEB#(EEE (2,284) (757)
The Group's share of other comprehensive REE G HM P E Y
income 2 6
The Group's share of total comprehensive REEELEEAXEHE
expense (2,282) (751)
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's N SE )N N
interests in associates ZIRERE 24,741 27,023
Particulars of the Group's principal associates as at 31 March REEBEFEBERAINR_ZE-—HAFR-F
2015 and 2014 are set out in note 43(c). F=ZA=+—BZHBHS Jﬁ/\\ﬁﬁ ¥43(c) °
20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 20. BEERER
2015 2014
—Z—AfF —ET-mEF
HK$’000 HK$' 000
FHET FHET
Cost of unlisted investments in joint ventures RERIELETERERE KR 51,773 51,773
Share of post-acquisition profits and other B IE R 2w F R B2 E W
comprehensive income, net of dividends Mk B U EE B
received 39,694 37,736
91,467 89,509
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20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 20.
The summarised financial information in respect of the Group's
material joint venture, HIEHMEZEBRAF], and its wholly-
owned subsidiary, FUINEIERHRFHBEERAR], is set out
below. The summarised financial information below represents
amounts shown in the joint venture's financial statements
prepared in accordance with HKFRS.

Financial position of the joint venture as at 31 March:

BEhEER (B
BRAKRBEERAELCENIXBERARAA
REZ2EMNBRAMMAEEHMERAEERARZ
MBEERBMERIITX - ATHBEERBEESE
CERBEBVBBREEARE P BHRERAT
ZEHE e

AECER=ZAZ+T—BZHEBHBHRRI

2015 2014
“E-i¥ —FT-mEF
HKS$’000 HK$' 000
FET FHET
Non-current assets IEMENE EE 231,689 232,090
Current assets MENE E 4,907 6,414
Current liabilities ViEIR=RE (10,395) (9,890)
Non-current liabilities EREBEE (48,086) (53,147)
Net assets of the joint venture BELEARERE 178,115 175,461
The above amounts of assets and liabilities T EERBESERE
include the following: TFIEIE
Cash and cash equivalents RehERSEEEH 4,757 6,281
Current financial liabilities (excluding frade nPEHAER(TBEES KEAM
and other payables and provisions) FEATFRIE R B E) 4,994 5,000
Non-current financial liabilities (excluding frade  JERBI € BB E (TRIEE S K EAM
and other payables and provisions) FEAS FRIE R e ti) 23,720 28,750

Reconciliation of its nef assets fo the carrying amount of the
interest in the joint venture:

BREPREAEFEREESREECHE -

2015 2014

—E—-1F —T-lEF

HKS$’000 HK$ 000

TFHET THT

Net assets of the joint venture BENEZEEFE 178,115 175,461

Proportion of the Group's ownership inferest REERGECERERRE

in the joint venture Wz 2 A 50% 50%
Carrying amount of the Group's inferest rEBzEEbERGE 2 REE

in the joinf venture 89,057 87,730
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #ZE—=

—HEF=A=t—RALFE

20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 20. EEERER (B)
Results of the joint venture for the year ended 31 March: EEMCFEBE=A=T—HILFEZXEE:
2015 2014
—hf — 5
HK$’000 HK$' 000
TFHT THET
Revenue WA 12,514 11,875
Profit for the year FEn 2,873 1,488
Other comprehensive expense for the year FRAMPEAX (219) (169)
Total comprehensive income for the year FREE2EWEAE 2,654 1,319
The Group's share of profit REBEEIE RN 1,437 744
Aggregate information of joint ventures that are not individually BRIEBEA T ALY ER4AE
material:
2015 2014
—iF —T e
HKS$’000 HK$' 000
TFET FET
The Group's share of profit AREE (LR 797 552
The Group's share of other comprehensive RNEEEGE M EE X
expense (166) (25)
The Group's share of fotal comprehensive REEEA 2 RE

income 631 527

Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's REERGECE R REAE

interests in joint ventures 2,410 1,779
Particulars of the Group's principal joint ventures at 31 March AEBERFEGEPENR_ZT—HFR_FT—NO
2015 and 2014 are set out in note 43(d). F=A=1+—BZ2FBEEINRHFE43(d) °
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21.

22.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO CUSTOMERS FOR

21. B/ REFENIRENE

CONTRACT WORKS
2015 2014
—E—1f —T—MF
HK$’000 HK$' 000
TFHT FHET
Confracts in progress at the end of RBERARZERZALH TR
the reporting period:
Contract costs incurred BEEEZEHIKA 65,691,529 61,445,839
Recognised profits less recognised losses AR MR A FE R B 1R 1,683,976 1,410,380
67,375,505 62,856,219
Less: Progress billings B EE R (68,202,096) 63,554,289)
(826,591) 698,070)
Analysed for reporting purposes as: HEHRENTANE
Amounts due from customers for contract works  JEUWRE P& #) T2 7138 824,031 723,800
Amounts due to customers for contract works ERNEFPEATIIENRE (1,650,622) (1,421,870)
(826,591) 698,070)
TRADE AND OTHER DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND 22. B REMEBBWHIE ST REMNKIE
PREPAYMENTS
2015 2014
—E—-1F —ET—NF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHET THET
Trade debtors =Y A& e 828,837 604,121
Refention held by customers expected BEEHBEPN TIMREERE
fo be settled: ZRES :
— within twelve months from the end —WERREEI2EA AN
of the reporting period 442,085 291,047
— affer twelve months from the end — ¥ EHIREE 1 2E A 1%
of the reporting period 424,082 334,145
Advance payments to sub-contractors 1093 217 2 52 AT FRIE 568,229 585,870
Construction and material purchase costs Ko A A 2 s R RHERE R AR
paid on behalf of sub-contractors 234,797 218,342
Other debtors, deposits and prepayments H i fEURIR - 7] & R FA N 3R 159,908 240,683
2,657,938 2,274,208

BEt+t=5EFRLA
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #E—ZF—-—RF=A=+—HIFE

22. TRADE AND OTHER DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND 22.
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

Trade debtors mainly arise from management contracting
business. The Group's credit terms for its management
confracting business are negotiated at ferms defermined and
agreed with its trade customers. The credit periods are ranging
from 60 to 90 days.

The aged analysis of frade debtors, net of allowance for
doubtful debts, presented based on the invoice date at the end
of the reporting period is as follows:

5 REMEBWRIR - ST ERBAMRIE (&)

BHRWFIEEERBARERER - AEBAGE
EREBCERPNEESEPERRAY - F8
HIBO0H £90R & -

RBEYR - UBHZERAR/ELEZ2H 2 KRR
EHRZEDRUGBZRESITAOT

Ny

2015 2014

—ZE—hF U

HK$’000 HK$' 000

Ti#E&xT FHET

Within 90 days Q0H A 786,553 554,075
More than 90 days and within 180 days HBEOOHER180HA 2,624 15,504
More than 180 days HBiB180H 39,660 34,542
828,837 604,121

The Group maintains a defined credit policy to assess the credit
quality of the trade customers. The collection is closely monitored

fo minimise any credit risk associated with these trade debtors.

The aged analysis presented based on the invoice date of the

trade debtors which are past due but not impaired is as follows:

$’$l%ﬁ%ﬁ&ﬁ%ﬁk%ﬁ%%ﬁ‘éﬂ%%ﬁZ%E
B8 WHRTIERENERENEERETAEZS
B 5 WK IE*HE@ZEEHM

EEBMERRECEZRRAAREZEAHRE
E25| 2 R DITAT :

2015 2014

et Lk g 2 —E—MF

HKS$’000 HK$' 000

THET THT

More than 90 days and within 180 days H#BOOF BN 180H A 2,624 15,504
More than 180 days HiB180H 39,660 34,542
42,284 50,046

The directors of the Company consider that there has not been
a significant change in credit quality of the trade debtors and
there is no recent history of default, therefore the amounts are
considered recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral

over these balances.

Maijority of the trade debtors that are neither past due nor

impaired have no default payment history.
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22. TRADE AND OTHER DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND

PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

Movement in allowance for doubtful debts of individually
impaired frade debtors during the year is as follows:

B5 RHEMBYRIR - FIERBAMNRE (&)

RER - ERIEREEZERFBZREREEZD
BRMT

2015 2014

—Z-1F —Z—F

HK$’000 HK$’ 000

TET FET

Balance at beginning of the year FER 1,721 1,721
Impairment loss recognised during the year FAERZREER 2,112 -
Balance at end of the year FERER 3,833 1,721

Included in other debtors, deposits and prepayments in the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March
2014 was an aggregate sum of HK$82,500,000 which
was recoverable from an independent third party in respect of
amounts paid by the Group in previous years for financing a
property development project in Beijing, the PRC (the “Project”).
The amount has been fully recovered during the year ended

31 March 2015. A loss arising from the sefflement of amounts

AR CZE-—HF=ZA=+—B2ZHEaMBIRR
RPZHEMEKFOR  FTE REMNFBRERE—
B % =7 — £ # 582,500,000/ 7t 2 ;A -
BASERAEFERTRIERA —BENEERER
B(ZEBDZEMNFE ZHREACRBE_Z
—HF=ZA=+-ALFEREZHKED - REHE
EfNZEEESMES27,3180008 T ZEEE
RBE-_ZT-—HF=A=+T—RHILFEHFEER

paid for financing the Project of HK$27,318,000 had been FMER R E M WGRIA 2R EREE -

recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as an

impairment loss in respect of other debtors for the year ended

31 March 2014.

AEEUEAEEEBCNEEBUIIZERR
BB 5 REMBKFR  RE RANFBENT

The Group's trade and other debtors, deposits and prepayments
that are denominated in currencies other than the functional

currency of the relevant group entfities are set out below:

2015 2014

—=—hE —ET—NF

HKS$’000 HK$' 000

FHET FAET

Renminbi ("RMB") AREB(TARE] 2,308 3,705
MOP Pkt 193 193
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #HZEZ=Z

23. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO ASSOCIATES/

—HEF=A=t—RALFE

23. WM *“**"_J/A**iE%/A

JOINT VENTURES/JOINT OPERATIONS/OTHER %/ EEEBHMBERIE
PARTNERS OF JOINT OPERATIONS
(a)  Amounts due from/to associates/joint ventures (o) EBW FHEAR EELEZRIE
(i) Amounts due from associates: JE Uk Bt 2 N B FRIE
2015 2014
—Z—hHF —ZT—mEF
HK$’000 HK$' 000
T#ET FHT
Trade balances B 5% 1,356 31,006
Refention held by an
associate expected fo —fEHE R A B TERRN T
be settled: Hf&E ZIRE® -
— within twelve months —REHAREFI2ZEAR
from the end of the
reporfing period 129 =
— after twelve months —$EHAREE2ME A &
from the end of
the reporting period 129 258
Non-trade balance which B SERTVEER 28
is unsecured, interestfree RBREREEER
and repayable on demand 14,432 -
16,046 31,264

The trade balances due from associates have a

credit period of 90 days and the aged analysis

EUBENRCBESEBRZERENR
Q0H  MRBEHRRUNERAHAE

presented based on the invoice date at the end of EE2HR2BWRAOTHT ¢
the reporting period is as follows:
2015 2014
—2-1fF —T-lEF
HKS$’000 HK$’ 000
TF#T THET
Within 90 days 90H A 108 466
More than 90 days and H#HBOORER180H A
within 180 days - 1,203
More than 180 days ##iB180H 1,248 29,337
1,356 31,006
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23. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO ASSOCIATES/ 23. B HHBE QR SEL¥E &

JOINT VENTURES/JOINT OPERATIONS/OTHER & EEEBREMBAELTRIE (&)
PARTNERS OF JOINT OPERATIONS (Continued)
(a)  Amounts due from/to associates/joint ventures (@) EBW FEEAR &&0EFE (E)
(Continued)
(i) Amounts due from associates: (Continued) ) FEREEAEIRIE : (&)
The above balances aged over 90 days are Pt BRERERBO0R Z At R E B HIE
past due but not impaired. The directors of the ARE - RAREFERR ZEHER
Company consider that there has not been a RICEEEEEE NS BB
significant change in credit quality of the associates ETAREE WRABZEREERT
and there is no recent hisfory of default. Therefore, W [E o
the amounts are considered recoverable.
Included in the Group's amounts due from RZB-—MFEF=A=+—0  KEEE
associates at 31 March 2014 was a balance of W B 2 N B B IE B3R A 828,415,000
HK$28,415,000 denominated in RMB which was BT WAARESE AR
not the functional currency of the relevant group WIHEHEEEE e B -
entity.
[i) ~ Amounts due from joint ventures: i) ElEEPHENRE:
2015 2014
it Ll - 2 —E-MmEF
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FET FHET
Trade balances B % 464,285 362,591
Refention held by a jointventure  —f& & BEFARHAN TFIHMH
expected to be seffled: HEEZRES
— within twelve months from the —WEHREFI2EAR
end of the reporting period 15,521 14,691
— after twelve months from the — ¥ EARAERT 1 218 A 1&
end of the reporting period 15,521 6,019
Non-rade balance which is FEGERIEERR 2B
unsecured, inferestfree and RARERFEER
repayable on demand = 111
495,327 383,412
The trade balances due from joint ventures which BREELCECZESEBZEEDRR
have a credit period of 90 days are aged within Q0R - MMIMERRABLZRRSE
Q0 days based on the invoice dafe at the end of HEZ R F0RRA -

the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE—Z—AF=A=1+—HIFE

23. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO ASSOCIATES/
JOINT VENTURES/JOINT OPERATIONS/OTHER
PARTNERS OF JOINT OPERATIONS (Continued)

(a)  Amounts due from/to associates/joint ventures (a)
(Continued)

23. Bl ABERT ALK
% AE R B HAE ()

W, HENTE SELX 2R (F)
& A Bt

liii)  Amounts due to associates: (iii) NR)FRIA

2015 2014
—2—-A1fF —F-mF
HKS$’000 HK$' 000
TFHET THET
Retention held by the Group REEBHEHAR T EELEE
expected fo be setiled: ZRER :
— within twelve months from —HEHRETI2EAR
the end of the reporting
period 21,128 25,299
— after twelve months from —HE B A1 218 A 12
the end of the reporting
period 6,567 5,417
Nonrade balances IEEFEH 791 13,955
28,486 44,671
The nontrade balances due to associates are FERTEE L N B 2 FEE AR T IR -
unsecured, interestfree and repayable on demand REBNARBEREEER R T —
except for an amount due to an associate of FZA=+t—HERMN—FHEERER
HK$13,125,000 as at 31 March 2014 which 813,125,000 7T 1% [E & £ 7 X1 %5t
was interest bearing at a fixed rate of 1% per BRERBE-ZZ—HF=A=+—
annum and repaid during the year ended 31 HIEFEREER -

March 2015

liv  Amount due fo a joint venture:

liv)] EN—Ee&EeEKE:

2015 2014
—Z-hfF —T—MmEF
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FTET FHET
Non-trade balance which B DR TEER
is unsecured, interestfree and RERAERERKEFEE
repayable on demand 2,868 -
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23. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO ASSOCIATES/

23

JOINT VENTURES/JOINT OPERATIONS/OTHER
PARTNERS OF JOINT OPERATIONS (Continued)

(b)

Amounts due from/to joint operations/other partners
of joint operations

Amounts represent balances due from and fo joint
operations, which are deemed to be borne by
other partners of such joint operations, amounting
to HK$34,868,000 (2014: HK$3,121,000) and
HK$84,841,000 (2014: HK$120,803,000),
respectively, and balances due from and to other pariners
of joint operations amounting to HK$84,697,000
[2014: HK$128,291,000] and HK$2,025,000 (2014:
HK$2,640,000), respectively.

[l Amounts due from joint operations/other pariners

. B NS LNT AR AEE
%/ aEEBEME AR (F)

(b)

BUW NEEEYR  AEEREMENE
;I8

EREREMNEEELZRE (WE BB
HZEELEEBEMBELEEE) 55
34,868,000 7T (ZZF—P 4 : 3,121,000
HIT) &84,841,0008 T (— B — £ :
120,803,000/ 7c) - MEW R EN A & %
BHMBE 2 E8D 584,607,000/ T (=
T — U4 : 128,291,000 7T) K&2,025,000
BEIL(ZZ— 4 : 2,640,00087T) °

) BREEXELR AEEBEMEHZ

of joint operations: FIR
2015 2014
—E—5%F —ET—NF
HK$’000 HK$' 000
FT#ET FHT
Trade balance B 5% 58 =
Refention held by joint &L XA AN T 5
operations expected to BBEZRER
be settled:
— within twelve months —REBAREFI2ZEAR
from the end of
the reporting period 6,721 3,121
— after twelve months from —$EHARERE 28 A 1%
the end of the
reporting period 3,600 =
Non-trade balances which are FESERTEERT B
unsecured, interestfree and FEREBERRER
repayable on demand 109,186 128,291
119,565 131,412

The trade balance due from a joint operation which
has a credit period of 90 days is aged within 90
days based on the invoice date at the end of the

reporting period.

R —HaLEEBIERRERZIEE
HIR00R MR MEMRIAERAH
REEZREKRBOHA -
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #HZEZZF

23. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO ASSOCIATES/
JOINT VENTURES/JOINT OPERATIONS/OTHER
PARTNERS OF JOINT OPERATIONS (Continued)

7%}, FEH&//4T BENR,/ BERE

—HEF=A=t—RALFE

AJ\J\%
%/ EEEBEMEERE (&)

(b)  Amounts due from/to joint operations/other partners (b) EUW HEEEYK AEEFREMBE
of joint operations (Continued) IR (%)
[i) ~ Amounts due fo joint operations/other partners of il BENEEXER GEEBEMBNZ
joint operations: RIE
2015 2014
—E—aF —T-lEF
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
TF#T THET
Trade balance R 100 374
Non-rade balances which are FESERDEER LR
unsecured, interestfree and MARERFEERE
repayable on demand 86,766 123,069
86,866 123,443
The frade balance due fo a joint operation which EN—ALER Y BEESR I EE

has a credit period of 90 days is aged within 90
days based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period.

24. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO SUBSIDIARIES OF A
SHAREHOLDER/LOAN FROM A SUBSIDIARY OF A
SHAREHOLDER

()  Amounts due from subsidiaries of a shareholder

HIRO0H MR BEMRAZRAH
REEZ BRI ROOA A o

24, B t—EBRRz2HBRARFRE, —&
BRRz— BB RER

(i) EHR—BRRZHEQBHE

2015 2014

—E2—hf —T—-EF

HKS$’000 HK$' 000

T#ERT AT

Trade balances Y13 15,011 15,489
Non-rade balance which is B SEBRTVEER B8

unsecured, interestfree and NBREREFEE
repayable on demand 48,580 46,505
63,591 61,994
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24.

25.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO SUBSIDIARIES OF A 24, B —EBRRZMBARRE"—H
SHAREHOLDER/LOAN FROM A SUBSIDIARY OF A BREz—EHNEARER(E)
SHAREHOLDER
(i)  Amounts due from subsidiaries of a shareholder (i) EW—EBRRZHERBFIEGE)
(Continued) {EEHA0R RN RS HARERAPAE
The trade balances due from subsidiaries of a shareholder A7 ERERHBE180H 2 U — B R 2 M /B
have a credit period of Q0 days and are aged over 180 RRAIZESERREBHRERRE - AR F
days based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting EERE —EZBREZHNBRARZEEEZ
period, which are past due but not impaired. The WHEEARE L BABHTENRDE MR
directors of the Company consider that there has not been AR EFIAEN T -
a significant change in credit quality of the subsidiaries
of a shareholder and there is no recent history of default.
Therefore, the amounts are considered recoverable.
In addition, included in the above trade balances WO A LEWR—ZWRRZHBRARZE
due from subsidiaries of a shareholder consists of S 1E14,424,0008 L (Z T — 04 :
HK$14,424,000 (2014: HK$14,442,000) which 14,442,000%7T) * HiEFBEARBITA
is interest bearing af a floafing rate af the benchmark Mz EEERFERLBEZERFE (AR
lending rate as announced by the People’s Bank of China BEALE)NFELB8RZIZEHEGFE R
or relevant borrowing rate, whichever is higher, plus 8% WMEMRFMENI442%(ZF — M F -
per annum which is approximately 14.42% (2014:15.20%) 15.20%) °
per annum at the end of the reporting period.
(i) Amounts due to subsidiaries of a shareholder (i) EN—'BRRZHEDTFE
2015 2014
—Z-Ah%F —E-MmEF
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FET FHET
Nontrade balance which is unsecured, FEFERTEERR 28
interestfree and repayable on demand RAREREFEE 493 345
Non-rade balances which are unsecured, FEFERTVEERE  RE
inferestree and repayable on or RAR-_ZE—HF+-A
before 31 December 2015 =+—HxkZHEE 15,300 15,300
15,793 15,645
(iii) Loan from a subsidiary of a shareholder (i) —BRRZ—BEMHBARER
The loan from a subsidiary of a shareholder is unsecured, — 2R RZ —REHE AR Z BRI EEE
interest bearing at a floafing rate at the best lending rate REBHEENEMNE L2622 FBFE L
in Hong Kong plus 2% per annum and repayable within FRBAR—FANEE -
one year.
OTHER LOANS RECEIVABLE 25 HitpEwE=

The other loans receivable are unsecured, interest bearing at a
floating rate af the best lending rate in Hong Kong plus 6% per
annum and are recoverable within one year.

Included in other loans receivable is a balance of
HK$10,174,000 (2014: Nil) which is advanced to a
shareholder of the Company. The remaining balance is
advanced to an independent third party.

Hip B E T AEER - R ARBENENE
BO% F ARG B RN —FARAIYE -

Hitp e ERBE—FRE0,174,0008 T (= F
—OEFE) 2B DR TARR —BREZE
R RTHERBA—RBLE=TTBHN -
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26. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS, SHORT TERM BANK 26. BEMBITER - BHRITERRRT

DEPOSITS AND BANK BALANCES AND CASH BREES
2015 2014
—hE —T—mF
HK$’000 HK$' 000
FHET FHET
Pledged bank deposits BIRIRITER 46,878 16,032
Short ferm bank deposits EEIRITIE R 2,138,346 1,409,900
Bank balances and cash RITHEB RS 1,036,459 629,027
3,221,683 2,054,959
less: e
Pledged bank deposits EHEFIRITER (46,878) (16,032)
Short term bank deposits with maturity 838 =i A8 DR —F 25
more than three months but less than a year 2R ERITE K (900,000) -
Cash and cash equivalents BehERESEHEIAE 2,274,805 2,038,927
The pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to banks EEMBRTERIELAEBRER TEREHRE
fo secure banking facilities granted to the Group with maturity H—ERNIHEZRTREmMABTERZFZER - )7
within one year from the end of the reporting period and are DHEAEREEE - DIBSRTERREEEFEN
therefore classified as current assets. The pledged bank deposits FO0.01%ZE1.76% (ZZF—W4F : 1.04%F1.15%) 5+
carry fixed interest rates from 0.01% to 1.76% (2014: 1.04% to B o
1.15%) per annum.
The short term bank deposits with maturity dafe of less than DPR=ZEABE 2 BRI HERMAEE L H0.01%
three months carry prevailing market rates ranging from 0.01% 21.62%(ZZF—ME : 0.01%%1.52%) Zfﬁﬁfﬁ
1.62% (2014: 0.01% to 1.52%) per annum. The short ferm BHIE - BRE=EAELR— iﬁlj,ﬁﬂz%ﬁ,ﬁ,ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
bank deposits with maturity more than three months but less than HHEEBE R 28%E 1 3% (=2 —PU4F : &) 218
a year carry prevailing market rates ranging from 1.28% 1o 1.3% (2014: TSR o SRITEEBIITASIRNITH SN RE B HO%
Nil) per annum. The bank balances carry prevailing market rates Z0.35%(ZF—MF : O%E1.15%) °

ranging from 0% to 0.35% (2014: 0% to 1.15%) per annum.

The Group's short term bank deposits and bank balances and AEENEHEERERNEEEUIINZERAE
cash that are denominated in currencies other than the functional R SEESRIT R REIT&EHREIRES T -

currency of the relevant group entities are set out below:

2015 2014

—&E —ET-mEF

HK$’000 HK$' 000

THET FHET

RMB AR 18 1,145
MOP SR P 6,583 10,471
Singapore dollar (“SGD") ronsg oo ([#rns o)) 12,761 15,298
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27. TRADE AND OTHER CREDITORS AND ACCRUED

27. BESRAEMBEARERERHX

EXPENSES
2015 2014
—E-hfF —E-mEF
HK$’000 HK$' 000
FHET FHET
Trade creditors B 5 ENE 1,056,543 739,557
Retention held by the Group expected B A TEEAR T 51 #AfE
to be seftled: HEZRES
— within twelve months from the end —mEAREEI2EARN
of the reporting period 467,464 341,539
— after twelve months from the end —EHRER 2@ A%
of the reporting period 282,525 149,507
Advance receipts from customers REBF zEWEIE 131,373 721,866
Other creditors and accrued expenses H b A 5B R BRI X 280,219 339,911
2,218,124 2,292,380

The average credit period on frade creditors is QO days. The
Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure
that all payables are within the credit timeframe.

The aged analysis of trade creditors presented based on the

invoice date at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

BIRNRAZFHEERRIR - REER
iR EIERR - BARAE BN RIREEEER
R e

RBERAR  LERAMAZES R EHEIR
H2BRAFMT :

\:

2015 2014

—E—-h% —T O

HK$’000 HK$' 000

TFRT TET

Within 90 days Q0H N 1,030,869 727,803
More than Q0 days and within 180 days HBOORER180H A 5,628 298
More than 180 days ##iE180H 20,046 11,456
1,056,543 739,557

Included in other creditors and accrued expenses as at 31
March 2014 was an amount of HK$62,500,000 which was
payable to an independent third party arising from the seflement
of amounts paid by the Group in previous years for financing the
Project as disclosed in note 22. The amount had been settled
during the year ended 31 March 2015.

Included in trade and other creditors and accrued expenses
are balances of HK$13,589,000 (2014: HK$14,367,000)
denominated in MOP which is not the functional currency of the

relevant group entifies.

FARZZE-—HFE=ZA=+—BZHMENKE
K& BIE—ER%062,500,0008 T2 5KIA -
TEAGEAEENBEFERZER ZEMNRK
EMELAR - BBLE=NENZFKE #ER
MiFE22h K EE - R R IBERBE_ZT—HF=H
=t+—BLEFERES

BEoREMENREREFHAXEEARBE
BERNEEBUIN 2RI REMN 2 &
13,589,000 7T (ZF—MU4F : 14,367,000/87T) °
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28. BANK BORROWINGS

—HEF=A=t—RALFE

28. RITER

2015 2014
ot k2 — 4
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
TFHT THET
Bank loans RITREK
Secured AR 1,470,336 332,043
Unsecured 1 4 115,791 111,501
1,586,127 443,544
The bank borrowings are repayable as follows: RITERZEEHRET :
2015 2014
—$—-a%F —mF
HK$’000 HK$' 000
TFRT TET
On demand or within one year RBHMERS —F AT 487,610 440,926
More than one year, but not exceeding B —F - BN HBME
two years = 2,618
More than two years, but not exceeding HBME - BNHBBDF
five years 329,555 =
More than five years B8 T F 768,962 -
1,586,127 443,544
Less: Amount due within one year shown W —FARBAIHERS A E
under current liabilities 2 T8 (487,610) (440,9206)
Amount due after one year shown under —FRIPAIEERB EE
non-current liabilities 2 A 1,098,517 2,618

The Group's bank borrowings carry interest at floating rates
0% of

the benchmark lending rate as announced by the People’s Bank

ranging from the bank’s cost of funds plus 2.25% to 11

of China from time fo fime, with effecfive interest rate ranging
from 2.84% to 6.16% [2014: 1.71% to 6.70%) per annum.

As at 31 March 2015, the secured bank loans and the banking
facilities granted to the Group are secured by the Group's hotel
under development, property, plant and equipment, prepaid
land lease payments situated in Macau and bank deposits
with an aggregate carrying value of HK$2,633,563,000
(2014: Nil), HK$37,750,000 (2014: HK$81,873,000),
HK$1,802,949,000 (2014: Nil) and HK$46,878,000 (2014:
HK$16,032,000), respectively, and charges over the Group's

benefit from certain construction contracts.
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AEBERZBF R EZRITER - LB K H
RIRITE A MN2.25%F TP B A RBIT IR
Mz EEERANE L] O%EJré"aff"ﬂﬁf'J A
2.84%Z06.16%(ZF—MM4% : 1.71%%6.70%) °

RZZE—RF=A=+—8 BEBAETEREE
EEHERTZIRITRE AR EBI MR 2 %
BHEIE - W% B EEE BN BEENK
METERARAEEBETEEANEE 2 M
TR - HEREREEF 5 5l 52,633,563,000%
(=T —PU4E : ) « 37,750,000 7T (=T —Y
£ : 81,873,000/ 7T) ~ 1,802,949,0007% T (=
T— P04 : ) ;46,878,000 L (ZE— P04 :
16,032,000 7T) °



29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

(i)

Convertible bonds issued on 5 February 2013
(the “February 2013 Convertible Bonds”)

The Company issued 1,202,000,000 February 2013
Convertible Bonds with zero coupon rate at an inifial
conversion price of HK$0.68 each [subject to antidilutive
adjustments) on 5 February 2013 for a total proceed
of HK$1,202,000,000 (the principal amount). The
maturity date is the twelfth anniversary of the date of issue
of the February 2013 Convertible Bonds (the “Maturity
Date”). The February 2013 Convertible Bonds entitle
the holders to convert them info ordinory shares of the
Company af any time commencing on the dafe of issue
of the February 2013 Convertible Bonds and up to the
close of business on a day no later than seven days
prior fo the Maturity Date (both days inclusive). If the
convertible bonds have not been converted, they will
be redeemed on the Maturity Date at the face value of
February 2013 Convertible Bonds. The Company, from
the fifth anniversary of the date of issue of the February
2013 Convertible Bonds, may redeem the convertible
bonds in whole or in part, at principal and interest of 5%
per annum accrued for the remaining period from early
redemption date to the maturity date. The proceeds of
the February 2013 Convertible Bonds were allocated
info two components, debt and equity elements on initial

recognition.

With effect from 27 May 2013, the conversion price
of the February 2013 Convertible Bonds was adjusted
from HK$0.68 each to HK$6.80 each as a result of
share consolidation (see note 31(a) for details of share
consolidation). With effect from 15 November 2013,
the conversion price of the February 2013 Convertible
Bonds was further adjusted from HK$6.80 per share to
HK$6.65 per share upon the completion of the General
Mandate Placing (as defined in note 31(d]). Upon the
completion of the Specific Mandate Placing (as defined
in note 31(d)), the conversion price of the February 2013
Convertible Bonds was further adjusted from HK$6.65
per share to HK$6.55 per share.

On initial recognition, the fransaction cosfs incurred
for the issuance of the convertible bonds totalling
HK$60,395,000 were allocated into the debt
component and the equity component of HK$8,662,000
and HK$51,733,000 respectively, in proportion fo the

allocation of the gross proceeds.
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(i)
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29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Convertible bonds issued on 5 February 2013
(the “February 2013 Convertible Bonds”) (Continued)

Details of the adjusiments fo the conversion price as a
result of the share consolidation, the General Mandate
Placing and the Specific Mandate Placing are set out in
announcements dafed 24 April 2013, 15 November
2013 and 16 December 2013 respectively.

The February 2013 Convertible Bonds contain  two
components, debt and equity elements. The equity element
is presented in equity headed convertible bonds reserve.
The effective interest rate of the liability component is

approximately 18.1% per annum.

Convertible bonds issued on 16 December 2013
(the “December 2013 Convertible Bonds”)

The Company issued 299,942,350 December 2013
Convertible Bonds with zero coupon rafe af an initial
conversion price of HK$8.23 each (subject to anti-
dilutive adjustments) on 16 December 2013 for a total
proceed of HK$299,942 350 [the principal amount).
The maturity date is on 5 February 2025. The December
2013 Convertible Bonds enfifle the holders to convert
them info ordinary shares of the Company at any fime
commencing on the date of issue of the December 2013
Convertible Bonds and up fo the close of business on a
day no later than seven days prior to 5 February 2025
[both days inclusive). If the December 2013 Convertible
Bonds have not been converted, they will be redeemed
on 5 February 2025 at the face value of the December
2013 Convertible Bonds. The Company, from 5 February
2018, may redeem the December 2013 Convertible
Bonds in whole or in part, at principal and interest of 5%
per annum accrued for the remaining period from early
redemption date to 5 February 2025. The proceeds of
the December 2013 Convertible Bonds were allocated
info two components, debt and equity elements on initial
recognition. The equity element is presented in equity
heading convertible bonds reserve. The December 2013
Convertible Bonds have been valued as at 16 December
2013 on the basis carried out at that date by Asset
Appraisal Limited, an independent qualified professional
valuer not connected with the Group. The fair value of the
liability component of HK$47,391,000 is determined
using the effective inferest rate of the liability component

at approximately 18.5% per annum.
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(i)

(ii)
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29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Convertible bonds issued on 16 December 2013
(the “December 2013 Convertible Bonds”) (Continued)

On initial recognition, the fransaction cosfs incurred
for the issuance of the convertible bonds totalling
HK$12,408,000 were allocated into the debt
component and the equity component of HK$ 1,960,000
and HK$10,448,000 respectively, in proportion fo the

allocation of the gross proceeds.

Convertible bonds issued on 8 January 2015
(the “January 2015 Convertible Bonds”)

The Company issued 755,300,000 January 2015
Convertible Bonds with zero coupon rafe af an initial
conversion price of HK$3.00 each (subject fo antidilutive
adjustments) on 8 January 2015 for a fotal proceed
of HK$755,300,000 |the principal amount). The
maturity date is on 5 February 2025. The January 2015
Convertible Bonds entitle the holders to convert them into
ordinary shares of the Company af any time commencing
on the date of issue of the January 2015 Convertible
Bonds and up fo the close of business on a day no later
than seven days prior to 5 February 2025 (both days
inclusive). If the January 2015 Convertible Bonds have
not been converted, they will be redeemed on 5 February
2025 at the face value of the January 2015 Convertible
Bonds. The Company, from 5 February 2018, may
redeem the January 2015 Convertible Bonds in whole or
in part, at principal and interest of 5% per annum accrued
for the remaining period from early redemption date to
5 February 2025. The proceeds of the January 2015
Convertible Bonds were allocated into two components,
debt and equity elements on initial recognition. The
equity element is presented in equity heading convertible
bonds reserve. The January 2015 Convertible Bonds
have been valved as at 8 January 2015 on the basis
carried out at that date by Asset Appraisal Limited, an
independent qualified professional valuer not connected
with the Group. The fair value of the liability component
of HK$125,553,000 is defermined using the effective
interest rate of the liability component at approximately
19.9% per annum.

On initial recognition, the fransaction costs  incurred
for the issuance of the convertible bonds totalling
HK$27,915,000 were allocated into the debt
component and the equity component of HK$4,640,000
and HK$23,275,000 respectively, in proportion fo the

allocation of the gross proceeds.

29. ARRES (&)

(ii)

(iii)
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29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 29. AKRES (&)

(iii) Convertible bonds issued on 8 January 2015
(the “January 2015 Convertible Bonds”) (Continued)
The movements of the debt component of the February
2013 Convertible Bonds, the December 2013
Convertible Bonds and the January 2015 convertible
Bonds for the year ended 31 March 2014 and 31
March 2015 are set out below:

(i) RZE—HFE—ANBRITZAUEKRES
(Z=ZE—HE—ABKRES] (E)
HE-_Z-NE=ZA=+—BR_-_ZT—AF
A=t BUEE_T—=F_AF#HK
E% - —T—_¢+:Hﬂ%%%%&—
—AF—ARRESF BB 2 EEHEH
R

February 2013  December2013  January 2015

Convertible Convertible Convertible
Bonds Bonds Bonds Total
—g-=% —®-=F —®-E%
g +=A -A
TRRES THRRES TRRES st
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FET TRT TEL TER
At 1 April 2013 “Z-=4WA—-H 168,010 = = 168,010
Initial recognifion of debt component %7] iﬁﬁ R ES
of convertible bonds ZEBHS - 47,391 - 47,391
Transaction cosfs allocated fo liability PEETHREFZEE
component of convertible bonds R ZRHKAK - (1,960) - (1,960)
Derecognised upon exercise of RZZ—=F_RAA#R
conversion right aftached fo the A 2 R EE
February 2013 Convertible Bonds MR IEER
(as described in note 31(c)) (RBFE31() (5,541) - - (5,541)
Effective interest expense for the PERPEERTEAR
year capitalised in the hotel under ZFENEBEMEHX
development 20518 2,303 - 31,821
At 31 March 2014 RZZ-WF=A=1+—H 191,987 47,734 = 239,721
Initial recognition of debt component DI ERATARES
of convertible bonds LEBEHH = - 125,553 125,553
Transaction costs allocated fo liability PEEAARESFZ AR
component of convertible bonds BDZZHKAK - - (4,640) (4,640)
Effecive interest expense for the FERPEEHETEAR
year capitalised in the hotel under ZENERNEHRX
development 34,680 8,813 5176 48,669
At 31 March 2015 RZE-—RAF=A=+—H 226,667 56,547 126,089 409,303
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30. DEFERRED TAXATION

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets)

recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior

30. IEERIR
RAFREAEFECERZERELERARE (B
E)ARAAREEFINT

years:

Accelerated
tax Tax

depreciation losses Total

B RITE BIEEE st

HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$’' 000

FHT FAT AT

At 1 April 2013 R-ZE—=FMWA—H 13,411 (13,411) =

(Credit) charge to profit or loss KRBz (BT A) HBR (4,108) 4,108 -

At 31 March 2014 R-ZE—WME=A=+—H 9,303 (9,303) -

Charge (credit) o profit or loss REZ AR GTA 1,705 (1,705) =

At 31 March 2015 R-_ZE—RF=A=+—H 11,008 (11,008 -

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of
financial position, the above deferred tax assets and liabilities

have been offset.

As at 31 March 2015, the Group has unused tfax losses of
HK$593,564,000 (2014: HK$437,963,000) available for
offsefling against future taxable profits. A deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of HK$66,717,000 (2014:
HK$56,382,000) of such losses. No deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of the remaining tax losses
HK$526,847,000 (2014: HK$381,581,000) due fo the
unpredictability of future profit sireams. The unused tax losses

may be carried forward indefinitely.

As at 31 March 2015, the Group has deductible temporary
difference in respect of tax depreciation of HK$210,000 (2014
HK$244,000). No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
relation to such temporary difference as it is not probable that
faxable profit will be available against which the deductible

temporary difference can be utilised.

IEEMBARRNEINME - ERERBEEE
RABED T -

RZE—RAF=ZA=Z+—HB XEBEXRH
Pl %4 18 B 18593,564,0008 & (T — 0 & -
437,963,000 70) & FA LA 45 $5 5k 7 fE 5% B i
Flogt L EBEEBERELEHRIEEZESS,717,000
BT (T — M4 : 56,382,000/ 78) ° B &K
BERTE AR GMRIRE WL ERFAHIEESE
526,847,000 7T (= 2 — P4 : 381,581,000/
JO) ERIBELEAHIBEE - RS HAHIEFIE T &
PR EAE S o

RIZE-—RF=A=+—RH FTEERUKINES
210,000 7T (ZZ — M4 : 244,000% 7T) 7T 1Rk
B 25 - AR TAR LS B ERTURE N LA kR
ERERFEENR R BRAZENHNGRERZ
BHERRESRBEE

BEt=mmaERAE  20156% |5/



No’res to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R M A

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #E—ZF—-—RF=A=+—HIFE

30. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

Deferred taxation had not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of temporary differences
affributable to undistributed earnings of the PRC subsidiaries
arising since 1 January 2008 amounting fo HK$36,594,000
as at 31 March 2014 as the Group is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that such temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future. As at 31 March 2015, there are no

undistributed earnings arised from the PRC subsidiaries.

30. ELEFIE ()

RIE-—WF=A=1+—H SEPBRRILRH®
TENBRARANK _—FTNFEF-A-BEMRRZ
A9 BB /36,504,000 7T R 2 B B E FEE
SR S A TR g R 7S B T 4 1) 93 [ b B 2 R
ZEE - Bt ERZR A A& R[] Rk 5
B-R-_ZF-—AF=A=t+—H HMEELEETEH
MEBARZARDERRN -

31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. &R
Number of ordinary shares
EERRGOBE
at HK$0.20 at HK$2.00
Notes per share per share Amount
liokz3 §K0.2058 T FR2.00% T k-]
HK$' 000
FHET
Authorised: EE
AT April 2013 RZE—=FA—H 15,000,000,000 = 3,000,000
Share consolidation & B la) (15,000,000,000)  1,500,000,000 -
At 31 March 2014 R-_ZE—-WE=RA=1+—H - 1,500,000,000 3,000,000
Increase of authorised share capital B AE A b) - 1,000,000,000 2,000,000
At 31 March 2015 R-ZE—h&=F=+—H - 2,500,000,000 5,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRMR

At 1 April 2013 R-ZE—=FM”A—H 3,546,628,343 - 709 326

Issue of new ordinary shares upon RAARE SR
conversion of convertible bonds BT L B lc) 56,911,764 - 11,382
Share consolidation 10 A B a) (3,603,540,107) 360,354,010 -
Issue of placing shares BITRERD (d) - 89,242,500 178,485
At 31 March 2014 R-ZZE-WE=RA=1+—H = 449 596,510 899,193
Issue of placing shares BITRERD le) - 471,270,500 942,541
At 31 March 2015 R-ZE—h&=F=+—H = ©20,867,010 1,841,734
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31.

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 24 May 2013,
every fen issued and unissued ordinary shares of HK$0.20 each
in the share capital of the Company were consolidated into one
consolidated share of HK$2.00 each, and such consolidated
shares shall rank pari passu in all respects with each other (the “Share
Consolidation”). The Share Consolidation took effect on 27 May
2013.

Pursuant fo an ordinary resolution passed on 19 December 2014,
the authorised share capital of the Company was increased from
HK$3,000,000,000 divided into 1,500,000,000 shares of
HK$2.00 each to HK$5,000,000,000 by the creation of an
additional 1,000,000,000 new shares of HK$2.00 each. The
increased authorised ordinary shares rank pari passu with the

existing ordinary shares of the Company.

On 22 May 2013, the Company issued 56,911,764 new
ordinary shares of HK$0.20 each at conversion price of
HK$0.68 each in the Company as a result of the exercise of
conversion right attached to convertible bonds with principal
amount of HK$38,700,000.

On 8 November 2013, the Company entered info a placing
agreement with certain placing agents pursuant to which the
Company has conditionally agreed to allot and issue, and the
placing agents have conditionally agreed, on a best efforts
basis, severally and not jointly nor jointly and severally with the
other placing agent, fo procure placees to subscribe for, up to
72,070,500 placing shares at a placing price of HK$8.23
each under generate mandate (the “Generate Mandate Placing”)
and 17,172,000 placing shares at a placing price of HK$8.23

each under specific mandate (the “Specific Mandate Placing”).

The General Mandate Placing was completed on 15 November
2013 and 72,070,500 placing shares were issued at a placing
price of HK$8.23 under the general mandate granted to the
directors pursuant fo an ordinary resolution passed in the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 30 August 2013.
The Specific Mandate Placing was completed on 16 December
2013 and 17,172,000 placing shares were issued at a placing
price of HK$8.23 under the specific mandate granted to the
directors pursuant fo an ordinary resolution passed in the special
general meefing of the Company held on 11 December 2013.
All the shares issued by the Company ranked pari passu with the
then existing shares of the Company in all respects. Details of
the completion of the General Mandate Placing and the Specific
Mandate Placing are set ouf in an announcements dated on 15
November 2013 and 16 December 2013 respectively.

31.

LN
et -

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(%)

BER-Z—=FRA-+tWNERBZLERS
R BAARRETETREREEC. 208 THE
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AE#ED ((RHDEHD BROEHRZZE—Z=F
FAZFTEBEHR-

REBRRR-_Z-—MNF+_A+NLBEBBEZER
RFRR B BIBRFIN,000,000,0008% & #x2.00
BITZFI  NR R ZIEE B |3,000,000,000
7T (9 4&1,500,000,0008% & #x2.00# 7T 2 B 17
AN ZE5,000,000,0004 7T © N2 % E @ AR
ARARAEBRZEREER -

R-FB—=FRA—-+—-0 AAAFETELLHE
#338,700,0007 7T #9 AT 4 i f& 2 MT 25 1) SRR 4
R IR EEARO.68E T ETT 756,911,764 A A
RIS EEO. 20/ 7T 2 ¥ X @Ak -

RZZE—=F+—ANB  ARREETREERE
R ECE R - UL - AR R A R R B A R 3%
17 MESKREREERGBABRBRAS HEERE
A& B (B3EXR - IRFFEHE A & IR KR & A
A REAEANZEEBERS 23BTRE KK
IR T 8 %72,070,500/% Fo & B& 17 ([ — AR X #E AL
EFR]) MREEEESRS 238 TRBE ERE
B T&%17,172 0008 A & B ) ([ E R ERE
F1H]) e

—RREREEENR _Z—=F+—A+HAx
B 72,070,500 BEe E R ERBA A RBRER
—E-=FNA=THBEAZRRBEFAS LA
BrERRABRBETER, REEREEES
f88.23B T EAT - HAIRBEEFTER _T—=F
+ZA+RBER 17,172,000 B2 & 5 248
BARRBER -_ZE—=F+-_A+—B87T2
REFIAG FRBZEBRBZRETESZE
RIRERRE S EERS 238 LT - ARAIEITZ
FERMNERARERZEERNESHEEZA
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31.

S BMKRNEE

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(e)

On 20 November 2014,
it had entered info a placing agreement fo raise up fo
HK$1,560,000,000 through a placing of shares and
convertible bonds, with an upsize opfion in the amount up to
HK$780,000,000, within the placing price range of HK$3.00
to HK$4.00 per share while the conversion price of the placing

the Company announced that

convertible bonds will be the same as placing price (the “Placing”).

The Placing was completed on 16 January 2015. Total of
294,233,500 placing shares and 177,037,000 placing shares
were issued at a placing price of HK$3.00 per placing share on
8 January 2015 and 16 January 2015, respectively, under the
specific mandate granted fo the directors pursuant to an ordinary
resolution passed in the special general meeting of the Company
held on 19 December 2014. All the shares issued by the
Company ranked pari passu with the then existing shares of the
Company in all respects. Details of the completion of the Placing

are set out in an announcement dated 16 January 2015.

All the new ordinary shares issued by the Company during both
years ranked pari passu with the then existing shares of the

Company in all respects.
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

(a)

Share option scheme of the Company

On 7 September 2005, the Company adopted a share
opfion scheme (the “Scheme”) for the purpose of providing
incentive or reward fo any employees, executives or
officers, directors of the Group or any invested entity and
any consultant, adviser or agent of any member of the
Group or any invested entity, who have contributed or will
contribute to the growth and development of the Group or
any invested entity (the “Eligible Person”). The Scheme will
remain in force for a period of ten years from that date.

Under the Scheme, the directors of the Company may
at their discretion grant options to any Eligible Person to
subscribe for shares in the Company. Consideration fo be
paid on each grant of option is HK$1.00. The exercise
price is determined by the directors of the Company and
will be at least the higher of: (i) the subscription price as is
permissib|e under the Listing Rules from time to time; and {ii)

the nominal value of the shares of the Company.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the
shareholders of the Company at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 30 August 2013,
the Scheme has been amended that any new options
granted pursuant fo the Scheme will be exercised over a
period of not more than 10 years from the date of grant
of the relevant options (subject to the provisions for early
fermination contained in the Scheme) and any or all of
the options already granted pursuant fo the Scheme (and
which remain outstanding) could, subject to all relevant
vesting conditions, be exercised over a period of nof
more than 10 years from the date of grant of the relevant
options (subject to the provisions for early termination

contained in the Scheme).

32. BBIxfERTE

(a)

ARBZBRETE
R-ZEZRFNALA ARARRK—IERE
PerEst Bl ([EHE1) - ARk EH REE
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ERBZEMNEER TTHRABRLSRBE -
EEHERERBRAEBEMKE QA
FEMBRERE 2 BRE - FAARRE (A
BRALTD REEBREM - TEHEZ%E
EERARTE -

RIBFT S ARBEEARBAEREER
ATEEBRE  SHEARDZBRES
X1.00BTTZRE - ITHEEBARARES
AT SEMEE : 2L RIMRE ETR
AT £ 5T REBE - R(iI|AR R 2 EE -

BERARTIRRR_Z—=ZFN\A=1+HEE
TZERBERE BB EBRER 5
20 TR Bt REBEFERE 2 EMH
BRESITNARBRERER L AL
B+ F 2 IR A T AT 68 (M 5+ &I AT &k
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(a)

Share option scheme of the Company (Continued)

The maximum number of shares that may initially be issued
upon the exercise of all options to be granted under the
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s| adopted
by the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of
the total number of issued shares of the Company as af ifs
adoption date, i.e. 57,669,939 shares of the Company.
Subject to the approval of the shareholders of the
Company in general meefing, the limit may be refreshed
to 10% of the tofal number of shares of the Company in
issue as at the date of approval by the shareholders of
the Company in general meeting. Notwithstanding the
forgoing, the maximum number of shares of the Company
which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
opfions granted and yet fo be exercised under the Scheme
and any other share option schemels) of the Company
must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the total number of
shares of the Company in issue from time to time. Pursuant
fo an ordinary resolution passed af the Company's annual
general meeting held on 24 September 2014, the 10%
scheme limit was refreshed to 44,959,651 shares,
representing 10% of the fotal number of issued shares of

the Company as at the date of such meeting.

The maximum number of shares of the Company in respect
of which options may be granted to each Eligible Person
under the Scheme and any other share option scheme(s)
of the Company [including both exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the total number of shares of the Company
in issue from time fo fime unless such grant has been duly
approved by shareholders of the Company in general
meeting at which the Eligible Person and his associate
(s defined in the Llisting Rules) abstained from voting.
Options granted to a substantial shareholder and/or an
independent non-executive direcfor of the Company or
any of their respective associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) in any 12-month period in excess of 0.1% of the
tofal number of the Company's shares in issue and have
an aggregate value exceeding HK$5 million must be
approved by the shareholders of the Company in general

meeting in advance.
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(a)

Share option scheme of the Company (Continued)

Defails of movements in the share options of the Company

granted under the Share Option Scheme during the year

(a)

32. BT E (&)

ARBZBREE (F)
ARBRBE_T-—AF=A=+—HILHF
EREBEBRETER L 2BREZS 2 FI5

ended 31 March 2015 are as follows: R
Number of shares ofthe Company o be Closing
issued upon exercise of th share options price ofthe
REREETEE Company's
ALARRRTZRAHR shares
Oulstonding Graned Reclossified Lapsed Oustanding Exercise  immediately
Date ot during during during ot pice  beforedote  Exercise
Name of grantee ofgrant 142014 the year the year the year 3132015 per share ofgrant  period
BERH
R-2-mF R-2-1F B
mA-A ZA=t-H 072
ARARS REBE  HAGE EREH EREFAE ER%N HATE  BRORE RHUHE  ARE
Director
-
Slephen Hung 1272013 3,600,000 = = = 3,600,000 6.80 645 Notel
HAE ZE-=FtA+Ch (]
Peterlee Coker . 1272013 3,600,000 - - - 3,600,000 6.80 645  Note]
“F-ZELAToH Hitl
LauKo Yuen, Tom 127.2013 3,600,000 = = = 3,600,000 6.80 645 Nokel
85R E-FtAtCH ]
Waler Craig Power 1272013 3,600,000 - - - 3,600,000 6.80 045  Nokel
“3-=5tA+CA M
Jomes Chiu 127.2013 360,000 = = = 360,000 6.80 645 Notel
BIER ZE-=FtA+CH (]
lee Chack Fon 12.7.2013 360,000 - - - 360,000 6.80 045 Notel
Exes “5-SFtATCR ]
loin Ferguson Bruce 127.2013 360,000 - - - 360,000 6.80 045  Noel
W&t E-FtAtCH ]
Francis Goutenmacher 12.7.2013 360,000 - - - 360,000 6.80 045  Nokel
“3-=5tA+CA M
Sub Total 15,840,000 = = = 15,840,000
it

BEt+t=5EFRLA
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 32. BR#EE (&)
(a)  Share option scheme of the Company (Continued) (a) AABZEREE (E)
Number ofshares ofthe Company fo be Closing
issued upon exercise o te share options price of the
MERERGRE Company’s
AARRETZRAHE shares
Oustanding Granted Reclassiied Lapsed Oustanding Exercise  immediotely
Date ot during during during ot pice  beforedote  Exercise
Name of grantee ofgrant 142014 the year the year the year 31.3.2015 pershare ofgrant  period
BERA
R-%-RE R-%-1F GE
mA-A ZA=t-H LY P
ARAER RHEH  HAGE ERRH ERENIE ER&H WAGE  BRORE  ROWRE A
Employees In aggregate]
E5 (85
1272013 3,600,000 = = = 3,600,000 6.80 045 Notel
TR-ZECATCR iGd
127.2013 400,000 = 400,000 = 800,000 0.80 045 Nokd
“Z-ZErRTCH Note2) i
(Hi2)
1272013 1,200,000 = = (300,000 900,000 6.80 645 Noed
E-CELATCR i
1272013 1,160,000 = = = 1,160,000 0.80 645 Noe$
“E-ZHELAT (iES)
1272013 1,150,000 = = = 1,150,000 0.80 645 Nokeb
ZE-CEERtIE Wit
1272013 400,000 = 60,000 = 460,000 6.80 045 Noe/
Z3-ZFtAtCH [Note 2) fit7
(z2)
1272013 138,000 = = = 138,000 6.80 6045 1272014
“F-ELAtoA o
1172017
“E-PF
tA+ZH
E3
IE-1f
tAt-8
30.9.2013 985,000 = = (138,000| 847,000 6.90 089 Noie8
R-ZEAAZTH fiiis
15.10.2013 289,000 = = = 289,000 8.10 723 Noe9
“E-ZF1ATEA i
1872014 = 229,000 = = 229,000 6.80 598 Noel0
“B-MELATAR 10
SubTotl 9,322,000 229,000 460,000 (438,000 9,573,000
it
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 32. BRESE (&)
(a)  Share option scheme of the Company (Continued) () ARATZEREE (B
Number ofshares of the Company fo be Closing
issued upon exercise of the share options price ofthe
MEREEGRY Company's
AARRETZRAHE shares
Outstanding Granted Reclossifed Lopsed Outstanding Erercse  immeditely
Date ot during during during ot pice  beforedote  Exercise
Name of grantee ofgrant  14.2014 the year the year the year 3132015 per share ofgrant ~ period
BERH
H-g-pg H-%-1% BEA
BA-A ZR=t-A ARER
RRARS RERE  HAGE ERRH ERENIR ERY WATE  SROEE ROWHE  ORR
Other Participants
(Inaggregote]
E85% (51
1272013 400,000 = (400,000| = = 6.80 645 Noed
“Z-=EtATCH (Note 2] fi3t3
(Wi2)
1272013 12,000 = = (12,000] = 6.80 645 1272014
E-CEYATCR o
11.7.2017
“F-IF
tAt=A
S
IE-1f
tAt+-8
1272013 1,270,000 = = = 1,270,000 6.80 645 Noed
ZE-=EtTCH i
127.2013 450,000 = = = 450,000 6.80 645 Noted
“F-ZFLAtCH S
127.2013 60,000 = (60,000] = = 6.80 645 Noe/
ZE-FtAtCh [Note 2) fist7
liE2)
1272013 260,000 = = = 260,000 6.80 6045 Noell
TR-ZECATCR il
28.3.2014 112,000 = = = 112,000 §.992 827 Noel?
ZB-WEZAZTNA M1
Sub Totol 2,564,000 = (460,000| {12,000 2,092,000
it
Tolal 27,726,000 229,000 = (450,000] 27,505,000
&3t
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
(a)  Share option scheme of the Company (Continued)

Defails of movements in the share options of the Company

granted under the Share Option Scheme during the year

B rEst 8l (&)
KRB 2 BRETE (A)
ARRRBE_E

(o)

—mOE=A=t+—Hi*#F
FEREBRAEFT RO ZBREZS 2 FI1F

ended 31 March 2014 are as follows: U
Closing
Number ofshares ofthe Company fo be price ofthe
issued upon exercise of the share opfions Company's
NERBETRARARRRTZRAHAE shares
Qustanding Granted Reclossfed Qutstanding Exercise immediately
Date o during during o price efore date Exercise
Name of grantee of grant 142013 the year the year 3132014 per share of grant period
H-%-z% i S t:3 SRR
BA-H v =ZR=t-H AAARZ
ARALS RABE HATE ERRH EEipL HATE SRAREE Bk 8
Director
EE
Siephen Hung 127.2013 = 3,600,000 = 3,600,000 6.80 645 Note |
A “2-SELAToH (i
Peter e Coker . 1272013 = 3,600,000 = 3,600,000 6.80 045 Note |
E-ZEtATCR likd
lauKo Yuen, Tom 127.2013 = 3,600,000 = 3,600,000 6.80 645 Note |
Y5R “Z-=FtAtzh 4]
Wialer Craig Power 1272013 = 3,600,000 = 3,600,000 6.80 6.45 Note |
“F-ZELAToH it
Jomes Chi 127.2013 = 360,000 = 360,000 6.80 645 Note |
B ZE-ZEYATCR (iG]
lee Chack Fon 1272013 = 360,000 = 360,000 6.80 045 Note |
FR5 S S liEd
loin Ferguson Bruce 127.2013 - 360,000 - 360,000 6.80 045 Note |
mEt “E-ZEtATCR 4]
Francis Goutenmacher 12.7.2013 - 360,000 - 360,000 60.80 6045 Note |
“R-ZFEATCA Mt
bl - 15840000 - 15840000
gt
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 32. BRESTE (4
(a)  Share option scheme of the Company (Continued) () ARATZEREE (B
Closing
Number ofshares ofthe Company fo be price ofthe
issued upon exercise of e share options Company's
REREEARRALTRRTZRAHE shares
Oustanding Granfed Reclassiied Oustanding Exercise immediately
Date ot during during ot price efore date Exercise
Name of grantee of grant 142013 the year the year 31.3.2014 per share of grant period
Hog-zf N-8-Df BERLAH
BA-A v =R=t1-H HERFZ
ARAES REAE HATR ERRl Ly HATR SRITRE Rt E ik
Employees (In aggregate]
5 (&)
127.2013 = 3,600,000 = 3,600,000 6.80 6045 Note |
TE-ZFLATCH iGd
1272013 = 800,000 (400,000) 400,000 6.80 045 Note 3
Z3-=FtA+TCH [Note 3] k3
(Wii3)
127.2013 = 1,200,000 = 1,200,000 6.80 6.49 Note 4
E-ZECATCR i
127.2013 = 1,160,000 = 1,160,000 6.80 645 Note 5
“B-ZFtATR i8]
127.2013 = 1,150,000 = 1,150,000 6.80 645 Note 6
“F-ZFLAtCH Hito
1272013 = 400,000 = 400,000 6.80 6.45 Noe /7
R-ZECATCR 67
127.2013 = = 138,000 138,000 6.80 645 127201410
E-ZEtATCR [Note2) 1172017
(Hi2) ZE-ME
tAt-AZ
“E-tE
tA+-A
09013 - 985,000 - 985,000 6% 689 e
TE-ZENAZTR ikt
15.10.2013 = 289,000 = 289,000 8.10 7.3 Note 9
ZF-=f1ATEA M9
Sub Tolgl = 9,584,000 262,000 9,322,000
It
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 32. BR#EE (&)
(a)  Share option scheme of the Company (Continued) (a) AABZEREE (E)
Closing
Number ofshares ofthe Company fo be price of the
issued upon exercise of the share options Company's
NERBEAEARLTRRTLROEE shares
Qutstanding Granted Reclossfed Qutstanding Exercise immeditely
Date ot during during ot price before date Exercise
Name of grantee of grant 142013 the year the year 31.3.2014 per share ofgrant period
H=%-z% =8--I SERLAH
BA-R Eh  =R=t1-H ARRFZ
ARALA REAH HATR EREH Ly HATR SRATRE R E s
Other Participants
Inaggregoe
Afi9EE (53
1272013 = = 400,000 400,000 6.80 6.45 Note 3
“Z--EtRt-R (Note 13) i3
(#i3)
127.2013 = 150,000 (138,000 12,000 6.80 645 127.201410
ZE-=FtA+CH [Note 2) 1172017
(Hit2) i S
tAtZRZ
“TtF
tA+-A
127.2013 = 1,270,000 = 1,270,000 6.80 645 Note 4
“F-ZFLAtCH Hitd
1272013 = 450,000 = 450,000 6.80 0.45 Note 9
“R-ZECATCR 4]
127.2013 = 60,000 = 60,000 6.80 645 Note /
“F-ZFLAtoH Hit7
127.2013 = 260,000 = 260,000 6.80 645 Note 11
ZF-=FEAToR i1
28.3.2014 = 112,000 = 112,000 8.59 8.2/ Note 12
“F-BEZAZTAR 12
Sub Totol = 2,302,000 262,000 2,564,000
et
Totl = 27,726,000 = 27,726,000
&3t
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(a)

Share option scheme of the Company (Continued)

Notes:

The share opfions shall vest in 3 tranches, as to one+hird
on 12 July 2013, as to a further onethird upon topping
out of the hotel under development on the Cotai Strip of
Macau and as fo the final one+hird upon opening of the
hotel under development on the Cotai Strip of Macau. The
share options are exercisable from the dates on which the
share opfions are vested until 11 July 2017 (both dates

inclusive).

Cerfain persons were re-classified from the category of “Other

Participants” to “Employees”.

The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as fo one-
third on 12 Jul 2014, as to a further one-third on 12 July
2015 and as to the final onethird on 12 July 2016. The
share options are exercisable from the dates on which the
share opfions are vested until 11 July 2017 (both dates

inclusive).

The share options shall vest in 8 tranches, as to 10%,
15%, 15%, 15%, 10%, 10%, 15% and 10% on 31
May 2013, 31 August 2013, 30 September 2013, 1
April 2014, 30 September 2014, 31 January 2016,

1 March 2016 and 31 December 20106, respectively,
subject to the fulfilment of certain vesting conditions. The
share options are exercisable for 18 months from the
dates on which certain vesting conditions are fulfilled, but
in any event, exercisable until 11 July 2017 (both dates

inclusive).

The share options shall vest in 7 tranches, as to 15%,
15%, 15%, 15%, 15%, 15% and 10% on 31 August
2013, 1 April 2014, 31 December 2014, 31 March
2015, 31 January 2016, 31 March 2016 and 31
December 2016,

of certain vesfing conditions. The share options are

respectively, subject to fulfilment

exercisable for 18 months from the dates on which
cerfain vesfing conditions are fulfilled, but in any event,

exercisable unfil 11 July 2017 (both dates inclusive).

The share options shall vest in 4 tranches, as to 25%,
25%, 25% and 25% on 31 August 2013, 1 April 2014
31 August 2014 and 31 January 2016, respectively,
subject to fulfilment of cerfain vesting conditions. The
share options are exercisable for 18 months from the
dates on which certain vesting conditions are fulfilled, but
in any event, exercisable until 11 July 2017 (both dates

inclusive).

BIERTE (&)

(0)

et -

ARTF 2B ET 8 (&)
BEES=HBE =H— Z%h%#_g—fi
AT ASE - B =5— 2 BRERRPIE
BERPEEHRSRE  RE=H— Z%k%m
BPBEABRT ZBERBHEBE - BREERR
HESBzREE-2—tFtA+—BHE(2
BERMK) 7 T -

ETATHIEM2EE | EROBERER] ZE
Al o

BRI =MWHRE =D 2BRER_ZT—NF
+A+=—BHEE " %ﬁl\zﬁ—z,ﬁ\%ﬂﬂéﬁé_g—ﬁ
FEAT-_AHE &RE=0—ZBEERER_F
—RNFEAT-_RHE - - BRES LR E R AL
EZ—+tFLAT+-—BHR(BEEEMR) A
FATIE -

MARHES \BEBE - 10% - 15%  15%  15% -
10% ~ 10% » 15%&10%2%%%”%”5":%—
ERA=+—H

=F=F£ N NH=+—H =3
—=ZFAA=+R —ZT-WFNA—-H =2
—MEAA=THE - ZE-RF-A=+—0H"
E—REF=ZA=+—BR-E—RF+A=+—
RSRE  HEEFERE THRERS - BREEET
BEGMTEERZ AHEFI8EARNR T
HEERNAR _E—tFLA+—RBZA(BEE
EBMR) A FITHE -

BRESCHEB  15% - 15% - 15% - 15%
15% 15%R10%2 BRES N _-_"Z—=FN\A
=+—H \:%—IEJEEH—EI CZE-MFE+Z
A=+—H" —hF=RA= + A ZF—RX
i_ﬂ:‘f'_El ET—RF=ZA=+— H&_7
—/—\i-f—_ﬂj-?——ﬁ BB EATEKRE TR
B -EREBET ?EH#%EWZEiﬁtJ
18 ARA T176 - EEMNEAAR T —tF+
A+—BZA(BEEEBMXK) A TIT6E -

fERRE D OB BB B - 25% ~ 25% ~ 25% ] 25%2 f&
H&‘%“EUEA— —=F/\A=+—R ZZ-0OF
mA—AB - —OFENA=+—BR=-ZT—RF
—H=t—8~ EE WEERERETHRBGMNE B
BEEE THRBGHAEER 2 AMEISEAR
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(a)

Share option scheme of the Company (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

7.

The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as to 30%, 30%
and 40% on 31 May 2013, 31 December 2014 and 31
March 2016, respectively, subject fo fulfilment of certain
vesting conditions. The share options are exercisable
for 18 months from the dates on which cerfain vesting
conditions are fulfilled, but in any event, exercisable until
11 July 2017 [both dates inclusive).

The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as to one-hird
on 30 September 2014, as to a further onethird on 30
September 2015 and as to the final onethird on 30
September 2016. The share options are exercisable from
aforesaid vesting dates until 29 September 2017 (both

dates inclusive).

The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as to one-
third on 15 October 2014, as to a further onethird on
15 October 2015 and as to the final onethird on 15
October 2016. The share options are exercisable from
aforesaid vesting dates until 14 October 2017 (both

dates inclusive).

The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as to one-hird
on 18 July 2015, as to a further onethird on 18 July
2016 and as to the final onethird on 18 July 2017. The
share options are exercisable from the aforesaid vesting
dates until 18 July 2018 (both dates inclusive).

The share options shall vest in 2 tranches, as to 75%
and 25% on 15 January 2014 and 31 December
2015, respectively, subject to fulfilment of certain vesting
conditions. The share options are exercisable for 18
months from the dates on which certain vesting conditions
are fulfilled, but in any events, exercisable until 11 July
2017 (both dates inclusive).

The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as to one-
third on 28 March 2015, as to a further onethird on 28
March 2016 and as to the final onethird on 28 March
2017. The share options are exercisable from aforesaid
vesting dates until 27 March 2018 (both dates inclusive).

A grantee was reclassified from the category of “Employees”

to “Other Participants”.
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(a)

BIERTE (&)

ZIK’AT,'ZE% RiERT 8l (&)

Share option scheme of the Company (Continued) (0)
During the year ended 31 March 2015, 229,000 share H=E —RAF=ZRA=+—HBLFE"
options were granted on 18 July 2014 to an employee. 229 OOOT\%HX%EA*T mME+HA+A\H
The fair value of the options determined at the date of BT—%EE NIELBBAFMBRN R
grant using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model was MR TERAECCEREATER
HK$448,000. 448,000/ 7T °
During the year ended 31 March 2014, 26,340,000, BE_Z-—"NFEF=ZA=+—HBLEFE"
985,000, 289,000 and 112,000 share options were 26,340 OOO@ 985,00017 + 289,00017 &
granfed on 12 July 2013, 30 September 2013, 15 112,000 R ED RN —_FT—=F+A
October 2013 and 28 March 2014 respectively to the +-—B -ZF—Z=ZFfhhA=+H —ZT—=
directors of the Company, employees of the Group and F+ATRABRZZF-—NEF=A=-+/\B#
advisers which perform similar services as employees, FARAER AEERENRER AES
of which 19,440,000 share options were granted to SMRMEEURE) - & 519,440,000 B
the directors of the Company and other members of key BER_-F —fi‘t A+ZBEFARRA
management on 12 July 2013. The fair values of the EENEMBEEEZS - NIFLHEF AR
opfions determined at the date of grant using the Black- Nw— STﬁj,Hﬁ,Hﬂﬁéiﬁﬁ_ﬁ%iZE%Hﬁ%@
Scholes Option Pricing Model were HK$63,813,000, F1E 5 R A63,813,000/% 7T ~ 2,575,000
HK$2,575,000, HK$886,000 and HK$335,000 7T ~ 886,000/ 7T }2 335,000/ T - EZ 7
respectively. The key vesting conditions are mainly related BEGEZHARAEERPBEERRE T
to the completion of different construction stages of the BIPTIR ML 2 RIG B 8 o
hotel under development relevant to the services provided
by the grantees.
The fair value was calculated using the Black-Scholes NFEDFNARN R -SRI AR EEEN
Option Pricing model. The inputs info the model were as FE - HZERXZHABURNT ¢
follows:
12July 30 September 15 October 28 March 18 July
2013 2013 2013 2014 2014
—F-=% —F—=F —F—=F —mE —mE
+tA+=H NA=+H +A+HEBE Z=ZAZ=tANH T A+NH
Closing share price R B
as at the date of grant Z W (E HK$6.64 HK$6.90 HK$8.10 HK$8.30 HK$5.99
6.64%8 7T 6.908 T 8.108 7T 8.308 7T 5.99%8 7T
Exercise price 7188 HK$6.80 HK$6.90 HK$8.10 HK$8.592 HK$6.80
6.80% T 6.90% T 8.108 7T 8.592/8 7T 6.80% T
Expected volatility E H R 1 36.90% to 47.91% 47.82% 46.19% 45.77%
49.71%
36.90%%
49.71%
Expected life R HIF 5 1 to 4 years 4 years 4 years 4 years 4 years
—ElEF mE mE s s
Riskree rate Ja Bz ) 2 0.29% o 0.85% 0.85% 1.19% 1.11%
0.87%
0.29%%
0.87%
Expected dividend yield TR B Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

BEt+t=5EFRLA
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Share option scheme of the Company (Continued)

The Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model has been used
fo estimate the fair value of the options. The variables
and assumptions used in computing the fair value of the
share options are based on the direcfors’ best estimate.
Changes in variables and assumptions may result in
changes in the fair value of the options. An amount of
HK$19,003,000 (2014: HK$35,720,000) of share
based payment expenses has been recognised during
the year ended 31 March 2015 with corresponding
increase in share optfion reserve. Included in the amount
of HK$19,003,000 (2014: HK$35,720,000)
of share-based payment expenses, an amount of
HK$2,759,000 (2014: HK$5,127,000) of share-
based payment expenses was recognised as expense
in profit or loss and an amount of HK$16,244,000
[2014: HK$30,593,000) was capitalised in hotel under
development for their confributions to the hotel project.

Share option scheme of Falloncroft Investments Limited
(“Falloncroft”)

On 5 February 2013, the Company completed its
acquisition of the entire equity inferest in Falloncroft from
an independent third party for a cash consideration
of HK$2,000,000,000 (the "Acquisition”) in which
Falloncroft becomes a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. Upon the completion of the Acquisition,
Falloncroft adopted a share option scheme and granted
options that would, for a subscription and capifal
contribution, in cash, of up to HK$600,000,000, entitle
Chief Wise Limited (“Chief Wise"), an affiliate of Mr
Stephen Hung (joint chairman and the executive director
of the Company), to subscribe for 600,000,000 shares
of Falloncroft. Chief Wise may assign these options to the

management of Falloncroft as it sees fit.

] 72 Louis XIll Holdings Limited 2015 Annual Report

—HEF=A=t—RALFE
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AAT 2 BRESTE (&)

MAhw TR ETEER ARG
Btz AFE - %u%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂiﬁzﬁ
E&F“B&%$zf&ﬁﬁ o ZE

BESH I BHEREATFERE - ﬁi_
T-AFZA=Z+ B LFEEERARSD
BEMRZ HREAL AEI9,003,000% 7T (=
T — U4 : 35,720,00058 7T) -+ 48 FE L A0t
ABRERB UBRGBERZMHHHAX
19,003,000 7t (== — U 4 : 35,720,000
BIT)ESF o BH2,759,0008 T (=&
— P04 : 5 127,000 7T) 2 AR D B HERR
ZHBASTEREZERAENS  MAR
16,244,000% 7t (=T — M4 : 30,593,000
BIL) ZUBRDEBER 2N XA RYE
JFEEZEIERRBERPBEZER -

Falloncroft Investments Limited ([ Falloncroft )

2B REST &

RZE—=F=ZARAH AQEIZEKR—
2P % = 7 U BEFalloncroft® ERA% #E © IR &
R {8 A2,000,000,000% ¢ ([UEESHE]) -

Bt - Falloncroftf\ AR R B 2 2 &K B A
7] o MR EE E T84 - FalloncroftBL 47 7 B&
IRt E W THERE  ERUANREERE
K& & % 600,000,000 JT B BH F Chief
Wise Limited ([ Chief Wise | + & A &) 2 Bt & =
FRATESLIKBEEZBBAR) RE
600,000,000R%Falloncrofth& 17 2 # 1| o Chief
Wise A IZHER REERSZEBRERZET
Falloncroftz E3EfE -



32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(b)

Share option scheme of Falloncroft Investments Limited
(“Falloncroft”) (Continued)

The scheme was structured such that the option holders
on exercise, will always have fo pay the same pro rata
amount (up fo the lesser of 10% of the equity capital (including
shareholders’ loan) of Falloncroft or HK$600,000,000)
for the shares of Falloncroft as the Company pays for its
interest in Falloncroft. Holders of the options subscribing
for Falloncroft Shares, on exercise of the options, have the
right to require the Company to purchase their respective
holdings of the shares of Falloncroft in exchange for
an allotment and issue of new ordinary shares of the
Company, determined based on a formular, with details
set out in a circular of the Company dated 5 January
2013.

As Mr Stephen Hung is the joint chairman and the
executive direcfor of the Company, the fair value of the
above share opfions are measured at fair valve and
accounfed for in accordance with HKFRS 2 “Share-
based Payment” with reference to the valuation at grant
date, 5 February 2013, carried out by an independent
valuer. The fair value of services to be received from Mr
Stephen Hung as a director is determined by reference to
the fair value of share opfions granted and is expensed
on a straightline basis over the vesfing pericd, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve)
of Falloncroft which represents an increase in non-
controlling inferests in the Group's consolidated financial
statements. An amount of HK$9,344,000 (2014:
HK$10,157,000) share-based payment expense has
been recognised during the year ended 31 March 2015
with a corresponding increase in non-controlling inferests
as the share options are granted by a subsidiary of the

Company.

32. BT E (&)

(b)

Falloncroft Investments Limited ([ Falloncroft )
2 IBRREST 8 (E)

FrEE TA UFEEREFAE AR
FEERHENBERENE RAQXAERER
Falloncroftz # 2 AT 1+ 3R I8 » #2 L B AR (&
R AFalloncroftz 10%AE A (B IE R R E ) &
600,000,000t 2 8K &) - A] R RR A&
171 85 2 B Falloncrofti% (7 2 BB HEH A A B
1 E KRR R E K S & 8 AT ZFalloncroft
fR1D - ARIMELEE RBEITAARFLEBR
ERFEARFERNARRBEHA T —=
F—ARRAZAK -

AR KB EEBARD R 2B EEERHT
B LABREZATEDNLSEB UM
BEAREHBREIZE—=F=-AAH)#
T2 BEEATERE  UREBERBV KR
HHREAFE2R ARG BER 2K AK-
RHKBLTELTESTBESRBEZAF
BENES2EMBHEREZATFEEE
WIZEHEN BB A - [FRE-ES M
FalloncroftfE 2= (BERRE ) - HERAEE
RE MBS ImER 2 FEERERIL I - AR R
BIAALAR—HBAREL  BEZZT
—HF=A=+—H I FERIBARND BE
2 R S B9,344,0008 T (ZE— I
& 10,157,000/ 7T) + [F B 4R FE 35 H0 FE 5

e Ny

RS ©
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

BRERTE (E)

(b) S:!'\are option scheme of Falloncroft Investments Limited (b) Falloncroft Investments Limited ([ Falloncroft J)

-(thOHOHCI‘OSH ) (Cohnhnufedl)’] b d . Z,ﬂ\ﬁﬂﬁfg_ﬁ_%ﬂ (%;E-;)

ere are franches or shares to be issued, in whic P i

180,000,000 options are atiached to each of Series A MBI =BBH - RHARRFIBE B K

and B, and 240,000,000 share options are attached £180,000,00017 & i #& - ™ & SICH A

to Series C. The fair values were calculated using the 240,000,000 BB #E - A FERMB N = —

Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model. The inputs based on SR BETEEATE - REBTEES

assumed vesting period info the models were as follows: Y EER S ARENT -

Series A Series B Series C
Z#5IA #5IB #3IC

Weighted average share price AR AR Z IHEFIIARE
of the shares of the Company HK$0.60 HK$0.60 HK$0.60
0.60% T 0.60%8 T 0.60% T
Exercise price (Note] 171EB () HK$0.68 HK$0.68 HK$0.68
0.68% 7T 0.68% 7T 0.68% T

Expected volatility BEDRE 49.25% 49.25% 49.25%

Expected dividend yield BRI E X Nil Nil Nil

Expected life FEEHEH] 5 years 5 years 5 years

5% 5% 5F

Riskdree rate & B | 2= 0.591% 0.591% 0.591%

Assumed vesting period upon RETBRER ZREFBH Immediately 29 months 41 months

issue of option* Il 2918 A 418 R
Estimated fair value EHASSE HK$9,922,000 HK$11,472,000 HK$ 15,709,000
9,922,000 7T 11,472,000% 7T 15,709,000/ 7

Note:  With effect from 27 May 2013, the exercise price Hiit - ERNETRN S0 (RH & 0B R
was adjusfed from HK$0.68 to HK$6.80 as a result 3la) BEZE—=FRA-t+tHE"
of the Share Consolidation (see note 31(a) for details 1T{EERO.68B TTHEBE6.808 T ©
of the Share Consolidation).

* The vesfing conditions for the 3 tranches of share * ZHEREZEBRGNT
options are as follows:

Series A: Completion of the sales and purchase agreement for FBIA - 5K sk W B Falloncroftz] 32 2 B & i
the acquisition of Falloncroft in which the agreement BlHER_E—=F_AAHBRTK -
was completed on 5 February 2013.

Series B:  Completion of the Acquisition and the roof fopping out FZB: TERWBEERBERPBE (EHRZEI4
in respect of the hotel under development [refer to the Bz BRPEE)(DEE] <HEAL
hotel under development as disclosed in note 14) (the Bo
“Hotel").

Series C: Completion of the condition stated at Series B above RIC - FER EXRFIBPTM 2 614 R 5B JE A4S
and the opening of the casino operated within the B2 RESRE -

Hotel.

No options were granted, exercised or cancelled under BE_ZT-—NEr-_ZT—HF=A=+—H

the share opfion scheme of Falloncroft during the years 1 €5 T8 4 AR B FalloncrofiE AR BE = 2112 1 -

ended 31 March 2014 and 2015.
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33. SHARE AWARD SCHEME AND SHARE
FINANCING PLAN

(a)

Share award scheme

On 6 September 2006,
adopted by the Company. The share award scheme

share award scheme was

allows the Company to make bonus payments to eligible

persons (including employees, direcfors, consultants,
advisers and agents of the Group) by way of the
Company's shares acquired by and held through an
independent trustee until fulfillment of specified conditions

before vesting.

33,934,500 (2014
1,258,000) Company's shares were acquired by an

During the vyear, total of
independent trustee appoinfed by the Company for the
share award scheme. The aggregate consideration paid
for these shares in an amount of HK$ 142,000,000 (2014
HK$8,000,000) was deducted from shareholders’

equity.

On 15 February 2014, shares with fair value of
HK$6,000,000 were awarded to an individual consuliant (the
"Consultant”) for his contribution fo the hotel project in
which the number of shares awarded will be calculated
at the market c|osing price on the date of fulfilment of
specified conditions rounded to nearest whole trading lots
[500 shares per lof]. The shares awarded shall vest in 5
tranches, as to 30%, 10%, 10%, 30% and 20% on 26
March 2014, 31 July 2014, 30 September 2015, 30
September 2015 and 30 June 2016 respectively, subject
fo certain vesting conditions.

On 19 February 2014, total of 588,500 shares of the
Company were awarded to a consultancy company
for their contributions to the hotel project. The shares
awarded shall vest in 5 tranches, as approximate to 20%,
20%, 20%, 20% and 20% on 26 March 2014, 31 July
2014, 30 June 2015, 30 June 2016 and 30 June 2016

respectively, subject to cerfain vesting conditions.

On 3 October 2014, total of 22,000,000 shares of the
Company were awarded fo a consultancy company for
its contributions fo the hofel project. The shares awarded
shall vest on 31 December 2014, subject fo cerfain

vesting conditions.

These transactions were accounted for as equity-seftled
sharebased payment transactions in equity over the
vesting period based on the fair value of the relevant
shares.

33. RipEREEFERKRD

(a)

mEsrE

R 10 2 B =t I

RIZZBZRFNAAKRE  ARBRARN B

BIEt & - Iy BB B BRFARARAE B
T(BRAREZEE EF BH - &7

ARAIEN) AR R B B B UK B AEAL -

HEROHEHE - BBLIEABARSEE

ERTENRBIRIFEKSL

FA - LK"*T%EZ?%I%*%/\*EF%@@%
Ehat Bl #E S 4£33,934, 500 AR H (=
T4 ¢ 1,258,0008%) ° Eytuxwﬁx@iﬁ
2 # R (E142,000,000% T (=ZZ — MO £ :
8,000,000/ 7T) 2 B R =P HIK -

R-EBE—MNME-F+HAB  AATHE—ZE
ABEERE (TEER ) &% F 2 FE 56,000,000
TLZ B 5EE  URGHEEREER 28/
Bt FTiEE 2 AR D B B IR IEBUR T IR
ZEBRHBTE TEERERELICZEEE
B BN (FFS5000 M 17%) 5t & - i@
o AHEEE - B130% -~ 10% ~ 10% ~ 30% K
20D IR =—FE—mME=A=+"B" =

—MELA=+—08 —ZE—HFAA=T
H —E—RAFAAZTHARZZE—ARER

=t+HRE  HIXBRRETHBIEH -

EA:;*EE*H+%H ARBA—FKE
A AR T & #2588, 500/ ik 17 22 B - LAK
%E HHEERBZEB - MBEBRNED R

# ?;J% Z’UQO% ~ 20% ~ 20% ~ 20% K 20% 5
R = ﬂiiﬂ_‘h‘_\ﬂ :%—mi
tA= ‘|’ g s —HRFESA=1+AH"

T— /\i/\ﬂ:"”ﬁ&—% /\i/\ﬂ:"ﬁ'

BB EXRNE THEB G -

BA:’? mE+A=0  ARERA—FKEMH
NAER T & #£22,000,0000 i 15 528 - JAK

BEUBEERR ZER - TRBRMHER =

E-NET_A=T"HRE EXRRE
SRR -

ZERXZGWBBBR D 2 A FERBBHAR
HERIE T Z AR AE B AR 1D R & RE 2 50
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33. SHARE AWARD SCHEME AND SHARE
FINANCING PLAN (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Share award scheme (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2015, share-
based payment expense of HK$92,045,000 (2014
HK$3,667,000) was recognised over the vesting
period and capitalised in hotel under development with
corresponding increase in share award reserve for their

contributions fo the hotel project.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, fotal of
22,219,000 (2014: 332,500) shares of the Company
have been vested upon the fulfilment of specified
Included in total of 22,219,000 vested
shares, tofal of 101,500 vested shares of the Company

conditions.

granted fo the Consultant was calculated at the market
closing price on the date of fulfilment of a specified
condifion rounded to nearest whole frading lots (500

shares per lof].

Upon vesting and transfer to the awardees, the related
costs of the vested shares of HK$93,299,000 (2014
HK$1,883,000) are credited to shares held for share
award scheme, and the related fair value of the vested
shares of HK$88,933,000 (2014: HK$2,801,000) are

debited to share award reserve.

Share financing plan

On 6 September 2006, share financing plan was
adopted by the Company. The share financing plan
allows eligible persons (including employees, directors,
consultants, advisers and agents of the Group) fo borrow
funds from the Company or from a company within the
Group to acquire new or old shares of the Company on
a nonecourse basis with the subject shares pledged to
the Company as security subject always to connected
fransaction and other relevant provisions under the Listing

Rules.

None of the eligible persons of the Group acquired any
of the Company’s shares under the share financing plan
during the years ended 31 March 2014 and 2015

] 76 Louis XIll Holdings Limited 2015 Annual Report
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33. RGPRBFTERKROBMES S (B)

(a)

(b)

149 1 M3t ) (1)
REE-T-—RF=A=+—AILFER-
EREEMERARNO RER ZMRFAX
92,045,000/ 7T (=T — M4 : 3,667,000
B ABABEDEEZEA AR
AT AR SRR BB - LSR5 2 0 5 B
ZE# -

RBE_ZE-HEF=A=+—BIFER"
FERSTE KRR - EHEBA 22,219,000

& (ZZ— W4 : 332,5008%) &R 7fo’ﬁ°
32 222,219,000 5 B AR5 8 7 + A 2

A B 8 1% T 2 & $£101, 50008 57 & B 17 -
R R 2 2R T
EREEZREEE R (F500H M)
ER

REBILEETERRARAR BEK
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: 1,883,000/ L) B &t A B 1 B Eh &+
A ZBRNA MEBROZBEAFE
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BT ERIR D RENFE TR o

IR 1D B & 5t &
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34.

SON

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capifal fo ensure that enfities in the
Group will be able to confinue as a going concem while
maximising the refurn to shareholders through the opfimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group's overall sfrategy

remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of nef debts, which
includes the bank borrowings and convertible bonds disclosed
in notes 28 and 29, respectively, net of cash and cash
equivalents, and equity affributable fo owners of the Company,

comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
regularly. As a part of this review, the direcfors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of new debt or

the redemption of existing debt.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a)  Categories of financial instruments

34.

35.

EXREBERE

AEBEERHAA  URBRRAEEETRESTH
Bies  WEBECERRERERRRRERE
RER - RBREFE - AEEZ BERMEHFTE -

AEBEZEAGBBRERFE  BREDHNME
28R 20 B 2 MITER K AT ]IRE S (NREE M
HRSEMERE) RARAEEARGERZ (AR
BEBRTRARFERE) -

ARREEEHRTERNELNERE - ERRFZ—
R EFEEEARALESEREANERE AR -
AEERRBEETZEZEBRMNERE - BITHK
ARFIREBHREOREEBAFEHELEEER
B e

ST A
(@) £BMIEER

2015 2014
—E—-h%F T
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
THERT FAET
Financial assets tRMEE
Loans and receivables B & WA
(including cash and cash equivalents) (RIEReMEBESEEMEE) 6,014,396 4,364,919
Financial liabilities tRmEE
Amortised cost B 5 A 4,144,670 2,373,774
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's major financial insfruments include frade and
other debtors, amounts due from associates, joint ventures,
joint operations/other partners of joint operations and
subsidiaries of a shareholder, other loans receivable,
pledged bank deposits, short term bank deposits, bank
balances and cash, trade and other creditors, amounts
due fo associafes, a joint venture, joint operations/
other partners of joint operations and subsidiaries of a
shareholder, loan from a subsidiary of a shareholder,
bank borrowings and convertible bonds. Details of the
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments include
market risks (currency risk and interest rate risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how fo mitigate
these risks are set out below. Management manages and
monitors these exposures fo ensure appropriate measures

are implemented in a timely and effective manner.

Market risks

(il Currency risk
Several subsidiaries of the Company have trade
and other debtors, amounts due from associates,
short term bank deposits, bank balances and
cash, and trade and other creditors denominated
in foreign currencies, which expose the Group fo

foreign currency risk.

The carrying amount of the Group's foreign

—HEF=A=t—RALFE

35. £RT A (&)

(b)

SREAREERERBE
AEEFTESRTADEE S R EMERK
B ERBERAR 6E0E GEEK
EEEBEMBH R —BREZWNEB A TR
BEMERER CDERRTER B8
BITER  RITEBERIRS BEHREME
NRIAE - ENBEAR —MEAEGE A
BER /AR EBEMBER — BRI ZH
BARINIE  —BREZWEBARER R
TERRATBRRES ZEeRTAZFHE
BEREENZ HESHMITAMKEZE
TRBEEMSRR (E¥RRMFIERRE)
CERBMNASESRAR BB ERR 2
BREINNR T - EEEEERERLER
Bz DARE ORI B UMb B b S 2 FR e o

45 2

i  EEEE
AARIBEWBRARFEUINERE
2B 5 &EMEWGRIE - FEUE &
NAEIFIR - MHRITIF R - RITEHRK
REURE S R H AR ZIE - A
SEFEZINERBE o

AEERBEAUIMNEREML2EE

currency denominated monetary assets and EERE¥ABEZHREAABANT
monetary liabilities as at the reporting date are as
follows:
2015 2014
—2-1fF — 4
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
TF#T TET
Assets EE
RMB AR 2,326 33,265
MOP JRFTEE 6,776 10,664
SGD b T 12,761 15,298
Liabilities AR
MOP JRFTEE 13,589 14,367
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

(i)

Currency risk (Continued)

The Group is mainly exposed tfo the fluctuation of
the RMB and SGD against Hong Kong dollars as
Hong Kong dollars is pegged to USD while MOP
is pegged to Hong Kong dollars. The following
fable details the Group's sensitivity fo a 5% (2014:
5%) increase and decrease in RMB and SGD
against Hong Kong dollars. 5% (2014: 5%) is the
sensifivity rate used when reporting foreign currency
risk infernally to key management personnel
and represents management's assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange
rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items and adijusts their translation af the year end
for a 5% (2014: 5%) change in foreign currency
rates. A positive number indicates a decrease in
postax loss where RMB and SGD strengthen 5%
(2014: 5%) against Hong Kong dollars. For a 5%
(2014: 5%) weakening of RMB and SGD against
Hong Kong dollars, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the postax loss for the year

and the balances below would be negatfive.

35. @M I A (&)
TREAREEBRERBE (&)

(b)

5 B ()
(il  E¥ERE (&)

B P 7 7T B 35 T 6 N SR P S RS T
B MAEBETERATRKRAEARE
REFME LB TZEERER - T&
HMHAAEEE ARE RN T
HE® EFAR TR (ZZE—NE:
5%)ZBREE - MEBERABERZ
HINEE [\ B 3R 25 B A 2 UK R B 5% (=
T U4 : 5%) » I TE IR JE A B
W2 RIBEREBIED 2 5T - S
ERERRAIINE BB EREE
ZEEIFE - WHRIRESRIES% (=T
—PUE 5% ) EREFHIFE AL B
BB EHSRRARE RN T
HABK FAS%(ZE—ME : 5%) %
TgEBEBD i ARE RN T
HBEBTB®S% (ZE—E : 5%) @ 1§
HAFEHRGERERSERERZ
FE RUTESKBHRAKRZER -

2015 2014

—g-E% -Z-mF

HK$’ 000 HK$' 000

F#T T

RMB AR 97 1,389
SGD 7 T 533 639

This is mainly aftributable to the exposure
outstanding on frade and other debtors, amounts
due from associates, short term bank deposits and
bank balances and cash denominated in RMB and
SCD at the end of the reporting period.

HEEIRENBERRKRERE 2N
AREEHMETREM 2B RE
b RS FRIE - FEUNESE & A R SRIA - REH]
ROTFERRRITERRRES Z AR -
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

(i

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed fo cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to amount due from a subsidiary of a
shareholder, other loans receivable, pledged bank
deposits, short ferm bank deposits, bank balances,
loan from a subsidiary of a shareholder and bank
borrowings. It is the Group's policy to keep its
borrowings at variablerate of interest so as fo
minimise the fair value interest rate risk.

The Group's exposures fo inferest rate risk on
financial liabilities are defailed in the liquidity risk
management section of this nofe. The Group's
cash flow interest rafe risk is mainly affributable to
fluctuation of the best lending rate and the bank's
cost of funds in Hong Kong, Hong Kong Interbank
Offered Rate and the benchmark lending rate as
announced by the People’s Bank of China.

The Group was exposed fo fair value inferest rate
risk in relation to an amount due to an associate as
at 31 March 2014.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensifivity analysis below has been defermined
based on the exposure fo interest rate risk for
amount due from a subsidiary of a shareholder,
other loans receivable, loan from a subsidiary of
a shareholder and bank borrowings. The analysis
is prepared assuming the financial instruments
oufstanding at the end of the reporting period were
outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis points
(2014: 50 basis points) increase or decrease in
inferest rates for amount due from a subsidiary of
a shareholder, other loans receivable, loan from a
subsidiary of a shareholder and bank borrowings,
is used when reporting inferest rate risk infernally
to key management personnel and represents
management's assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rafes.

After the analysis performed by the management
of the Company, the 50 basis points change in
inferest rates for amount due from a subsidiary of
a shareholder, other loans receivable, loan from a
subsidiary of a shareholder and bank borrowings
with all other variables held constant would not
have a significant effect on the Group's posttax
loss for both years.
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

(il Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)
The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk due fo the fluctuation of prevailing market
interest rate on pledged bank deposits, short term
bank deposits and bank balances. The Group
considered interest rafe fluctuation on these bank

deposits and balances is insignificant.

Credit risk
As at 31 March 2015, the Group's maximum exposure

to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the
Group due fo failure to discharge an obligation by the

counterparties is arising from:

e the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated

statement of financial position; and

. the amount of contingent liabilities in relation
to financial guarantee issued by the Group as
disclosed in note 38.

In order fo minimise the credit risk, management has
delegated a team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue

debts. In addition,

recoverable amount of each individual debtor at the end

the Group reviews regularly the

of the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
the directors of the Company consider that the Group's

credit risk is significantly reduced.
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Due to the fact that there are only a few major property
developers in Hong Kong, the Group has significant
concentrafion of credif risk in a few customers. In view
of their credit standings, good payment record in the
past and long ferm relationships with the Group, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group's
credit risk is not material. At the end of the reporting
period, the outstanding balances from the five largest
customers, which have been included in trade debtors
and amounts due from joint ventures, amounted to
HK$1,593,338,000 (2014: HK$1,233,898,000) in
aggregate, of which the single largest customer represents
approximately 23% (2014: 24%) of the fotal frade
debtors and trade balances of amounts due from joint

ventures at the end of the reporting period.

The Group had a recoverable amount of
HK$82,500,000 as at 31 March 2014 which exposed
the Group to the concentration of credit risk on this
counterparty. The amount had been fully recovered during

the year ended 31 March 2015.

In addition, the Group's other loans receivable as af 31
March 2015 amounting to HK$91,351,000 (2014:
HK$74,247,000) [see note 25 for details] expose the
Group to concentration of credit risk. The directors of the
Company continue to monitor and assess the financial
status of the counterparties, and they believe the exposure
fo credit risk on these balances is not significant as the

counterparties are of good financial position.

With respect fo credit risk arising from amounts due from
associates, joint ventures, joint operations/other partners
of joint operations and subsidiaries of a shareholder, the
Group's exposure fo credit risk arising from default of
the counterparties is limited as the counterparties have
good reputation and a good history of repayment and
the Group does not expect fo incur a significant loss for

uncollected amounts due from these counterparties.
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high creditratings assigned

by international creditrating agencies.

Other than the above, the Group has no other significant
concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a

number of counterparties.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the \iquidif\/ risk, the Group monitors
and mainfains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by management fo finance its
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank

borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The following table details the Group’s contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on
the agreed repayment terms. The table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay. The table includes both interest
and principal cash flows. To the extent that inferest flows
are floating rafes, the undiscounted amount is derived

from interest rafe at the end of the reporting period.
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)

35. &M I A (&)

(b)

TREAREEBRERBE (&)

MEE TR ()

Weighted ~ On demand Total Total
average or within 91 days- Over  undiscounted carrying
inferest rate 90 days 1year 1year cash flow amount
mEFH REX
Gilk:d &iEs At-H RERBE
AT EUR E-F -Eyt nESE REELE
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
THT THr THr THT THT
At31 March 2015 W=B-E¥=A=1-H
Trade and other creditors %”%&ﬁﬁﬂﬁgﬁ% = 1,483,694 212,008 282,525 1978227 1978227
Amounts due fo associates ERBEARR - 21919 - 6,567 28,486 28,486
Amount due fo  joint venfure R — FﬁA%ﬁﬁmlﬁ = 2,868 = = 2,868 2,868
Amounts due fo iointoperoﬂons/ Eff4aE %ﬁ/
other partners of joint operations REEBEMBHTE - 86,866 - - 86,866 86,866
Amounts due to subsidiaries of EN—2REZHBAR
a shareholder A - 493 15,300 - 15,793 15,793
Loan from a subsidiary of a —ERR BB
shareholder B 7.0% 39,583 39,583 37,000
Bank borrowings RITER 3.6% 488,481 42,271 1,259,232 1,789,984 1,586,127
Convertible bonds HEES 18.8% = = 2,218,542 2,218,542 409,303
2,084,321 300,162 3766866 6,160,349 4,144,670
At 31 March 2014 RZE-ME=A=+-H
Trade and other creditors m%&ﬁﬁﬂgﬁ% - 1,217,266 101,977 149,507 1,468,750 1,468,750
Amounts due fo associotes FERBE AR
- non-inferest bearing ~AiE 15,296 10,833 5417 31,546 31,546
- fixed rate inferest bearing IE BEHE 1.0% 6,271 6,920 - 13,191 13,125
Amounts due to joint operations/ TEELR/
other pariners of joint operations REEBEMPHTE - 123,443 - - 123,443 123,443
Amounts due to subsidiaries of R —E2REZHBEAR
a shareholder B - 345 15,300 - 15,645 15,645
Loan from a subsidiary of a —ERRZ Rk EAT
shareholder EE 7.0% = 39,326 = 39,326 38,000
Bank borrowings RITER 3.6% 402,972 41,160 2,636 446,768 443 544
Convertible bonds iR ES 18.2% = = 1,463,242 1,463,242 239,721
1,765,593 215,516 1,620,802 3,601,911 2,373,774

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments  for non-derivative financial liabilities are
subject fo change if changes in variable interest rates
differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at the

end of the reporting period.
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35.

36.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(c)  Fair value measurements of financial instruments

The fair values of the financial assefs and financial
liabiliies that are not measured at fair value on a recurring
basis have been determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on a discounted cash
flow analysis, with the most significant inputs being the

discount rate that reflects the credit risk of counterparties.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of the
Group's financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements

approximate their fair values.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates defined contribution refirement benefit
schemes for qualifying employees. The assets of the schemes
are separately held in funds under the control of trustees. The
cost charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
represents confributions payable to the funds by the Group af

rates specified in the rules of the schemes.

Where there are employees who leave the schemes prior to
vesting fully in the contributions, the contributions payable by the
Group are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions. At
the end of the reporting period, there were no material forfeited
confributions which arose upon employees leaving the schemes
prior fo their interests in the Group’s confributions becoming
fully vested and which are available to reduce the contributions

payable by the Group in future years.

With effect from 1 December 2000, the Group has joined
a Mandafory Provident Fund Scheme [the “MPF Scheme’).
The MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Authority under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance. The assefs of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in funds under the control
of an independent trustee. Under the rules of the MPF Scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions fo the scheme af the rafes specified in the rules. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF Scheme
is to make the required contributions under the scheme. Under
the MPF Scheme, there will not be any forfeited contribution

available to reduce the contribution payable by the Group.
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36.

37.

S BMKRNEE

BE_T-RF=A=+—HILFE

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (Continued) 36. EIRERIFHE ()
The retirement benefit scheme contributions arising from the MPF BEESFEIMEL 2 EREFEHREER
Scheme charged fo profit or loss represent contributions payable FIE - HERAEEIZTERAFTR L RRE
fo the funds by the Group at the rates specified in the rules of the DR 2K -
scheme.
The Group operates a defined contribution refirement scheme AEERRFEEKEERBEEATHIRNKE
for eligible employee in Macau. The assefs of the scheme are Fetdl e ZA B2 EERBUYUSTATE 2 ZHE
held separately from those of the Group in funds under the CHEAEESRFZEE  —BXNHEFR AEEBE
control of an independent trustee. The Group has no further HMNREE HERINARERLEERFNF
payment obligations once the confributions have been paid. X WiRBERT 82 % SR B BHFEBHRAATE
The contributions are recognised as employee benefit expenses Wz ER MR A o
when they are due and are reduced by confributions forfeited by
those employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in
the contributions.
The Group’s PRC subsidiaries participate in retirement benefit AEBAREMBATXES R RE i BTEE
schemes organised by the local government authority in the PRC. EIR 2 RINERIETE o 1% B RIRE M iR E AR E B
They are required to make cerfain monthly confributions based BAYHNETHR - AEERERBEEL AT
on the local standard basic salaries. The only obligation of the K BIEBITRAEBNEFEZEE -
Group with respect fo the retirement benefits schemes is to make
the required contributions under the schemes.
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 37. BEXRAELE
2015 2014
—Z-1F —Z—F
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
TERT FHET
Capital expenditure authorised but not EREERITOE@EEESD
contracted for in respect of hotel project BIE 2 BARFX 682,205 3,052,849
Capital expenditure contracted for but not ERTRERNEESPBRRA
provided in the consolidated financial BEEHENTHEHRE ZEARRAX
statements in respect of
— hotel under development —BREAEE 1,724,708 123,382
— acquisition of property, —BEWE  BRER
plant and equipment 1,152,082 8,442
3,558,995 3,184,673
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38.

39.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 38. IAEE
2015 2014
—E—-1fF —E—NF
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
TF#T TET
Indemnities issued to banks for performance HTIALTEARZIEEGLN
bonds in respect of construction contracts BERZBHOREMS
undertaken by: R1T 2 RERE
An associate —EHE AT 5,589 5,589
Joint operations BREEW 333,933 333,933
339,522 339,522

In oddition, the Company provided a corporate guarantee
for banking facilities of HK$20,000,000 (2014:
HK$20,000,000) granted to an associate.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments

for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of renfed premises which fall due as
follows:

39.

BN AR B IR F — REEE 2 Q) A20,000,000
BT (ZE—E : 20,000,000 7T) 2 RITRE
IRERTER -

MEMAORE

RB|ERR - AREENATHE 2 EBHERAMERL
BHATE M A RRRIEE S RIFASE o L FARE
2T

2015 2014

—E—h%F U4

HKS$’000 HK$ 000

FET FHET

Within one year —FRN 44,375 42,760
In the second fo fifth year inclusive FoEERF (EEMFREEAN) 17,789 43,035
62,164 85,795

leases in respect of premises are negotfiated, and monthly

rentals are fixed, for terms ranging from one to five years.

leases in respect of plant and machinery are negotiated based
on individual contracts and the Group had no  significant
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operating leases of these plant and machinery.

ERWEHE A REBAESIREBEERS
—ERFZHENEE -

BRARH R 2 AERERNAOBRE  AEER

ZEWM R SR TR REE R EHEE T ERK
RIEHEE MR EARRE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #E—ZF—-—RF=A=+—HIFE

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES  40. BEEA TR Z K 46k

(o]  The Group entered into the following transactions with its @ EAR FNEBFEEHEBEATITIATRS
related parties during the year:

Class of related party Nature of transactions 2015 2014
BEALZER REME HK$’000 HK$' 000
—E—hfF —FmF
FET FET
Associates of the Group Construction works charged by the Group 3,802 7,038

REE ZHE R T REBURBMENTIRE
Project management fees charged by the Group - 1,196

AEEKERIERERE
Construction works charged to the Group 28,228 =

REBXNEHNIEE
Consultancy fees charged to the Group - 47

REEZNERE

Inferest charged to the Group 12 136

AEBEZMAHE

Joint ventures Construction works charged by the Group 2,110,767 2,352,234
of the Group AEBRRAEHNTREE
AEEzEERE Project management fee charged by the Group 6,192 2,892
REBWBREEERE
None of the related party transactions disclosed MEAM LR BEALRSER LT
above constituted connected transactions or continuing RAFFERZ@EXHRFEFERS

connected fransactions as defined in the Listing Rules.

(b)  The remuneration of key management during the year was b) FRXTEZEBABZHFHAOT :
as follows:

2015 2014
—Z—hHfF —E—MF
HKS$’000 HK$' 000
THET THT
Shorterm employee benefits EHEEEA 36,876 30,237
Postemployment benefits RRAE R 1,141 38
Share-based payment LARR 7 A5 BB 2 157 35K 23,315 36,759
61,332 67,034
The remuneration of key management is determined by the FTERERBABZEFEM I BFHEESLER

remuneration committee having regard to the performance MABZRBRETHBEMERT -

of individuals and market trends.

Details of the balances with associates and joint ventures at the R|ERAR  BEERRREERECERFBH
end of the reporting period are set out in nofe 23. HIRAHTEE23 o
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41.

INFORMATION ABOUT FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY

41, RRQT BB ER

2015 2014
—E-hfF —E-mEF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
T#ERT FET

TOTAL ASSETS HEE
Investments in subsidiaries RBRRIKRE 3,882,824 3,050,479
Other debtors H {th e W3R8 4,927 427
Loan fo a subsidiary m—REBRRIZER 100,000 -
Short ferm bank deposits HEISRITER 2,017,714 1,143,289
Bank balances IR1TH &R 287,027 7,369
6,292,492 4,201,564

TOTAL LIABILITIES PSR
Other credifors and accrued expenses H e3R8 K BT S 2,488 2,040
Amount due to a subsidiary of a shareholder ~ FEfT — & AR E 2 —FHIM B R RIFIE 15,300 15,300
Amount due to a subsidiary e — R B A R E A 56,961 56,961
Convertible bonds AR A% & 5 409,303 239,721
484,052 314,022
NET ASSETS EEFE 5,808,440 3,887,542

CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRFHE

Share capital A% AR 1,841,734 899,193
Reserves (Note) 1 (K aE) 3,966,706 2,988,349
TOTALEQUITY B S 5,808,440 3,887,542
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For the year ended 31 March 2015

41.

INFORMATION ABOUT FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)

Note:

Movements of reserves of the Company during the current and prior

years are as follows:

41, RRTzBBRRER (F)

it -

RRRRNAFRBEFE 2HELBNOT

Shares
held for
Convertible share ~ Share  Share  Capital
Shore Confributed ~ Speciol ~ bonds  award  opfon  award redempion  Retained
premium  surplus  reseve  reseve  scheme  reserve  reserve  reserve profits Total
& RR#
REx REHY  BRE RORR E4RE
RGEE HERR RRRG i FERR e i B REEA st
HK§000  HKE'000  HKE'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Tér TEr T Tz TExr  TEr  TEr  TER TEn TEn
AtT Apil 2013 R=F-=4MA-A 1316052 35497 (150,000 977,881 = = = 255 44384 2224060
Loss and fola comprehensive expense orheyeor — FEBRRZERREE = = = = = = = - (30893 (30,893
Issue of new ordinary shares upon conversion of RERWAREHET
converible bonds (Note 31/c) HEBR(HEII) 25,643 - - (31,484 - - - - - 5841
lssue ofplacing shares [Note 37(d]) BARERR W2 1) 555,981 - - - - - - - - 555981
Transaction costs atfibulable fo issue of placing shares - EFTRERDEERBHA (27,539) - - - - - - - - (75%9)
Issue of convertible bonds (Noe?‘?{ii}) EARRES R = = - 252,551 = = = = - 252,531
Tronsacfion cost afrbutable o he equity component ~ (AREHHKAHS
of convertible bonds EIERBHA - - - (10.448) - - - - - (10,448)
Recognifion of equitysetled sharebased payment ARRARRETHRA
expenses of the share opfion scheme of EEN R AR
the Company (Nofe 32/ AR (H#320) - - - - - 3570 - - - 370
Recognifion of equitysetled sharebased payment ARR AR REE
expenses of the share awerd scheme of LXWK SEIRIBER
the Company (Nofe 33/a]) RS (Hz£3300)) - - - - - - 3,667 - - 3,607
Purchase of shares under the share award scheme @ﬂx WELHEL % HX - - - - (8,000 - - - - (8,000
Shares vested under the share award scheme BERDEDHEZE = = = = 1,883 - [2801) = = [918)
At31 March 2014 RZZ-ME=A=+-A 1870137 35497 (150,000 1,188,500 [6,117) 35720 866 255 13491 2988349
loss ond olcl comprehensive expenseforheyear — FEEFERRARREE - - - - - - - - (11,866 (11866
lssue of placing shares [Note 31(e) BRERR W) 471271 = = = = = = = - 1
Transaction costs atfibulable o issue of placing sheres - EFTRERADEERBHA 60,934) - - - - - - - - (60,934
Issue of convertible bonds [Note 29)ii EGRESNECIEZ ) = = - 009747 = = = = - 69747
Tronsacfion cost afrbutable o he equity component ~ (AREHHKAHS
of convertible bonds EIERBHA - - - (3279 - - - - - (28,279
Recognifion of equitysetled sharebased payment ARRABREE
expenses of the share opfion scheme of WRAEE R AR
the Company (Nofe 32/a]) ZARRZ (H#320) - - - - - 19,003 - - - 19003
Recognifon of equifyseffed sharebosed payment ~ BERR AR AR Bz 2
expenses ofhe share award scheme of LXW? SENBNAER
the Company (Nofe 33/a]) R (Hizt3300) - - - - - - 92045 - - 92045
Purchase of shares under the share award scheme @ﬂx WELHEL % HX = = = - (142,000 - - - - (142,000
Shares vested under the share award scheme RERDRDHES = = = - 9329 - (88,933 - - 4,366
Trenser o efained proffs upon lapse of share REARRI Z%M
opinions granted by the Company RARBEERIEN - - - - - (31] - - 3 -
At31 March 2015 RZZ-TF=A=1-A 2280474 35497 (150,000 1794972 (54818 54,692 3978 255 1636 3,966,706

The special reserve of the Company represents the difference

between the aggregate of the net asset value of,

and

shareholder's loan to, Paul Y. Management Contracting
amounting to HK$250,000,000 and the issue value of the
shares of HK$400,000,000 as consideration for the acquisition

of Paul Y. Management Contracting in prior year.
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42.

43.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 42. HEHEREE
Below is an event of the Group occurring after the end of the NTARBREHEREREE S —HF A
reporting period and up to the date of approval for issuing the TARETIERGAS B RR 2 B PEAREEE
consolidated financial statements on 19 June 2015: EREIA -
On 16 April 2015, the Company granted 401,000 share RZZE—RFWHA+RB  ARRARTEEETR
options at an exercise price of HK$6.80 per share to an 6.807 LIl — & B B T401,00017 i I ## -
employee.
The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as to onethird on 16 BRESI=HEE =92 R=ZZT—X<FWEA
April 2016, as to a further onethird on 16 April 2017 and as TARAEE BI=p2—RZT—tFEATA
to the final onethird on 16 April 2018. The share options are HEB SE=92—R-Z—/\FNA+AH
exercisable from the aforesaid vesting dates until 15 April 2019 Bo-BRETe LiiEBRBEEE ST —AEY
(both dates inclusive). A+HBHE (BEEREMR) FAITHE -
PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 43. TEMBEAR -HEQLT FELERSE
ASSOCIATES, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT EERER
OPERATIONS
(o) Parficulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries at 31 @ AAFREEMBAAIR-FT-—EFR-F
March 2015 and 2014 are as follows: TEFEZAST - BZHEBAT
Place of Issued and Percentage of issued
incorporation/ fully paid share capital/
registration/ share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital held by the subsidiaries attributable to the Group  Principal activities
Hi/#m/ BEARAR BRTRA/EREXZEAL
WEAREH EXBE RE/ERER WEARRA KEEEE TERHB
2015 2014 2015 2014
—2-1F —T-mF ZB-IF —Z-IF
% % % %
Challenge Shore Limited Briish Virgin US$1 ordinary share 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
Islonds ("BVI") 1ETEBER REER
RBRRAE
(ZBRZES))
China Earth Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 51 51 Investment holding
#RBARAR &% ordinary share REZR
BT EBR
Corless Limited BVI US$2 100 100 51 51 Investment holding
RERIES ordinary shares REER
ZEnERER
Euro Dynasty Limited B! US$3 100 100 51 51 Invesiment holding
EERAHS ordinary shares RERR
SET LR
Falloncroft BVI 5,400,000,000 100 100 100 100 Invesment holding
EBRAHS ordinary shares of
no par value REER
5,400,000,0008%
ERELTAR

BEt+t=5EFRLA

2015 %% 191



No’res to the Consolidated Financial Statements

n\/-_]_\

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #ZE—=

S BMKRNEE

—HEF=A=t—RALFE

43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 43. TEMBAF BMEQT  GEEXRKE
ASSOCIATES, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT LEBER (&)
OPERATIONS (Continued)
[a]  Parficulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 la) AARETEMRBATINR-_Z—RFER_ZFT
March 2015 and 2014 are as follows: (Continued) —E=A=+—HzZ=HBWT : (&)
Place of Issved and Percentage of issued
incorporation/ fully paid share capital/
registration/ share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital held by the subsidiaries attributable to the Group  Principal activities
Ri/Em/ BRTRME BRARE /AMERZASN
MEAREH EXBE RE/EREER WEARRE KEEES TERH
2015 2014 2015 2014
—¥-i%f -—T-mf ZP-RFf -T-IF
% % % %
Louis XlIl Management Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary share 100 100 100 100 Management and
Limited A BT EBR secreforial services
TR RHWERK
Louis XlIl Management Macau MOP25,000 100 100 100 100 Management and
Limited i registered capital secrefarial services
25,0009 % ERRWERY
HMER
Manlink Limited BVI US$1 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
RBRAHS ordinary share REARK
IETEBR
New Concordia Hotel limited ~ Macau MOP25,000 100 100 100 100 Hotel development
M EEERAT it registered capitcl BEER
25,0005
Paul Y. (E & M) Hong Kong HK$50,000,000 99.9999 09.9999 50,9999 50.9999  Provision of electrical,
Confractors Limited 36 ordinary shares mechanical and
RERSTIRARAA 50,000,000 7t & @K% building services
ISR R ERS
Paul Y. Bulders Group Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 51 51 Investment holding
Limited BE ordinary shares REEK
REREEEERAA 2B LR
HK$1,000,000 - = - =
nonvofing
deferred shares
[Nofe i] below)
1,000,000 7T
ERFEELHR
(Fx )
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43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 43. TEMBATF BEQF GEEXRRKE
ASSOCIATES, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT LEBER (&)
OPERATIONS (Continued)
() Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries at 31 ARNRETEMBRAIR-_ZT—RHER-ZT
March 2015 and 2014 are as follows: (Continued) —E=ZA=+—H2Z=HEWT : (&)
Place of Issued and Percentage of issued
incorporation/ fully paid share capital/
registration/ share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital held by the subsidiaries attributable to the Group  Principal activities
Ri/Em/ BEARAR BRIRA/EREXZEAL
MEAREH EXBE RE/ERER WEARRE REEES TERH
2015 2014 2015 2014
“%-if —T-mf Z3-RFf -T-IF
% % % %
Paul Y. Builders Limited Hong Kong HK$102,000,000 100 100 51 51 Building construction
RERERRAT A ordinary shares BrRE
102,000,007 7t & i@
Paul Y. Building Materials ~ Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 51 51 Trading and
Compony Limited Bk ordinary shares insiallation of
2BTERK building materiols
BENHE S RER
Paul Y. Consfruction & Hong Kong HK$180,000,000 100 100 51 51 Buiding consfruction
Engineering Co. limted &/ ordinary shares and specialist works
180,000,000 T & @Mk BTRERFAIR
Paul Y. Consfruction & Singapore 51,000,000 100 100 51 51 Construction
Engineering Prelimited #7001 ordinary shares RETRE
1,000,000% AN e & Ak
Paul Y. Construction And Mlaysia RM2 100 = 51 - Consfruction
Engineering Sdn. Bhd. SRED ordinary shares BETR
2B LR
Paul Y. Construction PRC RMB120,000,000 100 100 51 51 Civilengineering and
(China) Limited H registered capilcl building consfruction

RERE(TE)ERAT

AK#120,000,0007
EMER

BEt+t=5EFRLA
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S BMKRNEE

n\/-_]_\

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #HZEZ=Z

—HEF=A=t—RALFE

43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 43. FEMBAT  HELQT  FELXRE
ASSOCIATES, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT EEBER (&)
OPERATIONS (Continued)
[a]  Parficulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 @ ARREEMBRAAIR-ZE—RAFE_ZF
March 2015 and 2014 are as follows: (Continued) —ME=A=+—HZHBWT : (B)
Place of Issved and Percentage of issued
incorporation/ fully paid share capital/
registration/ share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital held by the subsidiaries attributable to the Group  Principal activities
Ri/Em/ BRTRME BRARE /AMERZASN
MEAREH 3 RE/EREER WEARRE KEEES TERH
2015 2014 2015 2014
—¥-i%f -—T-mf ZP-RFf -T-IF
% % % %
Paul Y. Constuction Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 51 51 Civilengineering,
Company, Limited A ordinary shares building
REREARAT OB TEBR consfruction
and investment
HK$50,000,000 - = - = holding
nonvoling IATE EFRE
preferred shares REEER
(Note (ii] below]
50,000,000% ¢
ERFERER
(FXHiz)
Paul Y. Constuction Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 51 51 Investment holding
Holdings Limited A ordinary shares REER
REREZEEARAA 2ETERR
Paul Y. Construction BVI US$50,002 100 100 51 51 Invesment holding
Inerational Limited RBRAKE ordinary shares RE#ER
50,002% T & Bk
Paul Y. Confracting Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 51 51 Consfruction
Limited B ordinary shares RETR
100 EER
Paul Y. Fociliies Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 51 51 Facllities management
Management Co., Limited ~ &/ ordinary shares senvices
RERBERERAA 2ETERR RItE RIS
Paul Y. Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$ 100 100 51 51 Provision of finance
REHBERDA A ordinary share REHRE
BT ERR
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43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

ASSOCIATES, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT

OPERATIONS (Continued)

() Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries at 31
March 2015 and 2014 are as follows: (Continued)

43. TEZMBAT  BELQT SEEERS
EXBEN (B

(o) ARFRTEMBRAR-_F-—HAFR_-FT
—WEZRA=t—HZFBEAT : (&)

Place of Issued and Percentage of issued
incorporation/ fully paid share capital/
registration/ share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital held by the subsidiaries attributable to the Group  Principal activities
Ri/Em/ BEARAR BRIRA/EREXZEAL
MEAREH EXBE RE/ERER WEARRE REEES TERH
2015 2014 2015 2014
“%-if —T-mf Z3-RFf -T-IF
% % % %

Paul Y. Foundation (Macau] ~ Macau MOP25,000 100 100 51 51 Civilengineering and
Limited i registered capitol foundation works
REWE (BFI) BRAF 25,0002P B EMEA TATRRBETR

Paul Y. Foundaion BV us$1 100 100 51 51 Investment holding
Holdings Limited EREREE ordinary share RE#ER
1ETEBR
Paul Y. Foundation Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 100 100 51 51 Civilengineering and
Limited Bk ordinary shares foundation works
REBEBRAT 10,000,000% 7t & @Ak TATRRETR
Paul Y. General Confractors  Hong Kong HK$200,000,000 100 100 51 51 Civilengineering
Limited 3 ordinary shares and building
REZELEBRDF 200,000,00078 75 & % construction
TARIRRETRE
Paul Y. Inferior Confractors ~ Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 51 51 Inferior decorction
Limited & ordinary shares works
RERHIRERDA 2B EER ERKEIR
Paul Y. Management Hong Kong HK$ 1 100 100 51 51 Management and
[Macau] Limited Bh ordinary share secretarial services
REEE(RM) BRAF 1B ERR BB RHWER
Paul Y. Management BV US$2,000 100 100 51 51 Investment holding
Contracting Group Limited ~ EBE X #S ordinary shares REER
RERRIREBARAA 2,000% L& &R
Paul Y. Management Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 51 51 Management and
Limited & ordinary shares secrefaril services
REERARAT 2ETERR BB R ER

BEt+t=5EFRLA
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #HZEZ=Z

(a)

S BMKRNEE

—HEF=A=t—RALFE

43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 43. TEMBAF BMEQT  GEEXRKE
ASSOCIATES, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT LEBER (&)
OPERATIONS (Continued)
Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries at 31 ) ARRETENBLARAR-_Z—RHER_-ZF
March 2015 and 2014 are as follows: (Continued) —E=A=+—HzZ=HBWT : (&)
Place of Issved and Percentage of issued
incorporation/ fully paid share capital/
registration/ share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital held by the subsidiaries attributable to the Group  Principal activities
Ri/Em/ BEARAR BRITRE/HAMEL AL
MEAREH EXBE RE/EREER WEARRE REEES TERH
2015 2014 2015 2014
—¥-i%f -—T-mf ZP-RFf -T-IF
% % % %
Paul Y. Plant Hire Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 51 51 Trading and lefiing of
RERHESERAR B ordinary shares plont and machinery
2ETERR BHEREES
RkiEE
Paul Y. Project Management  Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 51 51 Project monagement
Inernational Limited & ordinary shares services ond
REDRIRERARDA 2B LR investment holding
BRERRHER
RERR
Paul Y. Specialist Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 100 100 51 51 Construction
B ordinary shares RETR
1,0008 & Bk
PY Consruction (Macau) Macau MOP25,000 100 100 51 51 Consfruction
Limited i registered capital BETR
RERRRE (RF) 25,0002F % EMEA
ARAR
PYE BVI HK$123,868,229 N/A N/A 51 51 Investment holding
REER RBRAHE ordinary shares S 1 TR REER

123,868,229 T & @Mk
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43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

ASSOCIATES, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT

OPERATIONS (Continued)

() Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries at 31
March 2015 and 2014 are as follows: (Continued)

43. TEMBRAF  HEQT - 58D

EXBEN (B

ENE)

(o) ARFRTEMBRAR-_F-—HAFR_-FT
—WEZRA=t—HZFBEAT : (&)

Place of Issued and Percentage of issued
incorporation/ fully paid share capital/
registration/ share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital held by the subsidiaries attributable to the Group  Principal activities
Ri/Em/ BRTRMRE BRAREK/ZMEAZESL
WEARER 3 RE/ERER WEAREE KEEEE TERH
2015 2014 2015 2014
“%-if —T-mf Z3-RFf -T-IF
% % % %
PYE General Confractors Macau MOP25,000 100 100 51 51 Consfruction
(Macau] Limited B registered capitl BETR
REREEABERRA 25,000 P %M E A
Unistress Concrete Products  Hong Kong HK$200,000 100 100 51 51 Manufacturing, frading
[H.K) limited BE ordinary shares and installation of
B NRRTHm(BE) 200,000 T & BR concrete products
ARAR and construction
works
HK$1,000,000 100 100 51 51 RELE@REE.
non+ofing BHREHRAR
deferred shares RETR
[Note (i) below]
1,000,000% 7T
BERZRELR
(FXhiz)

BEt+t=5EFRLA
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|\7_]_\

For the year ended 31 March 2015

CRE R

43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT
OPERATIONS (Continued)

(a)

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries at 31
March 2015 and 2014 are as follows: (Continued)

All of the above subsidiaries are indirectly held by the
Company except PYE which is directly held by the
Company.

Notes:

(i) The holders of the nonwvoting deferred shares are
not entiled to vote, are not entiled to any dividends
for any financial year and are, on winding up or
otherwise, only entifled out of the surplus assets of the
company fo a refurn of the capital after a tofal sum of
HK$100,000,000,000,000 has been distributed to the

holders of the ordinary shares of the company.

(ii) The holders of the nonvoting preferred shares are not
entifed to vote, are not entitled to any dividends unless
the net profits of the company available for dividends
exceed HK$100,000,000,000 in which case they
should be entitled to fixed noncumulative dividends at
the rate of 5% per annum for any financial year and are,
on winding up, only entifled out of the surplus assefs of
the company to a refurn of the capital after a total sum of
HK$10,000,000,000 has been distributed to the holders

of the ordinary shares of the company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group as at

1 March 2015 and 2014 which, in the opinion of the
directors, principally affected the results or assets of the
Group. To give defails of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in parficulars of excessive
length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities at the
end of the reporting period or at any fime during both

years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has
other subsidiaries that are not material fo the Group. The
principal activities of these subsidiaries, whose place of
incorporation/regisfration/operation are mainly in Hong
Kong or BVI,

management,

are construction, property development

other business, investment holding or

inactive.
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43.

FTEWBAT HeEN G %L ENRE
EEKER (B)
@ AARETEMBRAAR-_Z—HER_-_TFT

—ME=R=+—HZFBEET : (&)
AR BENEARIGBHARRIBEEE - I
REZEHARRREETH o

ikt -

(i) HEBEREEEERFEABRER
BREREMNHREFE RS H/\E?é
EZARBEREREEMBERT 2IKEAHK
100,000,000,000,000/% 7T T # 2 7] & K
HRAEARREBRBEEZERT  BREX

K o
i) WEEREEEARFEARRRE  TE
RERERAL S, - R IE%Z A R A UK B 487 B 8

100,000,000,000% 7T * fE ML BR T + b5
BB (0 B R — T E B 5%
B RMRE - A RERERA AR
7 K #5810,000,000,000% 7T T #Z A 7l &
BREAAGHENREEZ AT - B8
BE -
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43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

ASSOCIATES, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT

OPERATIONS (Continued)

(b)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have

material non-controlling interests

43. TEMBLF - B

EEWEH (B

(b)

The table below shows defails of non-wholly owned

EX )\

=L

N

SREYTF

il

E 54

BREERFEREREZIF2ENB AR ZH

15

TEREINEFEAFERBEDEZAKE S

subsidiaries of the Group that have material non- BHB AT Z S
controlling interests:
Proportion of
ownership of
Place of issued ordinary
incorporation share capital Profit (loss)
and principal held by allocated fo Accumulated
place of non-controlling non-controlling non-controlling
Name of subsidiary business inferests interests interests
FERERRE
A i B R BRTEBRRAZ PEREFERERZ
) PNCECE TEEEBY BRERBAGL A (1) RatkERER
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
“2-5F T ZB-1F _T-MF ZB-If _—T-;mF
% % HK$’000 HK$'000  HK$’000 HK$' 000
% % TE&T TERT TET TERT
PYE BVI 49 49 21,131 21,513 371,253 350,321
RERE HBRAES
Individually immaterial subsidiaries
with non-controlling inferests
BEFEREE 2 ERNFEAMBAF 840 (869) 30,656 20,472
21,971 20,644 401,909 370,793
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MF

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #HZEZ=Z

43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

S BMKRNEE

—HEF=A=t—RALFE

43. TEZMBAT  BELQT - 5%

i

RN

op

ASSOCIATES, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT EEBKER (&)
OPERATIONS (Continued)
(b]  Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have (b) Tzﬁ'ﬁéﬁiﬂlﬁﬂg SZIEEEBNBLARZE

material non-controlling interests (Continued)

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's

subsidiaries that has material non-controlling interests is set

5 (&)

BREE GFHERESZAKENB AR ZH
BERBMIT - R T BEMBEREE

out below. The summarised financial information below WA BIEEHEA 2 S8 ©
represents amounts before infragroup eliminations.
PYE REZE
2015 2014
—Z-5HE§ —T—mEF
HK$’000 HK$' 000
FTET FHET
Non-current assets FEMBEE 324,472 346,106
Currents assets mENEE 5,269,519 4,792,186
Current liabilities Vi IR=RE (4,742,328) 4,375,767)
Non-currents liabilities JEMBBE = (2,618)
Equity affributable to owners RNARHEE ARG R
of the Company 851,175 760,259
Non-controlling interests IEERER 488 (352)
Revenue WA 10,695,573 9,243,908
Profit for the year F N A 85,538 79,563
Profit attributable to owners KA E| B ARG F
of the Company 84,698 80,432
Profit (loss) attributable to the FEFE AR R = A (B518)
non-confrolling inferests 840 (869)
Other comprehensive (expense) AARHEEARLEMEER
income attributable to owners (FX) =
of the Company (409) 413
Other comprehensive (expense| Rk R A AR (F ) K
income for the year (409) 413

200 Louis XlIl Holdings Limited 2015 Annual Report



43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 43. TEMBAT HENT - EELERE

ASSOCIATES, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT EEKER (F)
OPERATIONS (Continued)
(b  Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have b) BEEAFIERERZIIEEZENBRAAZFHF
material non-controlling interests (Continued) 5 (&)
PYE (Continued) REZX (H)
2015 2014
—Z—hf —ET-mEF
HKS$’ 000 HK$' 000
FET FHET
Total comprehensive income attributable AR AT E AEEEZE
fo owners of the Company Wz 48 5E 84,289 80,845
Total comprehensive income (expense) — FE1% iR iz FE (L 20
atributable to the non-controlling Woas (FX) 4858
interests 840 (869)
Total comprehensive income for the year  4F P 2 TH Ui 25 48 58 85,129 79,976
Dividends paid to non-controlling [EENEIS 2 ¢ Fd &)
interests - (1,519)
Net cash (used in) from operating (BR)RELEEE2ESFR
activities (105,242) 465,407
Net cash used in investing activities ARIREEK 2 REFE (14,290) (178,623
Net cash from financing activities RERMERS 2R FHE 62,115 75,787
Net cash (outflow) inflow Be OR) mAERE (57,417) 362,571

BHET=KBEARAA 20155 20]



No’res to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #ZE—=

S BMKRNEE

—HEF=A=t—RALFE

43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 43. FEMBAT BELT FEEXRRE
ASSOCIATES, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT LEBER (&)
OPERATIONS (Continued)
[c)  Parficulars of the Company’s principal associates at 31 ) ARATIEBERAFAR_FT-—AFR_F
March 2015 and 2014 are as follows: —MEZRA=t+—HZFE QD—F :
Issued and Percentage of issued
Place of fully paid share capital/
incorporation/ share capital/ registered capital
Name of associate regisfration registered capital held by the subsidiaries atiributable fothe Group ~ Principal actvifies
I/ BRARAR BRRE/HREAZEAL
Bendsn A BA/ERER WEARKA REBEL IERH
2015 2014 2015 2014
“$-if -¥-mF Z%-if —%-[f
% % % %
PR-BE-REIR PRC RMB200,000,000 14.39 14.39 72 72 Civilenginesring
ARAR i registered capifal (Noe (ii) [Note (i (Note (ii) [Note i and bulding
(Nofe (il below] below) below) below) below) consfruction
AR®00000,0007  (FXME) (FXME) (FXBER)  (FXME) TAIERR
&R (Fxht) BTRE
Zhong Yu=Paul Y. Project PRC 15$300,000 40 40 204 204 Projectmanagement
Management Company H registered capifal and consuliancy
Limited [Note (il below) senvices
IRhTRELR 500,000%7 BREER
BEERARAA AR (Fxh) BRRS

All of the above associates are held by the Company

indirectly.

Notes:

(i) These companies are sinoforeign equity joint venture

company.

(i

) The Group is able to exercise significant influence over &
EZRE—EETIZEMR AT because it has the power
to appoint three out of the seven directors of that company

under the articles of association of that company.
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43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

ASSOCIATES, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT
OPERATIONS (Continued)

(d)  Particulars of the Company’s principal joint ventures at 31

March 2015 and 2014 are as follows:

43. TEZWBAT  BELQT SELERS
EXBEN (E)

I

d AARAEFTEALGER_FT—RFR_-FT
—ME=A=+—H2#HBUOT

Tft
-

Issued and Percentage of issued
Place of fully paid share capital/
incorporation/ share capital/ registered capital
Name of joint venture registration registered capital held by the subsidiaries attributable fo the Group ~ Principal activifies
R/ EEARAR BRORE/HMEL 2B
RELEAR b3 RE/ERER WEARRA rEEES TERH
2015 2014 2015 2014
Z8-if _—Z-mF ZB-REf _—T-MA%
% % % %
Paul Y. - Lion Beng JV Singapore $§300,000 50 50 25.50 2550 Consfruction
Pie. Lid. M ordinary shares BETER
300,000 A& TT & B
Paul Y. - Omas Joint Venture  Macau MOP100,000 50 50 25.50 2550 Consfruction
Company Limited i registered capital BETR
RE-RSHEBRAT 100,000 2 %M E A
MIEREEERAT PRC RMB30,000,000 50 50 25.50 2550 Invesiment holding
i regjstered capitol RERR
AR#30,000,0007 &R
MMEEREREBRAF PRC RMB10,000,000 50 50 25.50 2550 Property holding
H registered capital NEER

AR#10,000,0007 &R
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No’res to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S BMKRNEE

n\/-_]_\

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #ZE—=

—HEF=A=t—RALFE

43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 43. TEMBAF BMEQT  GEEXRKE
ASSOCIATES, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT EEKER(E)
OPERATIONS (Continued)
le)  Parficulars of the Company’s principal joint operations at le] ARRETEBEAEEBR_ZT—RHFER_-ZF
31 March 2015 and 2014 are as follows: —Ei_ﬁ_‘f' HZ#BwT :
Percentage of issued
Place of share capital/
incorporation/ registered capital
Name of joint operation registration held by the subsidiaries attributable to the Group  Principal activities
R/ BRARE /AMERZASN
REERER b3 WEARRE KEEES TERH
2015 2014 2015 2014
“¥-i% —T-Pmf Z¥-RFf -T-|F
% % % %
Laing O Rourke - Hsin Chong - Hong Kong 22,5 225 11.48 1148 Civil engineering
Paul Y. Joint Venture Bk TATE
Laing O Rourke = Hsin Chong - Hong Kong 22.5 225 11.48 1148 Civil engineering
Paul Y. (WKCD) Joint Venture BE TAIR
Paul Y. - Omas Joint Venture Macau 50 50 25.50 2550 Construction
RE-BTHENF ] BETR
Paul Y. Penta - Ocean Joint Hong Kong 50 50 25.50 2550 Civilengineering
Venture B TATE
Paul Y. - Yau Lee Joint Venture Macau 60 60 30.60 30.60  Construction
i RETR
The above tables list the associafes, joint ventures and joint BERAULERFAI AT EFEREFFEYE

operations of the Group which, in the opinion of the directors,
principally affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
associates, joint ventures and joint operations would, in the

opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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Financial Summary

B 75 B2

For the year ended 31 March
BEZA=t—-HLEE

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
—T——% ZT-——F ZT-=F ZT-pmF ZZT-IHFE
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000  HK$’000
FET FHET FET FHET THET
RESULTS ES
Revenue Wz 4,404,364 4,540,677 7,131,575 8,579,708 9,323,418
Profit {loss) before tax BB A s A (B518) 42,272 37,064 25,799 (2,900) 25,944
Income tax expense 5 &R (8,509 (4,068) (3,624) (27,036) (33,856)
Profit (loss| for the year FE&F (EBE) 33,763 32,996 22,175 (29,942) (7,912)
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to: EhELRER (BE)
Owners of the Company RREEEB A 30,083 30,303 17,632 [50,5806) (29,883)
Non-controlling inferesfs FEPERR R 3,680 2,693 4,543 20,644 21,971
33,763 32,096 22,175 (29,942) (7,912)
As at 31 March
R=A=+-—H
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
—E——% ZT-—-fF ZT-=F —T-mMF ZZ-IHF
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HKS’000
FAT FAT FAT FAT TET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEERER
Total assets BMEE 2,821,379 3,445,729 6,677,257 9,003,511 12,375,203
Total liabilities waE (2,217,058) (2,804,678) (3,287,403) (4,649,482) (6,087,387)
Total equity B 604,321 641,051 3,389,854 4,354,029 6,287,816
Equity attributable to: JEfh eSS -
Owners of the Company RREEE A 605,393 639,430 3,048,571 3,983,236 5,885,907
Non-controlling inferesfs e R g (1,072) 1,621 341,283 370,793 401,909
604,321 641,051 3,389,854 4,354,029 6,287,816

BEt+t=5EFRLA
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